Phoenix Journal #208



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
TERRORIST SCAM: THE GREAT GOLD HEIST	
by Eustace Mullins 6/25/97	1
TERRORISTS IN ACTION	1
ONLY ONE SIDE OF THE STORY	2
CHUTZPAH	3
WACKOS	3
SWISS RESISTANCE	4
THE RUBIN REPORT	4
THE BRONFMAN ARCHIVES	5
MURDER, INC.	6
CHAPTER 2	7
SWISS & NAZI GOLD: JUST PONY UP; DON'T BOTHER WITH FACTS	7
WHERE THE GOLD WENT	7
WHO KNEW WHAT, WHEN?	8
CHAPTER 3	
HILARION: BEING WELL THROUGH	10
EFFORTING TOWARD WELL BEING	10
6/29/97 MASTER HILARION	10
CHAPTER 4	14
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 7/5/97	14
MILITANT TERROR	14
TERROR IN AMERICA	15
A CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT FOR AMENDMENTS	16
ALERT! ALERT! ALERT!	16
WE WILL NEVER BE SATISFIED UNTIL	
ACTUAL FINE PRINT ON ALL BONDS	18
POLITICS AND THE BAR EXPERTS FEAR A RISE IN	
LOCAL SWAT TEAMS	18
CLINTON—SOUL TWIN OF NERO?	19
THE APOCALYPTIC MIND	
WORLD BANK BOOSTS SUPPORT FOR "RUSSIA AT CROSSROADS"	20
JAN. 1, 2001—THAT'S OUR	
SOVEREIGNTY TARGET DATE: BOUCHARD	21
CHAINS OF HUMAN DNA PLANTED IN MICE	21
TIMES CHANGE BUT COLLECTIVIST	
MESSAGE REMAINS CONSTANT	
LOOK, MA: FLUORIDE TOOTHPASTES NOW CARRY WARNING	24
KIDS AND ANGELS	25
AUSTRALIA—GREAT SOUTH LAND OF THE NWO?	25
* * * AMERICA TAKE NOTE * * *	25

THE PAULINE HANSON PHENOMENON	25
CHAPTER 5	27
GEOLOGICAL RED ALERT FOR WEST COAST	27
ALWAYS USE COMMON SENSE 7/3/97 SOLTEC/KORTON	27
7/7/97 #1 HATONN	
CHAPTER 6	30
THE LATEST REPORT FROM JAPAN by Eustace Mullins 6/22/97	30
THE CONSTITUTION OF JAPAN	
USURPATION	31
PUBLIC PROTEST	32
THE CIVIL WAR	32
THE MORAL RESULTS OF A CENTRAL BANK	32
CHAPTER 7	34
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 7/1/97	34
MIND CONTROL: PART I	34
EARLY HISTORY	34
CHEMICAL MIND CONTROL	35
ELECTRONIC IMPLANTS	35
THE I.B.M. 2020 NEURAL IMPLANT	36
BIBLIOGRAPHY	37
ELECTROMAGNETIC MIND CONTROL:	37
PART 2	37
THE NEUROPHONE	38
INFORMATION UNLIMITED	39
SCALAR ELECTROMAGNETICS	40
HAARP	40
BIBLIOGRAPHY:	41
CHAPTER 8	42
HOAXES AND HOLOGRAMS	
OUR ELECTROMAGNETIC UNIVERSE by Calvin Burgin 6/30/97	42
IS LIGHT A WAVE OR A PARTICLE?	42
THE SPECTRUM OF LIGHT	43
THE BLACKBOX	44
RADIATION EXPERIMENT	
THE RAYLEIGH-JEANS THEORY AND OTHER PROBLEMS	44
LUDWIG BOLTZMANN AND THE LAW OF	
EQUAL DISTRIBUTION OF ENERGY	45
WIEN'S LAW	46
MAX PLANCK	46
ALBERT EINSTEIN	48
ALBERT EINSTEIN	
WHAT IS THE SPEED OF LIGHT?	51
WHAT IS LIGHT?	
WHAT IS ELECTRICITY?	
UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER	54

ALL SPACE IS NOT EQUAL:	54
PHYSICISTS FIND AXIS THAT GIVES THE UNIVERSE ORIENTATION	
April 17, 1997	55
CHAPTER 9	57
ATON: YOU ARE NEVER ALONE WHO RECOGNIZE MY PRESENCE	57
ATON, THE ONE LIGHT 6/19/97	57
CHAPTER 10	
WAS JULY 4 MARS LANDING FAKE OR FACADE?	60
SERIOUS QUESTIONS BEHIND SLICK SHOW by Ray Bilger 7/9/97	60
N.A.S.A. photo (Frame 35A72)	64
LATE BREAKING NEWS AS CONTACT GOES TO PRESS:	65
A COVER-UP ON MARS?	66
CHAPTER 11	67
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 7/12/97	67
GLOBAL PLANTATION APPROVES BAIL OUT	67
FREE TRADER	68
ANOTHER DISASTER	68
HANG THE JURY	69
RECYCLED TOXICS DISCOVERED IN FERTILIZERS	69
HELMSLEY TO SELL OFF \$5 BILLION REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS	70
WOODY, HE'S NO DOPE	71
SOME SERVICE	72
SENATOR WANTS TO END EXTRA ATM CHARGES	72
THE \$16-BILLION-PER-YEAR DRUG WAR—AND RISING	73
OTTAWA INVESTS IN CANCER PROJECT	74
WIRELESS AT HOME	75
NOW PROZAC FOR TEENAGE DEPRESSION	76
ANGEL HERE, ANGEL THERE	77
CHAPTER 12	78
HOAXES AND HOLOGRAMS	
OUR ELECTROMAGNETIC UNIVERSE PART II	78
VIRTUAL IS VIRTUE, VIRTUALLY	78
THE DIVINE PROPORTION	79
WHAT IS THE ULTIMATE PARTICLE?	82
HOW MUCH ENERGY IS IN THE VACUUM FLUX?	83
JOHANNES KEPLER	
WHAT IS THE SOURCE OF OUR MEASUREMENT SYSTEMS?	87
CHAPTER 13	89
SOLTEC: RECENT VOLCANIC CLUES TO WHAT'S ON THE WAY	89
7/12/97 SOLTEC	89
PREPARATION IS THE KEY TO SURVIVAL!	90
CHAPTER 14	
WHICH NEWS IS REAL NEWS?	94
WATCH CLOSELY	94
THE REST OF JULY & AUGUST by Ray Bilger 7/20/97	94

CHAPTER 15	98
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 7/17/97	
'MOCK ANTI-TERRORIST ACTION'	
INEXPERIENCED INVESTOR THREAT	98
SHOOT-OUT CAUSES WACO-LIKE CS GAS FIREBALL	98
FBI DIRECTOR SPEAKS STRAIGHT?	99
TURKISH ARMY BRACES FOR ISLAMIC UPRISING	100
INSECT EXPLORERS	101
FILMMAKER PAT MATRISCIANA SUED	
\$16 MILLION SOUGHT IN DAMAGES	101
NANOTUBE CABLE STRONGER THAN STEEL	102
NEUROSCIENCE: BRAIN	103
TRANSPLANT FOR CHICKENS	103
OFFICIAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATE IS FRAUD	104
WELCOME TO CLONAID 6/21/97	105
WELCOME TO CLONAID	105
RAEL CREATES THE FIRST HUMAN CLONING COMPANY	105
LONG LIVE THE ALKIES	106
COLORADO: CRASHED JET'S BOMBS	106
TARGET OF NEW SEARCH	106
ONLY HUMAN	106
CHAPTER 16	108
HOAXES AND HOLOGRAMS	108
OUR ELECTROMAGNETIC UNIVERSE PART III	108
RAMANUJAN	108
FOURIER HOLOGRAMS	108
A QUICK COURSE IN SPHERICAL MATH	
OTHER HARMONIC LOCATIONS	112
CHAPTER 17	
THE NEWS DESK A SPECIAL REPORT	
WARNING! NUTRASWEET IS A NEUROTOXIN! (1994)	
SOME DISEASES TRIGGERED BY ASPARTAME:	
BITTERSWEET ASPARTAME: A DIET DELUSION	119
SPREAD THE WARNING!	
CHAPTER 18	
BAG LIMITS ON ATTORNEYS	120

CHAPTER 1

TERRORIST SCAM: THE GREAT GOLD HEIST

by Eustace Mullins 6/25/97

Studies of the criminal mind prove that a constant determinant in criminal operations is the desire for notoriety, the urge to make "the biggest score in the history of crime". An accompanying desire is the resolve to set a record which no one else will ever be able to equal, a matter of distinction which will endure in the record books. The extortion plot against the government of Switzerland seems certain to make its mark as the most ambitious scam in the history of crime. International in its scope, it was masterminded by the world's most resourceful confidence artists, and backed by limitless amounts of cash and propaganda vehicles to carry out a program unequalled not only for its audacity but also for the brilliance of its planning.

The caper was conceived by billionaire Edgar Bronfman, while watching a rerun of Charlie Chaplin's film, *The Gold Rush*. He turned to an aide at the end of the film, and said, "This is it. We're going to go for the gold." The gold which he intended to seize was Swiss gold, which reputedly had once been Nazi gold, and prior to World War II supposedly had been "Jewish" gold, that is gold held by Jewish people. A hasty calculation convinced the plotters that, at today's prices, this "Jewish" gold today could be valued at \$71 billion, a figure arrived at by "computing" the alleged value of Jewish bank accounts in Switzerland at the outset of World War II. However, Bronfman's aides soon returned with the discouraging report that the record of the claimed amounts was a much more modest amount, \$4 million. Even more dismaying was the revelation that the Truman Administration had promptly appointed a deputy negotiator to conclude a treaty with Switzerland in 1946 by which the government of Switzerland agreed to pay the sum of \$4 million (\$55 millions in today's currency) as a final quitclaim full settlement of all claims against Switzerland for alleged "Nazi" gold. The U.S. negotiator was not someone who could be called insensitive to the Jewish aspects of this dispute. He was Seymour J. Rubin, Jewish, who is now an 83-year-old retired international trade specialist living quietly in Washington.

TERRORISTS IN ACTION

The "experts" of the World Jewish Congress refused to be deterred by the disheartening news of the 1946 settlement of these claims in full. They decided to ignore the 1946 treaty with Switzerland, and to call for the reopening of the claims on more "updated" research. In fact, no research could be carried out. Not only had the alleged accounts in Swiss banks been carried as "numbered" bank accounts, by numbers rather than by names, but the accounts had never been segregated as "Jewish" accounts, "Nazi" accounts, or by other categories. These accounts had been set up in Switzerland solely because of the shrouding of these holdings in the deepest secrecy. To "reopen" the settlement by attempting to trace accounts which went back fifty or sixty years, and which had been established to maintain secrecy, as the Swiss now maintained, would be impossible.

Although most conspirators would have quietly buried their plans after these revelations, the World Jewish Congress operators received the news as a gauntlet thrown down to them, a challenge which they welcomed. In fact, the Zionists have on numerous occasions achieved impressive gains by making seemingly

impossible demands. First of all, by advancing demands which cannot be met, they issue a challenge to both their supporters and their opponents to choose sides, and to go on record either with their support or their opposition. It does not matter how unreasonable the demands are; if they are completely unreasonable, this means that their supporters agree to uphold them even in the most preposterous claims. As for the opponents, their names also go on the record, and can be disposed of later, by the most ruthless means. "Never forgive; never forget", as their motto proudly proclaims.

The Swiss government's initial response to the demands from the World Jewish Congress were firm, but unyielding. However, they were amazed, and then terrified, by the counter-tactics which engulfed them from the conspirators. A worldwide media assault was launched which denounced the Swiss, not only for "stealing" Jewish gold, but also for alleged cooperation with the Nazi government throughout World War II. However, the Swiss government's record during the Second World War showed that its famed neutrality was maintained, not only by the German government, but by the Allied governments as well. It suited the warring nations that a Swiss island of neutrality be observed in order to carry on negotiations and to provide the ideal meeting ground for espionage agents of all the powers. Britain's famed Secret Intelligence Service had its James Bonds roaming freely throughout Switzerland during the war. The U.S. government set up Allen Dulles of the Office of Strategic Services with a full-time espionage office in Switzerland from 1943 to 1945. From this redoubt, he directed a network of American agents in Germany, many of whom established direct contacts with Nazi officials. After the war, Dulles was rewarded by being named the head of the new Central Intelligence Agency.

ONLY ONE SIDE OF THE STORY

In its new assault against Switzerland, the World Jewish Congress was ably abetted by Zionist control of media outlets: the Meyer family at the *Washington Post*; the Sulzbergers at the *New York Times*; the \$10 billion Newhouse newspaper empire which controlled many dailies throughout the United States, and their Canadian and English associates in the Hollinger and Thomson chains, which owned hundreds of daily newspapers in the United States. Always eager to oblige, the cover of *Time* magazine featured a lurid gold swastika as its intellectual contribution to the battle, which was intended to dramatize not only the "missing" Jewish gold, but also the guilt of Switzerland as a Nazi collaborator.

The World Jewish Congress, after the shock of the initial \$71 billion claim against Switzerland had abated, scaled its demands quickly down to a mere \$7 billion. Rumors were put forth that this demand would most likely be finalized at \$500 million; Bronfman intimated that he would refuse to go lower than this "modest" figure. This would still be a very handsome settlement for claims amounting to \$4 million, which had been paid in full in a final settlement negotiated by the United States government in 1946.

Swiss government officials went into shock as the great gold heist proceeded according to schedule. After denouncing the plot as "extortion" and intimidation, the Swiss were met by Bronfman's hard line. He announced that there would be a worldwide boycott of Swiss banks in the financial markets, which could very well result in the "disestablishment" of Switzerland as a financial power. Panicked by this prospect, the Swiss officials suddenly became propitiatory. They announced various plans for "investigating" the claims, promised to set up "humanitarian" funds, and made other amazing concessions, amazing in view of the fact that a group of determined attackers had launched their conspiracy without any evidence that anybody in Switzerland owed them anything.

CHUTZPAH

The effrontery of these demands was considered not at all extraordinary by the claimants because of their long history of such operations. The great gold heist was but the latest chapter in a long list of excessive demands levied against governments throughout the world. Few people outside of the conspiracy had any inkling that this was a typical Talmudic operation, designed to further a plan of worldwide conquest and expropriation, whose long sought goal was to seize all the wealth of the world. By "all", the Talmudists meant exactly that; there would be no exceptions. As the *Jewish Chronicle* stated in its issue of March 26, 1937:

"It is by means of Freemasonry that the Jew, who is a Jew by birth and race, will rule the Universe, with the Crown (Rether) on his head, and the Kingdom (Malkutuh) of the world at his feet." Non-Jewish members of the Masonic lodges seem to ignore the fact that the motto of Freemasonry is to return all the wealth of the world to King Solomon's Temple in Jerusalem. This is why the Rothschilds financed the Jewish "return" to Palestine during the nineteenth century, and why they are considered the patron saints of the State of Israel today. Jacob Rothschild with a single gift financed the building of the entire Knesset or Parliament building. Rothschild Avenue sweeps past it; the Rothschild Museum is nearby. In reality, the State of Israel is little more than a private colony of the house of Rothschild, financed by many billions of dollars extorted from the United States taxpayers each year. Anyone who questions this extortion is denounced as an "antiSemite", and soon finds it impossible to obtain employment anywhere in the United States.

As David Ben-Gurion, one of the founders of the State of Israel, boasted in *Look Magazine*, Feb. 16, 1962, "The United Nations will build a Shrine of the Prophets to serve the federated union of all the continents; this will be the site of the Supreme Court of Mankind, to settle all controversies among the federated continents."

Seen in this context, the great gold heist is but a logical plan in the overall program to return all the wealth of the world to King Solomon's Temple in Jerusalem. Dominated by Masons, the courts in the United States and European nations are already a "Supreme Court" of the Masonic Order, existing solely to promote the transfer of wealth to the conspirators. Remember the propaganda that Supreme Court decisions are "the law of the land". Previously, the *Constitution of the United States of America* was the law of the land. No more. All of its provisions are subject to review and "new interpretations" by the Masons on our Supreme Court, which is but the forerunner of the real Supreme Court which, Ben Gurion informs us, is to be set up at the real seat of power, in Jerusalem.

WACKOS

Anyone who sounds the alarm at this program, which seems well on its way to completion by the year 2000, its announced time table, is denounced in the media and by government officials as a "wacko", a paranoid person who should be institutionalized at once, before he becomes a greater threat to society. Once safely in the hands of Zionist psychiatrists, the offender can be given drugs and electric shock treatment, and his brain lobotomized, the lobes governing decisionmaking and memory removed by radical surgery, so that he will no longer interfere with the program. Since he is now permanently insane, no one will pay any attention to him. Those who join in the World Jewish Congress' mad race for power are hailed

as great statesmen. At the present time, our greatest statesman is Senator Al D'Amato of New York. But, we might well observe, D'Amato is not even Jewish. He is not Jewish, but he is totally dependent on Jewish campaign funds for his upcoming re-election bid. In return for his spearheading the great gold heist from Switzerland through his office in Washington, D'Amato stands to reap millions in Jewish contributions for his re-election. According to R.J. Moravek, D'Amato agreed to use his Washington post as chairman of the Senate Banking Committee to throw the entire weight of the United States government behind the extortion plot against Switzerland. The Clinton White House has cooperated in the extortion plot by issuing a 200-page "Eizenstat Report" under the official imprimatur of the United States government, which claims that the Swiss confiscated the Jewish gold. Eizenstat was formerly secretary for Jewish affairs in the Carter White House. He has always been a loyal Zionist wheelhorse in Washington.

The "Eizenstat Report" ignores the facts, which are easily verifiable. In 1939, more than \$250 million in Jewish accounts in Switzerland was transferred to accounts in the United States. In April 1941, President Franklin D. Roosevelt "froze" these funds, claiming that they were really German accounts. After World War II, a mere \$500,000 was returned by the United States government to Jews claiming these accounts. The rest of the \$250 million was spent by the Roosevelt Administration.

SWISS RESISTANCE

Today, Swiss citizens have been infuriated by the abject acceptance of the World Jewish Congress demands by Swiss officials. The Swiss political party, ASIN, held a huge rally in Bern headed by Christopher Blocher. Another Swiss patriot, Arnold Roller, declared, "Never in this century has Swiss independence and neutrality been so threatened. The Central Bank and the federal government are too weak to fight off this blackmail."

There is now a strong "anti-government" movement throughout Switzerland to replace its craven officials with genuine Swiss patriots. Americans can take heart from the fact that, in this worldwide conspiracy, there are still pockets of resistance. Meanwhile, the media proclaims in the United States that to be "anti-government" means that you are a Timothy McVeigh seeking to blow up government buildings. The answer to this falsehood is that we are loyal Americans trying to fight off subversion of our government by arrogant outsiders. Bronfman has boasted that he brought the mighty DuPont family to their knees. Today, he holds the controlling interest in the DuPont factories.

In the Jewish community, there is growing concern that Bronfman's drive to collect billions from the Swiss has little to do with Jewish affairs and much to do with his own personal ambitions. On April 14, 1997, the Central Rabbinical Court of the United States received a legal complaint from the World Council of Orthodox Jewish Communities charging Bronfman with misrepresentation and mismanagement in his drive to collect funds for "survivors". The complaint states that "survivors will be fortunate to receive any amount from the billions extorted by the World Jewish Congress."

THE RUBIN REPORT

Another blow to the Bronfman conspiracy appeared in a feature story in the Sunday *New York Times*, May 25, 1997, by Francis X. Clines.

The headline is "Wartime Envoy on Nazi Gold Bristles at Hindsight". It is an extensive interview with Seymour J. Rubin, who finalized the original treaty with the Swiss government in 1946 which settled claims of the "Nazi gold". Mr. Rubin said of the treaty's enactment, "There never was any great controversy at all." He continues, "The accusation now that we pooped out in a basic blunder on the part of Mr. Truman seems to me pandering to Al D'Amato and maybe the Jewish organizations as well. Basically, I think Mr. Eizentstat took a look at what the public pressures are and then decided that one of the things he could do was fault the U.S. delegation back in 1946."

As a government official still working at the age of 83, Mr. Rubin noted that he had been working in Washington since 1939. He might have raised the question as to why Stuart Eizenstat, now an Under Secretary of Commerce under President Clinton, was essentially interfering in what would normally be a State Department operation. Of course he would not be criticized by Clinton's Secretary of State Madeleine Albright, who, after being appointed as the first woman to hold this prestigious position, suddenly discovered that she was Jewish. For five years previously, numerous published stories about her background had pointed out that she was Jewish. She claimed that she never read them. Certainly she would throw no obstacles in the path of a fellow-Jew, Stu Eizenstat, who was using his official U.S. government office to carry on a conspiracy for the World Jewish Congress

THE BRONFMAN ARCHIVES

And what of the head of the World Jewish Congress, Edgar Bronfman, the mastermind of the assault on the Swiss government? The great gold heist is a fitting climax to the history of the Bronfman family. The Bronfman family history is illuminated by an important new book, *The Rise and Fall of the Jewish Mobster*, by Albert Fried. This work was dramatized on the Arts and Entertainment television network on May 28, 1997. Fried points out that Jews were persuaded to go into the illicit liquor business by a well-known entrepreneur in New York, Arnold Rothstein. His youthful protegés included such rising Jewish stars as Meyer Lansky, Bugsy Siegel, and Gurrah Shapiro. However, Rothstein strayed from his own recommendations when he realized that there was much more money in dope. In *The World Order*, I state on p. 170:

"Although Rothstein was widely known as a gambler, this was a cover for his rise to eminence as Mr. Big of the U.S. drug trade. After he was shot in 1928, Louis Lepke, head of Murder Inc., confiscated over \$5 million worth of heroin from Rothstein's hotel room."

When Prohibition became the law of the land in the United States, Rothstein's protegés needed a source outside of thee United States to supply their goods. They found it in the Bronfman family of Canada, which became known as the Canadian end of the notorious "Reinfeld Syndicate", which controlled the flow of illicit booze into the United States. Sammy Bronfman had begun his career as a hotel operator in Canada. His Frontier Hotel was little more than a house of prostitution. In going over his books, he found that he was making more money from the drinks served to his customers than he was collecting from his prostitutes. He resolved to go into the liquor business, a decision which ultimately made his family one of the five richest in the world. Detroit became the principal port of entry [of booze] into the United States. Fried says that at the peak of the profession, fifty thousand people were engaged in the bootlegging business in Detroit, almost as many as were manufacturing cars and trucks. A native Detroiter, Moe Dalitz, had become a lifelong criminal at the age of 14, organizing the Purple Gang to burn out competitors of his

father's dry cleaning business. After moving the bootlegging operations to Cleveland, he ran the Cleveland Syndicate for years. He left only after realizing that Bugsy Siegel had discovered a gold mine in Las Vegas. He had Siegel assassinated, and his henchman, Gus Greenbaum, walked into the Flamingo Hotel and snarled, "We're taking over." Moe Dalitz reigned as the boss of Las Vegas for forty years. When he died, the *New York Times* hailed him as a "great philanthropist", citing his many contributions to Jewish organizations such as the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith.

MURDER, INC.

Faced with the Talmudic demands from the group which intended [and intends] to seize the wealth of the entire world, the Swiss found themselves almost helpless. Having been legitimate businessmen for centuries, they had no experiences which would enable them to deal with Murder Inc. They faced not only the power of the Bronfman bootleg billions, now legitimized as the great Seagram Liquor corporation, but also the power of the World Jewish Congress and the principal media outlets of the world, which were its captive and wholly-owned propagandists. Condemned as "Nazi collaborators" by the international propagandists, the Swiss have no means of recourse. With the full power of the entire United States government employed to legitimize the false claims of the World Jewish Congress, the Swiss seem unwilling even to cite the definitive settlement of 1946, which, according to worldwide contract law, was a final settlement of all such claims and agreed to by all the contracting parties. Now the United States portrays itself to the world as a foolish prostitute who claims, "I didn't get enough money for my morals when I sold myself to the World Jewish Congress." We can only hope that the Swiss people will rise up to deny this extortion, and will sweep out its craven officials, who are all too eager to comply with the most outrageous demands of the Talmudists. It is a well known fact in the criminal world that when you pay off a blackmailer, it is only the first installment. How much will the Swiss be forced to pay before they acknowledge the nature of their enemy?

Editor's note: See related article on this subject on page 2, The News Desk. It seems this exploit has really agitated the Swiss people into unprecedented action.

CHAPTER 2

SWISS & NAZI GOLD: JUST PONY UP; DON'T BOTHER WITH FACTS

Editor's note: We again thank the June 23, 1997 issue of Spotlight *for the following article.*

The American "free press" is keeping secrets about "Nazi gold" in Switzerland, and the Swiss know it.

Exclusive to the *Spotlight* by Georgory Douglas:

On May 27, a syndicated article written by Jim Hoagland of the *Washington Post* appeared in newspapers across the United States.

The thrust of the article "Mining the Lessons of Nazi Gold", is that the wicked Swiss dealt with the equally wicked government of the Third Reich during the course of the Second World War and during the course of its mendacious dealings, garnered large amounts of gold which, as we are now being repeatedly told, belongs to Holocaust survivors. This gold, according to all the organs of the American media, is still sequestered in Swiss vaults and should, by all rights, be given to the heirs of Holocaust victims.

The vehicle used by Hoagland and his fraternity of professional wailers is a long report released by Stuart Eizenstat, U.S. undersecretary of commerce. This report is lauded as "skillful" and a "potent force in international affairs today".

The statement is made that Messers Eizenstat and his mentor, William Clinton, should goad not only the Swiss but all other neutral governments who ever had business dealings with the Third Reich to make some kind of payment to Holocaust survivors regardless of whether these survivors had money in Swiss, Swedish, Spanish or Portuguese banks.

pict eizenstat

Undersecretary Of State Eizenstat

No doubt Clinton, himself a peerless example of high moral values and personal character, will be expected to force the world's banking systems to contribute billions to the efforts of Eizenstat, Edgar Bronfman of the World Jewish Congress (WJC) and their official U.S. government spokesman, Sen. Alfonse D'Amato (R-N.Y.), who heads the Senate Banking Committee. It should be noted that, before forming a symbiotic partnership with the Bronfman group, D'Amato spent enormous amounts of the taxpayers' money in a fruitless public relations attack on the dubious business activities of the sitting president and his vulpine wife.

WHERE THE GOLD WENT

In spite of all the alleged efforts put into the production of the Eizenstat report, somehow the undersecretary managed to overlook the overriding fact that the great bulk of Jewish funds deposited in Swiss banks prior to 1945 had been sent by the Swiss to the United States for safekeeping, just after the outbreak of WWII in Europe. There are many documents in the U.S. archives that also prove beyond a doubt that in 1941, the U.S. government, acting on specific orders of President Franklin Roosevelt, froze these identified Jewish assets, which amounted to more than \$250 million, and of which the United States reluctantly returned only \$500,000 after the end of the war.

A logical person might well wonder how the Swiss can return assets which were not looted by the Germans or themselves, but by FDR, fighter for freedom and beau ideal of the ultra-left in the United States and the Soviet Union.

mr. roth

pict. of gold bars

WHO KNEW WHAT, WHEN?

The bosses of the American mainstream media are fully aware of this wholesale theft because the documents covering it are readily available in U.S. archives and have been repeatedly consulted over the past several years by members of the same media that is now screeching for the evil Swiss to please send billions in gold to Bronfman's private club. As usual, the media enjoys hoisting its flabby bulk up onto a creaking hobby-horse called "Moral Issues" and chanting whatever message their publishers and ideological friends hand to them.

Though the facts at issue might be at direct variance to the moralistic squealings now seen in print and watched on television, the U.S. media cares not one whit. At one time, the American press—and later television—were the only means by which the public were informed about the world and national affairs. The media could be easily controlled and directed by the governmental bureaucracy and their supporters and the only messages that the public received were such views as were acceptable to those who directed the messages. With the fortunate advent of an alternative media, this monopoly of news has begun to atrophy but members of the mainstream media are so arrogant and so ignorant of reality that they go on their way lecturing their readers and viewers as if they were actually believed and respected.

They pontificate at every opportunity on their favorite foods, media and sports heroes and their owner's political views. Possessed of a purulent itch to be noticed and a misguided sense of self-importance, these intellectually empty drums have made a good deal of unwelcome noise in decades past. Their self-esteem blinds them to the fact that their noise and arrogance is now generally ignored and their advice rejected.

In this case, the shrill, ideological and arrogant mouthing have had a decidedly negative impact on those very persons upon whom the moral avatars of U.S. political—and economic—life desire to control, the

citizens of Switzerland. They, it should be noted, must approve by public referendum, the expenditure by their government of the billions of dollars in specious reparations demanded by the American media to nourish their friends and constituents. The outflow of mendacious, unprincipled and fictitious sewage dumped with glee on the Swiss nation has resulted, not in a frantic desire on Switzerland's part to empty the vaults of their banking system into the pockets of the few, but in a very strong and entirely united desire to do quite the opposite.

Among other inconvenient facts suppressed by the media are those that prove that many prominent members of the American business and political community did a remarkable amount of lucrative business with the despised Nazi government throughout the course of WWII, mostly through the financial institutions of the Swiss.

Although the Swiss are noted for their protective secrecy concerning the nature of their depositors, should they grow tired enough of the rising tide of vicious and fictive attacks leveled against them, it might be most interesting if they opened their books to all and sundry and allowed the world to see just who dealt with Hitler and for how much in Third Reich gold.

CHAPTER 3

HILARION: BEING WELL THROUGH EFFORTING TOWARD WELL BEING

Editor's note: The following writing is by the Ascended Master known as Hilarion of the Fifth Ray, the Emerald (green) Ray of Healing, among the seven great "Rainbow Masters" communicating at this time to help us through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing. See Journal #7 called THE RAINBOW MASTERS for more background on this important group of teachers, plus earlier writings by them. Refer to the Back Page for Journal ordering information.

6/29/97 MASTER HILARION

Good evening and thank you for sitting to write for many who enquire by petition that they might help their brothers more effectively. I am Master Hilarion, come in the Light of Creator Source. I am most closely associated with the Emerald (green) Ray of Creator's Spectral Expression. Take a moment to find peace within your Heart.

Many these days have what they label as "health" concerns of the physical. Health is! Health is neither good nor bad, it simply IS. What many actually ask for (and many others only give lip service to, for reasons of sustained attention-getting) is a state of "well being" over that of illness or unbalance.

We see many efforting to fix or cure an unbalanced body with all sorts of physical remedies. This is fine—as long as the patient BELIEVES in the remedy, for the mental state is key to the re-balancing of the body.

To truly understand and heal, one must realize the TRUE cause or nature of a condition. First and foremost is the fact that YOU are NOT your body, and YOU (the NON-physical you) manifest (create) your own reality AT ALL TIMES.

You ones will say, "I do NOT want to feel sick!" But at the same time you will dwell upon (pump energy into) the feeling of sickness, and for most it will last until you either get bored enough or distracted enough to stop dwelling upon that which is causing the unbalanced state.

Likewise, illness is often utilized by you ones as a tool for getting the attention of others and keeping that attention focus as something to fill perceived voids of loneliness. In this case, you don't really "want" your health to be in balance.

Rather, focus your thoughts upon that which brings forth inner fulfillment and not upon that which causes you to get upset or frustrated. You can try to carry the burden of an entire family, country, or even planet, if you wish. But I will tell you here and now that your reason for coming into the physical experience at this time was NOT to alleviate another's responsibility. It is, in fact, to learn to become a more responsible co-creator, ultimately with the One who created you.

You each have strengths and weaknesses. You each must learn to focus not upon that which is lacking in your life, but rather, be thankful for what you have and what you have accomplished thus far. In this way the energy patterns you radiate attract that which leads to fulfillment.

Many of you are efforting to get family members to see and hear The Truth as offered forth in this publication. This is indeed fine and noble—and usually involves quite a bit of heart energy on your part. When your enthusiasm is met with the negative responses that are so common these days, you ones are left feeling somewhat frustrated and drained.

In this drained or fatigued (low-energy and low-frequency) state, you are most vulnerable to the influences of the adversarial forces. This is when doubt creeps in and you ones will question your "reality" as to what is truly REAL. You each must go through this discernment exercise for self, for it is YOUR reality that is in question—not mine, and certainly not God's! Let us back up a bit and examine some of these more typical causes for arriving at the point of doubt. For many it will be inner anxiety of going against the "norm" of that which society dictates as being acceptable. For many of you, your hearts soar when you hear Truth, and you want to share this inner enthusiasm with any and all who will listen.

Again, I say to you that this is fine. But, let me add that YOU cannot actually shift another's reality. You can offer insights and data for evaluation, but each must discern for themselves what is the correct path for them.

Now, when another rejects your reality (beliefs), you do not have to take it personally. However, we of the Hosts see that many of you carry this "rejection" response as a burden of guilt—that you erroneously view as responsibility for that of your family, friends, and loved ones.

You cannot "short circuit" the lessons of another. When you try to take on this role, the logical response from the other will often be anger and even disgust.

Allow each to find their own way. And, more importantly, learn to release the inner GUILT that weighs on your heart.

Now, why have I introduced this subject of guilt? Because, for most of you who are sick, there is a primary cause that will be at the root of nearly any unbalanced condition. That cause is guilt, in one form or another.

Many of you of Ground Crew have a tremendous capacity for compassion within your being and this can predispose you to carry quite a large amount of unnecessary baggage for your brethren. Balancing out this tendency is, in fact, why some of you were compelled to become part of the awakening efforts of the Earth's population at this time.

Please remember that there is wisdom in approaching any and all situations with balance. Sometimes the most giving action you can take concerning loved ones is to allow them to simply walk off the spiritual path altogether and find their own way in their own unique manner.

This is perhaps the hardest thing for you ones to do. In the searching to understand, you can know that there is only One Ultimate Truth and ALL shall, in the end, find their way Home (back to Source).

God monitors heart intent. When you effort to assist another, it is noted. When you beat-up upon self for some perceived failure, this too is noted, for it is an indicator of your progress with respect to TRUE understanding of who you are and why you are there.

There is absolutely NO need to punish self. You may do so, as you wish, in utilization of your gift from Creator of free-will choice, but there is truly no need.

Seek within for understanding of that which is offered here in LOVE. Choose for yourself the path you will take, and know that each path will be filled with its unique challenges so that YOU may test YOUR reality and YOUR awarenesses.

If you choose a harsh path, then so be it, for that is YOUR choice. Look not for sympathy from those who tried to offer to you wisdom that you then rejected.

On the other side of the issue, remember that YOU are not required to concern yourself past the point of offering a helping hand if the help is rejected. You did your part in the offering. Release the emotional pressures associated with the rejection, and look forward to the next opportunity that will come your way to assist. These emotional pressures are the seeds that grow into illness and physical degeneration if allowed to accumulate.

Most of you who are guided to read these messages are not just emotional beings, but emotional beings with a highly attuned sense of compassion for your fellow travelers along the paths of life. Because of a Higher Sense of Connectedness regarding this effort—that "all is connected to all" and "as one grows, so grows all"—you each want to help those whom you perceive as having need.

Learn to move through each experience and not get stuck in those seemingly negative emotional "micro-realities" that can seem to invalidate your reality, and you as a being, IF YOU ALLOW SAME.

It is perfectly fine to feel the invalidating emotional emanations of a "rejection" experience, but it is quite unwise to allow them to build into a state of doubt and frustrating "reality" shifts FOR YOU. Move through the experience and leave behind the garbage and take with you the knowledge gained from having the experience.

You cannot be held responsible for the "reality" or choices of another. If your intent is goodly (Godly) and you KNOW that you have acted from or spoken from a position of love, then please realize that there is truly nothing more that you can do for another.

Release the guilt that you hold onto!

Allow for the liberation of your heart and you will find that a brighter reality does exist and that the physical body will respond to the newer, lighter (en-Light-ened) you.

This exercise in balance is also a key to releasing the unwanted insulation (fat) that you ones place around yourselves in order to buffer the emotional impact of negatively focused energy pulses.

Perfect "health"—whether it be "good" or "bad"—is what you already have. So quit asking for health, and start asking for that which will bring forth inner balance and understanding of the TRUE cause of your un-balanced physical state.

Seek first WITHIN to find the answers to that which ails you, and you will be well—well on your way to achieving physical rebalance of the body.

I am Master Hilarion of the Healing Emerald Ray. I come at this time as Elder Brother and Teacher so that you who seek will have insights and tools to use, if that be your choice.

In the Light and in service to Creator Source, may these words find Understanding within, for as Understanding leads to Peace and Balance, so shall your body reflect same. Salu!

CHAPTER 4

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 7/5/97

MILITANT TERROR

From the INTERNET, to dwolf@sirinet.net, from <etimes@teleport.com>, 6/16/97, [quoting:]

Jannie; I just recieved some info from government sources which might shed some light on the Pentagon cover-up of Gulf War Syndrome.

Iraq used only the Microplasma fermentas incognita and chemical weapons (referred to as cocktails) on Coalition Forces which had a delayed response on most Gulf veterans. Iraq threatened to use Anthrax on Gulf troops when we had them on the run at the close of the war. That's why orders were made by the Coalition High Command to let the Republican Guard go.

Now Iraq has enough Anthrax and plague (botulism) to kill every living creature on Earth a million times. They are smuggling it into the U.S and planning an attack on major U.S. Cities, possibly this summer. (July 27 is one possible date.)

All these biological agents were sold by American and European companies to Iraq. The Clintons are on the verge of being impeached, with main thrust for this action coming from the Republicans. The only reason this has not taken place is that Clinton and the Democrats have threatened to expose the Republicans involvement in the sale of these biological agents to Iraq.

A standoff and cover-up has resulted, which is holding Gulf War veterans hostage from getting treatment. 10,000 to 15,000 have died and 50,000-100,000 are infected including spouses, offspring, and contactees. It is spreading to the civilian population.

Now the threat of terrorism. A pint of Anthrax could wipe out several large cities. The U.S. Air Force has already activated a SAC Base and is equipping C-130s with incendiary bombs to torch any city infected. There have also been decontamination units set up around N.Y.

Last spring terrorists delivered Anthrax to the Jewish Defense League Headquarters 6 blocks from the White House. Within moments all of the key White House figures, naturally including the first family, and key cabinet officials were whisked to *Air Force 1* and headed to PINE GAP, Australia (Black Project Base). That naturally did not make the mainstream press.

Other events that did not make the main stream was the fact that 2 Iraq cell women were captured in Vancouver, Wash. last winter with a vial each of Anthrax and plague in their private parts. Eleven Iraq cell women were also recently arrested in Iowa with similar vials in similar places.

I just recently saw on a major TV network that the U.S. Govternment is on a crash terrorist training program, primarily for Biological Warfare. I know this sounds a little extreme, but it must be taken seri-

ously and Americans must be aware and prepared. [End quoting]

TERROR IN AMERICA

The United States Has Become A Key Part Of The Muslim Radical Network

From the INTERNET (part of previous file), 6/16/97, [quoting:]

By Richard Cole, Associated Press Writer

NEW YORK—At this moment, militant Islamic groups labeled by the State Department as terrorist organizations—Hezbollah, Palestine Islamic Jihad, Hamas and others—operate quietly within U.S. borders from New York to San Diego.

These groups collect U.S. dollars to send to their cells overseas. They have used the U.S. to buy their equipment, U.S. Internet sites to communicate and U.S. universities and foundations to meet and plan.

"Almost everyone of these groups has a presence in the United States today," says John O'Neil who headed the FBI's counter-terrorism unit until last year and heads those efforts for the FBI in New York. "A lot of these groups now have the capability and the support infrastructure in the United States to attack us here if they choose to."

The United States—seen as the Great Satan by many Islamic radicals—has become a key part of their terrorist network.

Bitter Middle East rivalries of Sunni vs. Shiite and Iranians vs. Arabs have eased into America's melting pot. And from this melding arises a web of shifting alliances, faceless killers, money men and transient bases.

The Issue is a difficult one for law enforcement officials and lawmakers. Nearly all of this nation's estimated 6 million Muslims are law-abiding citizens, many seeking the American Dream.

"There are fanatics in every religion and as long as they do not carry their fanaticism to a terrorist act there is nothing wrong in their beliefs," says Seif Ashmawy, the Egyptian-American publisher of the *Voice of Peace*, a monthly publication on Muslim issues.

"But there is a very small minority that are willing to impose their ideas by force. Those are the people we should worry about." Take this scenario: A Hezbollah terrorist tapes a light bulb to the track of a New York City subway station. Minutes later, a passing train smashes the bulb, releasing spores of Anthrax, one of the deadliest toxins known to humanity. Within hours, subway ventilation fans have circulated the poison throughout the system, and people begin dying—perhaps 200,000, perhaps more.

"The death toll would be horrific. You could cripple the country," says Pentagon analyst Peter Probst, whose classified report "Terror 2000" identifies this and similar scenarios. "And you can't bury the victims. You have to burn them. There would be funeral pyres throughout the city." A terrorist attack with

Anthrax or Sarin gas, or a World Trade Center-style bomb "dirtied" with enough nuclear material to make parts of the city uninhabitable is almost inevitable, a 1996 Senate report warned.

Defense Secretary William Cohen said much the same at a conference on terrorism last month. "This scenario of a nuclear, biological or chemical weapon in the hands of a terrorist cell or rogue nation is not only plausible, it's really quite real," he warned. The United States already has seen such work; the 1993 World Trade Center bombing that killed six and injured 1,000. The group included Islamic radicals from Palestine, Sadan [sic] and Egypt as well as U.S. converts. The same group had planned to bomb other New York City landmarks. The alleged bomb-builder, the mysterious Ramzi Yousef, plotted to blow up a dozen U.S. airliners in a single day and practiced in the Philippines with a nitroglycerin charge that killed an airline passenger. In Saudi Arabia, the FBI is still trying to unravel the possible alliance of Iran, Shiite militant Sunni radicals and the world's leading financier of terror, Osama bin Lader, in two bombings that killed 24 U.S. solders and two Indians.

Here in the United States, authorities fret about "sleeper cells" of Hezbollah terrorists awaiting orders from Tehran, or zealots acting on the influence of Sheik Omar Abdel-Rahman, the blind Egyptian cleric and religious leader to World Trade Center conspirators. Rahman still exhorts followers now from a federal prison.

U.S.-based Hamas activists arrested in Israel told their interrogators they had shadowed prominent Jews in the Chicago area. Such terrorists "are expanding their networks, improving their skills and sophistication, and working to stage more spectacular attacks," warns acting CIA Director George Tenet.

To stage attacks in the United States and elsewhere, Islamic extremists are making full use of U.S. banks, telecommunications and freedom of assembly.

In January 1995, President Clinton froze \$800,000 held in accounts the government said were controlled by terrorist groups. Most experts believe that is only a drop in the bucket.

[End quoting]

Readers must **use discernment** when reading the above type of articles—especially from the Internet—since we usually have no way to verify them. However, it certainly appears that things are heating up very fast.

A CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT FOR AMENDMENTS

ALERT! ALERT! ALERT! ALERT!

From AMERICANS FOR AMERICA, INC., a Fax, 6/25/97, [quoting:]

Two Virginia congressmen were among six sponsors of legislation introduced yesterday aimed at making it easier for states to begin the process of amending the *Constitution* without depending on Congress.

Republican Rep. Thomas Bliley Jr. and Democratic Rep. Virgil Goode Jr. are backing a bill under which states could send an amendment proposal to Congress after it wins approval by two-thirds of the legislatures. It would take a two-thirds vote of the House and Senate to kill it.

The proposed amendment would have to return to the states for ratification by three-fourths of the legislatures.

Bliley, the chief sponsor, said the proposal provides a "more effective method" for states to become involved.

"This amendment gives the states and people the power to amend the *Constitution* as the framers intended," he said.

Bliley said the proposal would not supplant the two existing means for changing the *Constitution*—an amendment proposed and passed by two-thirds of each house of Congress and agreed to by three-fourths of the states, or by convening a constitutional convention called for by the states.

Goode said the *Constitution* would have been amended years ago to limit the terms of federal lawmakers and require a balanced federal budget had the proposed new process been in place.

The bill is supported by Republican Govs. George Allen of Virginia and Mike Leavitt of Utah. Sen. John Ashcroft, R. Mo., introduced a similar proposal near the end of the last session of Congress. [End quoting]

The Elite are digging up any and all excuses they can think of to open up a constitutional convention so they can replace it with the **NEW WORLD ORDER CONSTITUTION.**

<u>WE WILL NEVER</u> BE SATISFIED UNTIL...

Excerpted from *THE JUBILEE*, Letters to editor, May/June 1997, [quoting:]

Here is something that I thought was quite nervy when listening to STV Saskatoon, Sask. Canada, Television. It was on the *Shirley Program* (11 A.M.) on Sept. 24 or 26 when she had two men from the Jewish Congress who said, "We will never be satisfied until we have killed all the gentiles or made them slaves." I thought this would have been important enough to hit the front page of every paper across Canada, but it was to my knowledge only printed in the *Winston's Journal* (Barry Huddleston, 3902-45a, Ponoka, Alberta, Canada. T4J1B6). Copies of this are supposed to be able to be gotten from STV Toronto. Barry went broke trying to publish this journal. He was a good publisher but did not get enough support and was harassed too.

May God Bless you so you can continue his work. Yours sincerely, Chase, B.C. [End quoting]

The Elite are getting very bold now. They think they cannot be stopped. Let's take on the challenge and show them who really has the power.

Always remember—with our trust in GOD nothing is impossible.

ACTUAL FINE PRINT ON ALL BONDS

Excerpted from "THE MONEY REFORM ACT", flyer by Dan Pilla, Sr., [quoting:]

"...additional taxes may be levied on all taxable property, if required to pay the principal and interest of this Note, without limitation as to the rate or the amount". [End quoting]

Do you still think your investments are safe **anywhere** in the hands of the Elite money handlers??

POLITICS AND THE BAR

From the *Vacaville Reporter*, June 21, [quoting:]

Three lawyers, including a former state senator who represented Solano County, are suing the State Bar of California for violating their *First Amendment* rights.

The lawsuit points out that membership in the State Bar is mandatory for practicing lawyers. However, the organization takes a political stand on issues they don't necessarily agree with.

Frankly, lawyers don't agree on much. They earn a living by sparring. So when they disagree, they handle it in the way they know best: by litigation. In this case, they make a good point.

This trio believed the State Bar should be limited to matters of lawyer competence and discipline, and lobby only for measures which have widespread support among bar members.

It makes sense to us.

(Former state Sen. Barry) Keene points out that lawyers constitute special interests and cannot be trusted to support bills that are good for the public but bad for lawyers. [End quoting]

Hopefully, these lawyers will do something about stopping their peers from taking away their clients' rights, also. There's little likelihood that their clients will have any sympathy for them until they do.

EXPERTS FEAR A RISE IN LOCAL SWAT TEAMS

From CHICAGO SUN-TIMES, 6/22/97, [quoting:]

More and more police departments across the nation are creating paramilitary SWAT teams and expanding their activation, a controversial trend that police scholars refer to as the militarization of civilian police.

The explosive growth and expanding mission of SWAT teams have, in turn, led to complaints that an

occupying army is marching through America's streets—that they are too aggressive, too heavily armed, too scary—and that they erode the public's perception of police as public servants.

"It's a very dangerous thing, when you're telling cops they're soldiers and there's an enemy out there," said Joseph McNamara, former chief of police in San Jose, Calif., and Kansas City, Mo., who is now at the Hoover Institute at Stanford University. "I don't like it at all."

In a new study, police researcher Peter Kraska and his colleagues have documented the explosive growth of SWAT, which stands for Special Weapons and Tactics. In a nationwide survey of 600 law enforcement agencies serving cities with populations with 50,000 or more, the researchers found that 90 percent now have active SWAT teams, compared with 60 percent in the early 1980s.

Even in rural communities and smaller cities, the researchers have found that two to every three departments now boast a SWAT team—a phenomenon Kraska compares to "militarizing *Mayberry*", he said, referring to the fictional small town in the Andy Griffith television show.

Yet more important than the raw numbers, Kraska says, the SWAT mission has expanded. Once limited to highly specialized actions, such as dealing with barricaded gunmen or hostage-takers, the SWAT teams are now increasingly engaged in more standard police work. There is a boom in "high-risk warrant work", including "no-knock entries". The work is mostly related to the war on drugs, and by extension, "gang suppression".

"Where the SWAT teams were once deployed a few times a year, they are now used for all kinds of police work—dozens of calls, hundreds of calls a year," said Kraska, a professor of police studies at Western Kentucky University. "In SWAT units formed since 1980, their use has increased by 538 percent."

Critics warn that the growing use of paramilitary-style police units threatens the idea of a civilian police force—just as many law enforcement authorities begin to apply a technique known as "community policing", putting more cops on the street and letting them interact with citizens.

"Despite the conventional wisdom that community policing is sweeping the nation, the exact opposite is happening," McNamara said. "The police and their communities ought to think seriously about this. Is there a need for SWAT teams? Yes, for highly specialized functions. But the police love these units, and this is a disastrous image to project." [End quoting]

The militarizing of the police is a well planned scheme. The Elite want the military on practically every corner and lots of swat teams to intimidate all of us to give up without a fight.

CLINTON—SOUL TWIN OF NERO?

Excerpted from *FLASHPOINT*, June 1997, [quoting:]

pict.of nero clinton

While Rome burned, it is said that Nero, the bloody Roman Caesar, fiddled. Now America, the New Rome, is being spoiled and ruined, being turned over to foreign money interests and immoral, homosexual-abortionist weirdos. And while the horrible, silent destruction is being carried out, head of state Bill Clinton, like Nero, continues to merrily play his musical instrument, the saxophone (or is it the sexaphone?).

If there is any doubt that Clinton is a modern-day Nero, a comparison of the two men's shockingly similar physical appearance is enlightening. Look at this image of a statue of Nero (AD 37-68) and then compare it to the visage of President Bill Clinton. Is there not a striking similarity?

Nero and Clinton also have this in common: Each has plotted against the people, and each has relished the branding of innocent Christians as scapegoats. [End quoting]

WOW!!

THE APOCALYPTIC MIND

From SOCIAL STUDIES newsletter, no date, [quoting:]

A six-month-old red heifer in Israel is being hailed as a sign of the coming Messiah and decried as a walking atomic bomb, reports the *Boston Globe*. Of a variety believed extinct for several centuries, the heifer is seen as the missing link needed for religious Jews to rebuild their ancient temple in Jerusalem. "Sacrificing the animal in its third year and using its ashes in a purification rite would allow Jews to return 2,000 years later to the Temple site, a spot holy to both Jews and Muslims."

Avaraham Poraz, a member of parliament for the leftist Meretz Party, said, "That now represents the risk of a massive religious war. If the fanatics get hold of it and try to take over the Temple Mount, God knows what will happen. [End quoting]

Look out for the coming Jihad!!

WORLD BANK BOOSTS SUPPORT FOR "RUSSIA AT CROSSROADS"

Excerpted from *THE FINANCIAL POST*, 6/7/97, [quoting:]

The World Bank, sensing an economic turnaround in Russia is at hand, is significantly stepping up support for the country, bank officials said Friday.

"Russia is at the crossroads of its economic reform program," Johannes Linn, the bank's vice-president, told reporters.

"We have a tremendous window of opportunity to help accelerate Russia's economic recovery."

The lending agency said its board approved nearly US\$885 million in loans for Russia on Thursday.

The biggest credit—a US\$600 million structural adjustment loan—will help the country overhaul and stabilize its economy.

The bank, which makes development loans, is expected to approve another \$800 million credit by the end of this month as part of a program to lend Russia up to \$6 billion in 1997-98. If fully carried out, the program would nearly double the bank's assistance to Russia.

Linn acknowledged there were risks in the stepped-up lending program, but argued that now was the time for the bank to boost its support of Russia's reforms. "The turnaround is just about here," he said. [End quoting]

Don't ever trust a "dead bear"; it's common knowledge they often come to life when you least expect it. **Russia isn't known as the bear for no reason.**

Also, the Communists said the West would sell (or give) them the rope to hang us.

JAN. 1, 2001—THAT'S OUR SOVEREIGNTY TARGET DATE: BOUCHARD

Excerpted from *THE GAZETTE*, *MONTREAL*, 6/14/97, [quoting:]

CHIBOUGAMAU—Quebec Premier Lucien Bouchard cleared up confusion about when he plans to make Quebec a sovereign country, yesterday, saying his target is by Jan. 1, 2001.

Yesterday marks the first time Bouchard has clearly defined what he has meant when he repeatedly promised that Quebec will enter the next millennium as a sovereign country.

While experts agree the millennium starts in 2001, popular belief often puts it at the year 2000. Symbolically, 2000 also carries more weight with many people than 2001. Reports of his speeches have also sometimes referred to 2000 instead of the millennium or 2001.

Consequently, even many of Bouchard's own supporters have taken his remarks to mean Quebec will be sovereign by the year 2000.

But yesterday Bouchard said that's a year too soon.

"(The millennium) begins the first year, not the year before," Bouchard answered in response to a question from *The Gazette*. [End quoting]

Sounds like the Elite and their "divide and conquer" tactics.

PLANTED IN MICE

Excerpted from UNKNOWN NEWSPAPER CLIP, 5/30/97, [quoting:]

Scientists have managed to insert large chunks of human DNA in mice, an astonishing breakthrough that will allow a new generation of research into genes, birth defects and genetic diseases.

Researchers have put human DNA into mice for years, but not on this scale. Some of the newly developed mice have a complete human chromosome—one of the rod-like structures that hold genes—containing some 50 times the amount of DNA scientists had been able to transfer before.

Not only did the transplanted genes work normally, but some of the mice were also able to pass the chunks of DNA they got onto their offspring.

Nearly all the mice looked normal, though some males had small testes and were sterile.

The results are "incredible", said Alcino Silva, a mouse genetics researcher at the Cold Spring Harbor Laboratory in Cold Spring Harbor, N.Y.

Scientists didn't think that chromosome-size chunks of DNA from one mammal could settle in permanently in a different mammal and function normally, he said.

And "it's amazing that such large fragments of DNA can be passed on to their offspring," Silva said. [End quoting]

Man never seems to learn that he doesn't have enough brains to play God.

TIMES CHANGE BUT COLLECTIVIST MESSAGE REMAINS CONSTANT

Excerpted from *THE NEW AMERICAN*, 6/9/97, [quoting:]

We must organize all labor, no matter how dirty and arduous it may be, so that every [citizen] may regard himself as part of that great army of free labor.... The generation that is now fifteen years old... must arrange all their tasks of education in such a way that every day, and in every city, the young people shall engage in the practical solution of the problems of common labor, even of the smallest, most simple kind. —Vladimir Lenin

Imagine an army of 100,000 young people restoring urban and rural communities and giving their labor in exchange for education and training... [National Service] will harness the energy of our youth and attack the problems of our time. It literally has the potential to revolutionize the way young people all across America look at their country and feel about themselves. —Bill Clinton

[T]here is the great silent, continuous struggle; the struggle between the State and the individual; between the State which demands and the Individual who attempts to evade such demands. Because the individual,

left to himself, unless he be a saint or a hero, always refuses to pay taxes, obey laws, or go to war. — Benito Mussolini

I'm here because I want to redefine the meaning of citizenship in America... [I]f you're asked in school, "What does it mean to be a good citizen?" I want the answer to be, "Well, to be a good citizen, you have to obey the law, you've got to pay your taxes and—oh, yes, you have to serve..." —Bill Clinton

All the people I know who are driving for a form of national service, primarily want it to be compulsory. They realize that's a terrible problem politically, so they're not willing to say it. It is endangerment of freedom and the potential for indoctrination that skeptics do not like in the national service concept. However benign the program, some think it will not succeed on any meaningful scale unless it is compulsory. —Martin Anderson, senior fellow at the Hoover Institution, *Boston Globe*, November 29, 1992

In his April 5 radio address outlining the goals of the summit, the President endorsed compulsory volunteerism—and even called for extending it to middle schools. In other words, the man who so famously avoided the dangerous duty of fighting in Vietnam as a young man now proposes drafting a new generation of young people to perform a different set of difficult tasks. —*New York Post* editorial, April 27, 1997

Fascism finds it necessary, at the outset, to take away from the ordinary human being what he has been taught and has grown to cherish the most: personal liberty. And it can be affirmed, without falling into exaggeration, that a curtailment of personal liberty not only has proved to be, but necessarily must be, a fundamental condition of the triumph of Fascism. —Mario Palmieri, *The Philosophy of Fascism* (1936)

[W]hen we got organized as a country and we wrote a fairly radical *Constitution* with a radical *Bill of Rights*, giving a radical amount of individual freedom to Americans, it was assumed that the Americans who had that freedom would use it responsibly... [However, now] there's a lot of irresponsibility. And so a lot of people say there's too much freedom. When personal freedom's being abused, you have to move to limit it. —Bill Clinton [*That should start with taking all of Bill's freedoms by impeaching him as a traitor—and all of the other traitors*.]

Before they have their own families, the young can make a unique contribution to the family of America. In doing so, they can acquire the habit of service, and get a deeper understanding of what it really means to be a citizen. That is the main reason, perhaps, why we are here. —Bill Clinton

We're here... for the first President's Summit for America's future—to mobilize every community and challenge every citizen... and to ask our young people to become citizen-servants, too. —Bill Clinton

According to Fascism, a true, a great spiritual life cannot take place unless the state has risen to a position of pre-eminence in the world of man. The curtailment of liberty thus becomes justified at once, with this need of raising the State to its rightful position. —Mario Palmieri

What they're trying to do is enslave our society by taking our children's rights away. Young people who go through these [mandatory community service] programs learn to submit, and later on they won't mind giving up a few more of their rights when the government says it's necessary. —Thomas Moralis (father of

two students denied high school diplomas for not complying with a mandatory service requirement)

When an opponent says, "I will not come over to your side," I calmly say, "Your child belongs to us already... What are you? You will pass on. Your descendants, however, now stand in the new camp. In a short time they will know nothing else but this new community." —Adolf Hitler

We need a national-corporate commitment to public service to look after [the elderly]. We aren't able to provide resources unless the young pay something for their patrimony through public service. —William F. Buckley Jr. in *Mother Jones* magazine

We will not recognize [American Fascism] as it rises. It will wear no black shirts here. It will probably have no marching songs. It will rise out of a congealing of a group of elements that exist here and that are the essential components of Fascism... It will be at first decorous, humane, glowing with homely American sentiment. But a dictatorship cannot remain benevolent. To continue, it must become ruthless. When this stage is reached we shall see that appeal by radio, movies, and government-controlled newspapers to all the worst instincts and emotions of our people. The rough, the violent, the lawless men will come to the surface and into power. This is the terrifying prospect as we move along our present course. —John T. Flynn Writing in the *American Mercury*, February 1941 [End quoting]

Does the above give you a good picture of where our country is today??

LOOK, MA: FLUORIDE TOOTHPASTES NOW CARRY WARNING

Excerpted from THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 6/21/97, [quoting:]

Last month, as 8-year-old Molly Statt stood in the bathroom brushing her teeth, something on the back of the tube of Crest caught her attention. She stopped brushing.

Looking up at her father standing beside her, she asked, "Is this poison?"

"Of course not," Paul Statt reassured his daughter.

"Then why does it say 'poison' on it?" she asked.

Statt looked closer at the label. In small print were warnings he hadn't noticed before, including one that read: "If you accidentally swallow more than used for brushing, seek professional help or contact a poison control center immediately."

Caught off guard, he didn't have a good answer for Molly. For a week, she didn't want to brush with toothpaste. Now she is back to using it, but Statt worries that she is confused about the safety of toothpaste and about the truth of poison labels. [End quoting]

The fluoride in toothpaste is a poison and there have been millions of words used in debating why it is

added. Supposedly it will help keep down decay, but it can have other deleterious effects **which the Elite desire.**

Commander Hatonn has said that anybody who has metal fillings in their mouth will benefit from the small amount used in brushing because it will want to combine with any stray particles as they are worn off. This will help the body to dispose of them.

You should rinse your mouth well after brushing.

KIDS AND ANGELS

From ANGELS ON EARTH, Mar/Apr, 1997, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

While relaxing in the backyard I suddenly heard a crashing noise come from my seven-year-old's bedroom. I ran inside. Bobby stood in the middle of his room, looking bewildered. The bunkbed had collapsed, top bunk crushing the lower which was Bobby's.

"I was sitting on my bed when I saw a boy with curly blond hair. I rubbed my eyes to see if he was real, then I stood up to get a closer look." That's when the bed collapsed. "Mom, where did the boy go?"

I knew it was time to tell my son about angels. —Camille Harrell, Laton, California [End quoting]

How many of us would be alive today if it wasn't for our angels' protection? I'd venture the answer to that would be **very few**

<u>AUSTRALIA—GREAT</u> SOUTH LAND OF THE NWO?

* * * AMERICA TAKE NOTE * * *

Excerpted from *THE JUBILEE*, America Take Note section, May/June 1997, [quoting:]

pict. pauline

THE PAULINE HANSON PHENOMENON

Overseas readers may not have heard of Pauline Hanson. There is not a single person in Australia who hasn't heard of her! We are witnessing a virtual Joan of Arc style figure, who arose out of obscurity to cut a swathe through the recognized politicians (and their policies) in our South Land of the NWO. Pauline of many perils is a fish-and-chip shop owner from Ipswich, near Brisbane. She is an independent member of Parliament who has very bravely risen up to confront the powers-that-be, telling the truth for once.

Hanson has begun a new political party called "One Nation," which stands for all the political measures we, as investigators of the NWO, would champion. She is against the native title right scams; insists there is something "fishy" going on globally; wants to end the attempt to stir up this land into a multicultural stew; demands that the gun-banning legislation be destroyed and so on.

Hanson has won a large following after just a short time of campaigning for support for her One Nation Party. Her meetings around Australia have been packed to overflow everywhere she goes. John Howard, the Prime Minister, and other politicians, have criticized Hanson mercilessly. The media gives her such wide coverage that not one newspaper or television news does not feature Pauline, every day, every week. Those who oppose her freedom march from town to town, have twisted everything she has said until it is unrecognizable. Cries of "Nazi Fascist", "Right Wing fanatic", "racist", "hater of the Asians" and much more, follow her around the continent. She is pelted with tomatoes and rubbish, pushed and shoved, as she rushes along in high heels and glamorous dresses, surrounded by a bodyguard of uniformed police. "Rent a crowd" activists swarm into the political meetings now, shouting "Heil Hitler", waving placards with swastikas on them, and giving the Nazi salute to Pauline.

I cannot say that *Despatch* magazine staff is encouraged by this Pauline Hanson rebellion. It seems very suspicious that the NWO-controlled media is giving her such an immense coverage, for one thing. She is being used, we believe, to stir up racial hatred and unrest. If this beautiful, young, red-haired woman was assassinated the Whites would blame the Blacks, and racial tensions could become serious civil unrest. This could "necessitate" the UN peace-keeping forces intervention in our federal affairs. Paranoid statement? Perhaps, we certainly hope and pray that that is all it is.

Texe Marrs reported in *Flashpoint* (May 1997) that Rockefeller puppet and New World Order clone Henry Kissinger held a private two-hour meeting with Israeli Prime Minister Benjamin Netanyahu. According to insiders, Netanyahu emerged from the meeting ashen and pale. Comments Texe: Kissinger read him the riot act, warning him to go along with the Illuminati's plan—or else. This reminded us so much of the effect that Bill Clinton, also a NWO clone, had on our Prime Minister, John Howard, on his visit to Australia, late 1996. Howard, and his senior ministers, looked down-mouthed, over-awed, intimidated in almost every photo or video we saw. After that, Howard visited China, and—great coincidence—Newt Gingrich was there as well. Was discussion entered into re: Australia's current orders from the Internationalists for our bioregion?

All this makes one realize afresh that GOD is the One in Whom we must put our trust, not guns and political insurrection. After all, we dissenters, in every country, are struggling against a whole emerging Unity of One Mind One World—and this unity has weaponry, surveillance techniques, and wealth beyond our wildest dreams. It is too late to find answers in the might of freedom-loving men and women. Jesus Christ is the only answer. Do you know Him as Saviour and Lord? If not, it is high time you did! [End quoting]

It might be wise to reconsider the last point of "Jesus **being your savior**". It might be safer for you to consider **you as being your own savior**—based on your thinking, actions, and intent.

Pauline appears [to me] to be the "being on the White Horse". It is stated in the *Bible* that even the elect would be deceived. These times take a lot of discerning and praying while trying to figure out what the Elite are up to.

CHAPTER 5

GEOLOGICAL RED ALERT FOR WEST COAST

ALWAYS USE COMMON SENSE

The information below was first presented on the CONTACT Telephone Hotline at 4 p.m. Thursday, July 3, 1997, shortly after being received.

Consider the following message, primarily from geophysical Commander Soltec, very carefully. Go within for personal guidance and always remember that messages of caution are just that—cautions issued based upon the probabilities and possibilities of the moment and are naturally subject to change in response to other impacting events. However the following message of warning is quite serious and not at all unexpected for SOME point in the unfolding play. Remember that while the adversary's troops are definitely on this chess board, so are God's, and thus while things can get quite rocky—literally—things are certainly getting quite interesting, too! — E. Y.

7/3/97 SOLTEC/KORTON

Soltec here along with Korton to bring you up to speed on some particular events unfolding on the geological front. We come in the Light of Creator God to enlighten sleeping man of Earth to his worsening plight.

Among the more pressing, immediate concerns are those having to do with slippage of the cross-faults interfacing with the San Andreas. This slippage is not so much natural as it is caused by pulsed bombardment occurring at an ever-accelerated pace, now that the Elite of your world step-up their last-minute shenanigans in this, the final act of their New World Order plot.

You ones on the West Coast have bought enough time by now to see you fully prepared for whatever takes place. Those west of the San Andreas are breathing their last breath as this fault, owing to great instability of the interlocking (intersecting) faults, is set to go. Further pulsing will surely trip the fault before month's end—barring some major volcanic eruption in Mexico or quake in Japan that relieve the stress.

This is a RED ALERT. Those who have waited and waited up until now for PROOF of the truth of these words will NOT have their proof or scientific "validation" from your Elite circle of establishment scientists until AFTER the fact. It is now or never.

We would now, further, call in all Ground Crew personnel from the coastal areas back inland to stay inland from now henceforth. [This does not mean for anyone to come to Tehachapi; it means you'll be better off to come in to some location east of the San Andreas Fault line.]

Your world is on the ragged edge of major geological upheaval across many lands simultaneously.

NOW IS THE LAST CHANCE FOR FINAL PREPARATIONS FOR YOUR SURVIVAL. GOD SENDS HIS MESSENGERS TO SUMMON YOU. WILL YOU HEAR THE CALL?

We are Soltec and Korton, Wayshowers to those who will take the time to listen. Salu.

7/7/97 #1 HATONN

As the world becomes more and more unstable, from her infrastructure to her human structures, I would urge you to pay attention to the messengers who bring you what information they gather and receive and feel willing to share.

What of speakers and receivers? Go with the message, discern intent, judge actions, and PAY ATTEN-TION, and you will find your guidance. When writers bring rather pointed and miserable possibilities to your attention—stop wasting your time with "if" and "who" and "what" and "how". Listen to your Inner Guidance system kicking in for your personal information.

Speakers just announced that there could be MAJOR upheavals by the end of July—but so too did one speaker expect no Mars landing on the Fourth of July. You can't expect to outshrewd the planners who CAN control whether or not a fault slips on a given day or a lander-rover land on a planet when all it takes to discount you is to rearrange timing. And no, Dharma DID NOT receive these messages, nor the one from Aton.

[This is as good a place as any to jump in here with a few comments about how difficult it can be at times to decide upon what to share with you readers as potentially useful or informative, and what is trash. You can imagine how much information crosses our desks in a typical week.

The message from Soltec is supported by an alarming array of data for those of you with Internet access to daily earthquake information and cumulative maps of activity. So his message surely deserves placement as a note of caution, if nothing more.

Then we have the Mars "landing" event on July 4. It was Richard Hoagland who stated several weeks ago on Art Bell's late-night talk-radio program that his data strongly suggested a landing at a different location than publicly displayed, and on July 20 rather than July 4. This was in close parallel of secret "Masonic" timing to the 1969 Moon landing, which was shifted from an initially expected date of July 4 to July 20, 1969. Remember that the plaque Neil Armstrong left behind read: "Here men from the planet Earth first set foot upon the Moon. July, 1969, A.D. We came in peace for all mankind." Note that the date on this pre-manufactured plaque allowed for flexibility of landing date—WITHIN July. Possible clue? Who knows, but it's good to pay attention to possibilities!

On the evening of July 4 of this year, Art Bell had Richard on his show as a guest to comment upon what had "apparently" happened that day.

Richard noted a large number of clues, questions, and glaring inconsistencies in the "too perfect" mission landing we were fed over the media earlier that day. He likewise noted the number of key senior personnel associated with this Mars project who had MET WITH AN UNTIMELY DEMISE over recent weeks and months. Indeed, there is likely much more to this matter than "meets the

eye"—especially in this age of awesome special-effects capabilities. So stay tuned, stay alert, and use common sense. -E.Y.

So, who do you believe or disbelieve? You stay prepared for alternative activities and assumptions, and you will be fine. Certainly you of the "Ground Crew" do NOT want to rush off to Tehachapi or anywhere else where we are under fire for the results will likely be a take-out of the entire town JUST TO GET THE GROUND CREW. If THIS leaves you without foundation or direction, then you have not paid attention to prior lessons—and this is for EVERYONE reading this.

I find that some just do as they will and then state that my message "was not for me". My message *IS* FOR YOU. This is a most urgently present time of self-independence. We cannot turn one iota of time over to the welfare of people who come or go—period. We are NOT a cult of some kind and you will learn to be very careful before you inform everyone that you are getting YOUR information directly from Hatonn, et al. YOU WILL BE TOTALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR THINGS WHICH DO NOT HAPPEN ON TIME AS YOU SPECULATE, DO NOT FEED YOU OR YOURS AS YOU EXPECTED, AND/OR NO PLANS ARE CHANGED HERE TO PROTECT YOU WHO WOULD TAKE-OVER MANAGEMENT.

What do I suggest as to, say, the paper? I don't! The paper needs to continue with every bit of worthy information we can glean and then with as little "spirit" input as possible—move on as an outstanding NEWS resource disallowing for distractions over arguments about invisible beings or specific spiritual RELIGIOUS dogmas.

Can I urge speakers to be more diligent in not suggesting specific actions for specific dates? Yes, but does that simply negate any acceptance of authenticity of the original expressions, especially as relates to urgent warnings? YOU HAVE TO USE YOUR OWN RESOURCES, READERS. Translators do the best they can under pretty difficult circumstances and word meanings are constantly in flux of definition. All you have to do is LOOK AROUND YOU and judge your state of readiness for any contingency which might assail your family or self or befall your property. If you are prepared for the very WORST—then the less-than-worst will be *nothing* save inconvenience along the pathway.

I certainly cannot personally attend EACH ONE OF YOU for that is YOUR responsibility. Neither do I make limits on what my compatriots see fit for your eyes and ears.

By the way to you who write and negate your promises or intentions, and then think you can come through later as you wish it to change, etc. Think again. Neither does it make the lie a truth by sending certified follow-up trash. It does mean that people in charge of various aspects of our "business" make necessary documentation, legal cover by and through declarations, and keep records explicitly up to date in every instance. It may seem trite and a bore, but it is imperative that you don't get caught with your britches down around your ankles. These people get you "later" on "default" grounds, and no matter how ridiculous it may seem—you document everything and DATE it. Have records of discussions and then formalize any conclusions reached in any circumstance. IF you have missed the ounce of prevention along the way—HIT IT HARD WITH THE POUND OF CURE!

Thank you and good morning. Salu.

CHAPTER 6

THE LATEST REPORT FROM JAPAN

by Eustace Mullins 6/22/97

From April 23 to May 7, 1997, I lectured again in Japan. On this trip, most of my lectures were given in Tokyo itself, a sprawling metropolis encompassing some thirty million people, about one-third of the population of Japan. I had been invited to join the Japanese people in their annual Observance of Constitution Day on May 3, 1997. I say "observance" rather than celebration, because this event usually involves numerous meetings throughout the nation which complain about the Constitution, which was forced upon them while they were under military occupation.

In 1948, during my daily visits to the political prisoner, Ezra Pound, who was being held without trial for life in a federal institution in Washington, D.C. he ventured one of his pungent comments which struck me at the time, and which I have never forgotten. Pound said to me, "In looking at the postwar economies, the ones to watch are Germany and Japan."

"Why, their factories have been bombed to rubble," I replied. "By the time they finish rebuilding, they will be so deeply in debt, they'll never be competitive with us."

"You forget one thing," Pound replied. "They ain't got no armies."

"No military costs, eh," I replied.

"That's it," said Pound. "Not having military expenditures will give them such a competitive advantage that they're going to shoot right past us." How Pound, a political prisoner with no access to economic information, could have foreseen the startling economic boom in Japan and Germany, long before any Americans were buying their automobiles or televisions, has always seemed a marvelous feat to me. Not one of our economists or anyone at our Department of Commerce would have dared to make such a statement in 1948. However, there were minds as clear as Pound's who did anticipate this and who invested wisely and well in German and Japanese industries. There were those on Wall Street who had access to the thoughts of General William Draper, who served first as economic czar of Germany under the Allied Military Government in 1945, and who later was transferred to General Douglas MacArthur's staff in Tokyo, where he became the economic czar of Japan. When I point out that there were those on Wall Street who had access to General Draper's information, I should add that, throughout his distinguished public service as economic czars of the defeated nations, he remained a lifelong partner of the investment house of Dillon, Read & Co. in New York. When you substitute for the owner of this firm, Dillon, his original name, Lapowski, you begin to see the pattern emerge. Lapowski, a Texan entrepreneur who had been an understudy of Bernard Baruch, made a fast fortune during the First World War, and came to New York where he purchased the fine old firm of William Read and Co. Lapowski, Read & Co. did not quite have the ring which the new millionaire desired, and he decided that Dillon would be a much more saleable name. Thus the firm of Dillon, Read was born. In 1924, it floated two hundred million dollars to help Germany rearm, with anticipation of a much-to-be-desired Second World War in the future.

On previous lectures in Japan, I had recounted the strange odyssey of Dillon, Read and General William Draper. The Japanese were aware that, during the many years of military occupation, these officers lost no opportunity to line their nests, and that an unknown percentage of Japanese industry had wound up in the secret ownership of the occupiers. The names of Rockefeller and Rothschild are as familiar to Japanese as they are to Americans. They are never shy about pronouncing these names as powers in Japan.

THE CONSTITUTION OF JAPAN

In preparation for this trip to Japan, I had made a study of the Japanese Constitution. I found that its origins were seriously flawed. Because of this study, I was able to draw remarkable parallels between the *Constitution of the United States* and the Constitution of Japan. Both were seriously tainted by having been drawn up and adopted in periods of martial law. *Black's Law Dictionary* states as a maxim that any legislation adopted under conditions of martial law becomes invalid once the period of martial law ends. This is logical, because legislation passed under conditions of military occupation and armed troops obviously gives the population little chance to voice opposition or to seriously contest such legislation.

In seeking to discover other avenues which would be of interest to my Japanese audiences, I also came to a conclusion which can now be stated as Mullins' Law: "Any nation which has a constitution and which also has a central bank inevitably has its constitution invalidated by the central bank." I had been studying central banks for some fifty years, but I had never before come to such a conclusion. However, this conclusion was inevitable. Sovereignty, as Pound had taught me many years ago, consists of two things, the right to issue money in the name of the realm, and the right to conduct foreign policy. Any power which interferes with or usurps these powers effectively invalidates the operating government of that nation. For this reason, the Founding Fathers carefully included these rights of sovereignty in the *Constitution of the United States*, that the Congress should have the right to issue and control money, and to direct foreign policy through its power to confirm treaties.

USURPATION

In the United States, the right to issue money was "delegated", or rather, sold by Congressmen to a group of private bankers in 1913, who then established the Federal Reserve System. With the money power safely in their hands, the bankers proceeded to take over the control of foreign policy by setting up numerous groups and foundations, such as the Council on Foreign Relations, which was in reality a mere subsidiary of the Rothschild entity, the Royal Institute of International Affairs in London. The British operation assumed the name "Royal" although the monarchy had nothing to do with it; the Federal Reserve System adopted the name "Federal" although the government has never been permitted to own a single share in the stock ownership of the twelve Federal Reserve Banks.

Japan, of course, had no choice in the adoption of their Constitution. The Japanese Parliament was ordered to adopt it by the occupying military forces. When the Japanese Parliament, or Diet, refused, because of its arbitrary clauses declaring all the personal property of the Emperor to be the property of the state, and by denying Japan the right to have its own army, the generals promptly responded. No less a power than General Douglas MacArthur, the head of the military government, informed the Japanese Parliament that, if they refused to adopt the Constitution, he would indict, try, convict and execute the Emperor of Japan as a war criminal. In the face of this ultimatum, the Parliament adopted the Constitution.

I discovered this fact in a small publication issued by the University of Virginia in a study of the Japanese Constitution published some years ago.

PUBLIC PROTEST

Although many Japanese were not aware of all of these circumstances, they realized that they could not consider themselves an independent nation as long as they were governed by a Constitution adopted under martial law. However, there is a catch to this. The United States still has 47,000 troops stationed in the Japanese islands. Does the presence of 47,000 troops constitute military occupation? Officially, these troops are there as the legacy of the notorious "Cold War", which I have previously exposed as they greatest hoax ever perpetrated on the American people for forty-one years, in my article, "The Cold War: The \$5 Trillion Hoax". Here again, this is a typical central bank operation. A central bank must have enormous military expenditures and large standing armies, always with a view to starting a war at some point, in order to create debt, as Ezra Pound had taught me many years before. Therefore, on Constitution Day, not only did I lecture to audiences about the origins of their Constitution, but the former Prime Minister Nakasone and other personages also conducted large protest meetings in which they reiterated their demands for their own Constitution. The press gave very scant coverage to these meetings.

THE CIVIL WAR

In my book, *The Curse of Canaan*, I pointed out the taint of our own *Constitution*, whose *Thirteenth*, *Fourteenth* and *Fifteenth* amendments had been passed during the military occupation of the eight Southern states. When the legislatures of these states refused to ratify these amendments, they were ordered by the federal government in Washington to do so, under pain of severe retribution. Being under military occupation, these legislators knew that the threats were very real. They did pass these amendments during martial law. Here again, *Black's Law Dictionary* affirms that no legislation passed under martial law shall be valid once the period of military occupation is concluded. The federal troops were withdrawn from the Southern states in 1877, after twelve years of military occupation, and then only because Rutherford B. Hayes, himself a Civil War General from Ohio, had campaigned on a pledge to end martial law in the South. It was a hotly contested election, which Hayes barely won. He fulfilled his campaign promise, and the troops were withdrawn from the South. However, it was too late. The corporations had now enthroned themselves, and the American Republic was well on its way to destruction. In 1913, the corporations forced upon the nation the ultimate corporation, the central bank.

Today, with our increased understanding of law, we may well admit that, although the troops were withdrawn, the reign of martial law continued unabated in the United States. The establishment of federal courts in the states, and a host of later agencies, meant that the common law was replaced with admiralty law, the law of martial law, in which no human rights were observed. The gold-fringed flag now flies arrogantly in our courts, and the judges sneer at those citizens who still prate of "Constitutional rights".

THE MORAL RESULTS
OF A CENTRAL BANK

I am the only scholar who has ever thought about the moral results of a central bank. If you examine the moral structure of our nation prior to 1913, and what it is today, you see that terrible things have happened. Children are dying of drug overdoses; one marriage in two ends in divorce; the president is accused of a sexual offense. No economist would admit that these are the inevitable results of passing the Federal Reserve Act of 1913 by Congress. Yet Congressman Charles Augustus Lindbergh Sr. predicted it. For profit, the central bank debases the monetary unit; it creates an "elastic" or rubber dollar. Ezra Pound often spoke to me of the twelve centuries of the Byzantine Empire. Its monetary unit was the gold solidus, which survives today in the saying, "as solid as gold". To tamper with the stability of the monetary unit is to attack the very fiber of the people. We now see its results all around us

In Japan, too, the patriots who had brought me there again were concerned about these developments. I explained that it was their central bank, and the denial of a genuine Constitution, which were at the root of these problems. Japanese television is usually trivial. I saw nothing of interest during my weeks there. They are intensely interested in cultural pursuits. I was taken to a museum which exhibited hundreds of paintings from the Louvre. The Japanese stood eight and ten deep in front of the pictures. The entire area was jammed. At another museum was an exhibit of hundreds of wall paintings from Pompeii. It too was very crowded. The Japanese are serious people. Yet they are in the same condition as my own people. Their media is controlled; their government officials do not represent them, but alien interests. Their very food and water is contaminated by the same elements which endanger our own supplies. Although they still resist fluoridation of their water, it contains massive amounts of chlorine. I avoided drinking it as much as possible. Many foods are adulterated by massive amounts of monosodium glutamate and other chemicals. If they had a shred of decency, of honor, of patriotism, these are the issues which both American and/ or Japanese politicians should be addressing. They do not, because they are serving as employees of the central bank. Bankers do not like focusing on any issue except increasing their profits. It is this which makes them so dangerous to the nation. If we compare them with the Founding Fathers, who never thought of profit, we can see what has happened. In order to sell us out, they first had to sell themselves out. These are the creatures variously known as the grey men, the hollow men, and the robots. We cannot be human if we allow ourselves to be ruled by nonhumans. This is the message which I brought back from Japan to the American people.

CHAPTER 7

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 7/1/97

MIND CONTROL: PART I

From THE CALIFORNIA SUN, by Herb Dorsey, Feb. 1997, [quoting:]

EARLY HISTORY

There are powerful and largely secret organizations which are funded by the international bankers that are interested in mind control. As Illuminati leader, Adam Weishaupt once stated "If you can control the head, you control the rest of the man."

As anyone who cares to investigate the matter will discover, the international bankers, with their links to the petro-chemical companies and the "Military Industrial Complex", have profited handsomely from all the major wars of this century and have gained virtual control of all the nations of the Earth through their astronomical indebtedness, much incurred during times of war.

Prior to World War I, The Royal Institute for International Affairs (RIIA) in England did a study at Wellington House to develop techniques to condition the public into supporting war. The project was headed by Lord Northcliff, newspaper publisher, Lord Rothmore and British intelligence MI-6 member, Arnold Toynbee; American "specialists", Walter Lippmann and Edward Bernays also attended these "brainstorming sessions".

After a six-month study, they determined that about 87% of the population formed opinions without using critical rational processes. The English people were then subjected to such sophisticated propaganda that they were soon willing to send their sons to die in the fields of Flanders by the thousands.

The same techniques were used on the American public preceding every major war in this century. The RIIA set up a sister organization in the United States known as the Council on Foreign Relations (CFR), largely funded by the Federal Reserve Bank which has become the real governing power of the United States today.

The CFR later organized the United Nations which is destined to be the "New World Order's" World government.¹

Many of the U.S. Presidents since F.D. Roosevelt, many Senators and Congressmen and many highly placed military figures are members of the CFR or its sister organization the Trilateral Commission. CFR members manage all the major news wire services. There are 24 CFR members in the *New York Times* staff. And every National TV news anchorperson is a member of the CFR. This can be easily verified by examining a CFR membership list.

Propaganda continues to this day. Preceding the recent Desert Storm War the propaganda level in the news media was cranked up several levels and was quite obvious to all but those with uninformed or untrained minds (would that still be 87%?).

CHEMICAL MIND CONTROL

After World War II, British MI-6 leader Lord Carrington convinced the American president, Harry Truman to establish the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA), The secret Treaty of Fort Hunt which granted amnesty to former Nazi war criminals, was negotiated between the first CIA director, Allen Dulles, and former Nazi SS intelligence leader, Reinhard Ghelnen. Under Operation Paper Clip many former Nazi SS officers and doctors were brought into the United States. A large percentage of these were employed by the CIA (some sources state as high as 50% of the early CIA employees were Paper Clip Nazis).²

The CIA has had a long interest in mind control. In the 1960s in their project MK-ULTRA, the CIA ordered thousands of kilos of pure LSD from Sandoz Laboratories in Switzerland to do chemical mind-control experiments! The CIA Technical Services Staff (TSS) decided that LSD could be used to obtain information from enemy agents and prisoners of war and could be used against the enemy on the battle-field.

Large scale LSD tests were conducted on American Soldiers at Aberdeen Proving Ground in Maryland; Fort Benning, Georgia; Fort Leavenworth, Kansas; Dugway Proving Ground, Utah; Fort Bragg, North Carolina and Fort McCellan, Alabama. Some deaths and many lawsuits resulted from this military LSD testing, often on unwitting subjects, in the 1960s.

During World War II German scientists discovered that prisoners of war became more docile and obedient when trace amounts of sodium fluoride was placed in their drinking water. Apparently this poison selectively kills brain cells in the portion of the brain that does independent thinking and tends to resist authority. Soon the Russians were also treating the drinking water of their prisoners of war with trace amounts of sodium fluoride.

Malathion was also developed by the Nazi government as a chemical warfare neurotoxin but it was determined to be too dangerous to be used in the battlefield [But not too dangerous to aerial spray the Los Angeles area's civilians for YEARS.].

While the practice of fluoridating drinking water has been outlawed in most European Countries, the State of California has recently enacted legislation to require all municipalities to treat their drinking water with sodium fluoride. Also, the State of California apparently doesn't share the former Nazi government's concern about the dangers of Malathion in their incessant war against the "Medfly".

ELECTRONIC IMPLANTS

Dr. Jose Delgado was hired by the CIA to do experimentation with miniaturized electronic implants. In a speech recorded in the February 24, 1974 edition of the *Congressional Record* No. 26., Vol. 118., Dr. Delgado had this to say:

"We need a program of psychosurgery for political control of our society. The purpose is physical control

of the mind. Everyone who deviates from the given norm can be surgically mutilated.

"The Individual may think that the most important reality is his own existence, but this is only his personal point of view. This lacks historical perspective.

"Man does not have the right to develop his own mind. This kind of liberal orientation has great appeal. We must electrically control the brain. Someday, armies and generals will be controlled by electric stimulation of the brain."

The uninformed may think this sounds like science fiction but in the May 17, 1965 issue of the *New York Times*, Dr. Delgado had reportedly successfully connected electronic implants to the motor nervous system of a bull and could stop the charging bull in its tracks by radio control. In another report Dr. Delgado had surgically implanted a cat with an electronic implant which could transmit everything the cat was seeing and hearing to a nearby T.V. monitor. Who would ever suspect the cat was a "surveillance bug"?

Well, considering the tremendous advances in large scale integrated circuits, electronic implants have come a long way since the sixties.

Some electronic implants are smaller than a grain of rice and can be injected into the subject via a hypodermic needle. A recent law was passed in Los Angeles that any lost pets picked up by the pound had to be injected with a telemetry implant before being released.

These telemetry implants are electromagnetically connected to the Global Positioning Satellite (GPS) system so that if the pet is ever lost again they can be immediately located by GPS monitors.

Similar implants are now placed into newborn children at many hospitals. The selling point to the parents is that the children can be easily located if they ever become lost.

Ronald Kane, Vice President of CUBIC corp., a major manufacturer of implantable chips, while remarking on the chips profitability, has said, "If we had our way, we'd implant a chip behind everyone's ear in the maternity ward."

Similarly, the Desert Storm troops were implanted with telemetry chips so that their positions could be located on the field of battle to assist in rescue operations and minimize "friendly fire" casualties.

THE I.B.M. 2020 NEURAL IMPLANT

But, in view of the early work of Dr. Delgado for the CIA, The question remains what else might these electronic implants be capable of doing? Some idea might be gained from excerpts of a confidential memo covertly obtained in October 1995 from: INTELLI-CONNECTION, A Security Division of IBM, 1200 Progress Way, Armonk, New York 11204:

"CONFIDENTIAL, LIMITED DISTRIBUTION ONLY, LEVEL 9 COMMUNICATION, 2020 NEU-RAL CHIP IMPLANT...Federal regulations do not yet permit testing of implants on prisoners, but we have entered into contractual testing of our product. We have also had major successes in privately owned

sanitariums with implant technology...In California, several prisoners were identified as members of a security threat group, EME, or Mexican Mafia. They were brought to the health services unit at Pelican Bay and tranquilized with advanced sedatives developed by our Cambridge, Massachusetts laboratories.

"The implant procedure takes about 60-90 minutes depending on the experience of the technician. We are working on a device that will reduce that time by as much as 60%. The results of implants on 8 prisoners yielded the following:

"Implants served as surveillance monitoring devices for threat group activity. Implants disabled two subjects during an assault on correctional staff. Universal side effects in all 8 test subjects revealed that when the implant was set to 116 Mhz all subjects became lethargic and slept an average of 18-22 hours per day. All subjects refused recreation periods for 14 days during the 116 Mhz test evaluation...

"Each subject was monitored for aggressive activity during the test period and the findings are conclusive that 7 out of the 8 test subjects exhibited no aggression, even when provoked. Each subject experienced only minor bleeding from the nose and ears 48 hours after the implant due to initial adjustment. Each subject had no knowledge of the implant for the test period and each implant was retrieved under the guise of medical treatment. The security windfall from the brief test period was tremendous. Security officials now know several strategies employed by the EME that facilitate the transmission of illegal drugs and weapons into their correctional facilities...In Massachusetts, the Department of Corrections has already entered into high level discussions about releasing certain offenders to the community with the 2020 neural chip implants..." 3

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- 1. *The Secret History of the New World Order*, Herbert G. Dorsey III, THE SECRET INFORMATION NETWORK, P.O. Box 3185, West Sedona, AZ 86340
- 2. "Tied Up in Nazis: A naz-talgic Peek at Post World War II America", John Judge, Prevailing Winds Research., P.O. Box 23511, Santa Barbara, CA 93121, (805) 899-3433.
- 3. "Secret Implants Secretly Used on Prisoners." *Nexus* Magazine (Oct-Nov. 1996 issue), P.O. Box 177 Kempton, Il 60946-0177, (815) 253-6464.

ELECTROMAGNETIC MIND CONTROL: PART 2

[From *The California Sun*, March 1997:]

Mind control can be used with limited success via the methods discussed in the first part of this article, i.e., media propaganda, mind-altering drugs and chemicals, and miniaturized electronic implants. However, these methods require the intended victims to first be subjected to these various modalities. The Illuminati organizations (NSA, CIA, MI-6, KGB) saw greater possibilities in using electromagnetic technology for mind control.

A Russian scientist, Dr. L.L. Vasiliev experimentally proved that electromagnetic radiation can stimulate the brain in the 1930s.

The infamous Russian "Lida Machine" used during the Korean War put out a 10 Hz ELF signal that made prisoners of war more susceptible of interrogation.

In the 1970s, the Russians were experimenting with low level microwave radiation on U.S. Embassy personnel working in the Moscow Embassy. The U.S. Ambassador developed a leukemia-like disease, suffered bleeding from the eyes and suffered chronic headaches.

The CIA knew of and monitored this microwave testing on U.S. Embassy personnel under a project code named "Pandora" for a 10-year period before informing the embassy personnel. Later, Project Pandora data was turned over to the Defense Advanced Research Agency (DARPA) while U.S. personnel at the Moscow embassy were awarded a 20% hardship allowance because of their unhealthful microwave radiation exposure.

DARPA and Livermore Laboratories have developed a "Brain Bomb" which used microwaves to incapacitate the minds of soldiers in the field of battle. Some of these "Nonlethal Weapons" are tested at Los Alamos National Laboratories in New Mexico.

Dr. Ross Adey, formerly of the Brain Research Center at the University of Southern California, worked on Project Pandora and demonstrated that a 147 Mhz microwave carrier modulated by a 16 Hz ELF signal would cause a release of calcium ions from brain tissue at power densities as low as 0.8 milliwatts per centimeter. This would have the effect of impairing brain memory processes.

The CIA was also interested in the work of a Professor Anthony Deutsch of New York University. Deutsch had discovered that the use of radio waves could cause the brain to produce excessive acetylcholine which would interfere with memory processes. The CIA took Professor Deutsch's work further in the 1970s, combining it with biofeedback techniques and refined "Electronic Dissolution of Memory" (EDOM3) into a process that could selectively, electronically erase portions of a person's memory. Operatives sent out on highly secret missions could have their whole memory of the secret mission erased with EDOM but retain all their other memories.¹

THE NEUROPHONE

In his Book *Pyramid Power* Patrick Flannigan describes his invention, the Neurophone, which allows deaf people to hear. The Neurophone uses an electromagnetic carrier oscillating at about forty thousand cycles per second, amplitude modulated with the audio signal to be heard by the deaf subject. The signal is fed to conducting ear pads on both sides of the brain. The emotional state of the subject will cause the brain receiver frequency to drift slightly from 40 khz so the Neurophone has to be tuned before the sounds can be heard inside the head.

With the Neurophone that I have tested in Sedona in 1988, the electrodes could be held in the hands or anywhere on the body and the sounds could still be heard inside the head.

In his book *Beyond Pyramid Power* Patrick Flannigan describes an experiment where he places copper screening in the ceiling and below the floor, creating a capacitor in a room.

The neurophone carrier signal is then applied to the upper and lower plates of this room capacitor through a automatic frequency control (AFC) circuit which automatically tuned the 40 khz carrier to the resonant frequency of the brain of whoever entered the room.

He then could modulate the neurophone carrier wave with music, walk into this experimental room and hear music inside his head. He later noted that whenever two persons were in this experimental room **they could start reading each others thoughts** [*emphasis mine*]. He didn't care to elaborate any further on this fascinating subject in his book. About that time, the Neurophone patent (#3,393,279) that he had obtained from the U.S. patent office was placed under a National Security freeze and he was forbidden to disclose anymore about the Neurophone. After long and expensive litigation the National Security freeze on the Neurophone was finally lifted.²

I'm sure that the CIA studied the Neurophone technology thoroughly and has developed means to electromagnetically create "voices" inside a person's head and use electromagnetic telepathy as part of their Radio Hypnotic Intercerebral Control (RHIC) experimentation.

Another interesting area is the highly classified Military Intelligence Remote Mind-Control Technology (RMCT) under project names like "Scangate", "Grill Flame", "Center Lane", "Sunstreak" and "Stargate".

Here, the technology uses complex computer analysis of human brain-wave patterns to decode them into thoughts, emotions and motor-control functions. Target subjects could then be remotely manipulated with highly directional microwave MASER transmissions ELF modulated by highly sophisticated computer synthesized signals. Their brain functions could be monitored by interrogative RMCT MASERS.³

There is not enough space to go into a full report on the subject of mind control in this short article. A good book on the subject, *Remote Mind-Control Technology* is available for \$19.50 from:

INFORMATION UNLIMITED

P.O. Box 716, Amherst, NH 03031-0716 (603) 673-4730

One large "Secret Government" electromagnetic mind-control project using a SAGE radar antenna was carried out at decommissioned Ft. Hero near Montauk, Long Island from 1979 to 1983. Part of the Testing was done on the unsuspecting citizens of the city of Montauk. A series of books about this *Montauk Project*, written by Preston Nichols (who worked on the project) and Peter Moon, is available from (SASE for catalog): Sky Books, Box 769, Westbury, NY 11590-0104.

Electronic mind-control technology has even been commercialized. One interesting company is Consumertronics. Among other things, they market Neurophones, devices to electronically transmit your thoughts into another person's mind and electronic devices to jam and neutralize mind-control attacks. Their catalog is \$3:

CONSUMERTRONIC, S. P. O. Drawer 537, Alamogordo, NM 88311, Phone 1 (505) 439-1776, FAX 1 (505) 434-0234.

Web Page: user.aol.com/wizguru/mindcontrol.html

SCALAR ELECTROMAGNETICS

Thomas Bearden, Lt. Col. (Ret.) and former NSA consultant, has written several books describing "Scalar Electromagnetics". Scalar Electromagnetics was first experimented with by Nicola Tesla and later secretly developed by the U.S. at Los Alamos National Laboratories and by the Soviets at secret, remote locations in the USSR.

Scalar Electromagnetics can penetrate conducting mediums like sea water and Electro Magnetic Pulse (EMP) hardened military sites. Scalar Electromagnetics can be weaponized and is part of the SDI Research and Development program. Scalar Electromagnetics can also be used to trigger earthquakes and control the weather.

Although Thomas Bearden doesn't claim that Scalar Electromagnetics can be used for mind control, he does claim that it can be used to transmit biological effects, can make the human unconscious and can cause death in high enough fields. Since Thomas Bearden had taken national security secrecy oaths, he is very careful to reference all of his writings to already published scientific work in order to avoid possible imprisonment. Because of this precaution, his writings are well documented.⁴

HAARP

Last year, *Popular Science* published an article on the HAARP project near Fairbanks Alaska. According to *Popular Science*, the High frequency Active Auroral Research Project will be capable of weather control, detecting underground military installations, submarine communication and total disruption of normal electromagnetic communications on a world-wide basis; in short, all of the things Thomas Bearden claims for "Scalar Electromagnetics".

Since Scalar Electromagnetics can be converted back into normal electromagnetics by using interference or nonlinear phenomena—the two halves of the human brain can act as a nonlinear interferometer. Therefore, all electromagnetic mind-control technology can be converted to a "Scalar Electromagnetic" mind-control technology. Then, there is virtually no place to hide since scalar waves can penetrate the Earth itself.

According to Preston Nichols there are two important "window frequencies" in mind control—1080 Mhz, a subharmonic of DNA and 435 Mhz, the window to human consciousness. Both frequencies are found in the HAARP signal, which means both mind-control and genetic manipulation on a world-wide scale could very likely be part of a secret agenda of the HAARP project.

During the Desert Storm War, many new weapons systems were tested on the field of battle—some unreported and highly classified.

As our troops were advancing, black Sky Hawk helicopters equipped with advanced electronics flew over the enemy bunkers without firing their [visible] weapons. Soon, thousands of enemy troops streamed out of the bunkers, their hands held high in the air as a sign of surrender.

Why did these battle-hardened soldiers surrender in hoards without the least sign of resistance? Could

they possibly have been the target of electronic mind-control weapons?

Courtesy of the *California Sun*P.O. Box 944
Ojai, CA 93024
(805)-646-3187—E-mail calsun@west.net
(Thank you, Nicole.)

BIBLIOGRAPHY:

- 1. Matrix II, Leading Edge Research, P.O. Box 481-MU58, Yelm, WA 98597.
- 2. "Hope for the Deaf and Superlearning for All", Eddy Taylor, *California Sun*, Dec. 1996 issue, P.O. Box 944, Ojai, CA 93024. (805) 646-8855.
 - 3. "Remote Viewing: The ESP of Espionage", Turan Rifat, Nexus Magazine (Oct. Nov. 1996).
- 4. "Analysis of Scalar Electromagnetic Technology", Thomas Bearden, International Tesla Society, P.O. Box 5686, Colorado Springs, CO 80931. (800) 387-0137. http://www.tesla.org [End quoting]

CHAPTER 8

*worldline logo****

HOAXES AND HOLOGRAMS OUR ELECTROMAGNETIC UNIVERSE

by Calvin Burgin 6/30/97

Once upon a time long ago and far away, there was a Babylonian shepherd who owned a piece of amber (Amber: fossilized tree sap). He decided to comb his sheep's hair (Hair: also known as wool) with the amber (he was a very bored shepherd) and discovered electricity. Or maybe he was a Greek shepherd, because the Greek word for "amber" is "electron". His wife came to visit him and he decided to play a trick on her and rubbed the amber on the wool before he kissed her. She got a real charge out of it. He became a very lonely shepherd.

Maybe that story is not true. Much that is taught about electricity and physics is not true. There is much that is WRONG with current accepted electromagnetic theory, ["...it is not usually acknowledged that electrodynamics, both classical and quantal, are in a sad state." Mario Bunge, Foundations of Physics, Springer-Verlag, New York, 1967, p. 176. Also see Terence W. Barrett, "Electromagnetic Phenomena Not Explained by Maxwell's Equations," in Lakhtakia, A. (ed): Essays on the Formal Aspects of Electromagnetic Theory, World Scientific, Singapore, 1992, p. 6-86.] and there is great resistance from mainline scientists against recognizing this fact. The history of science is a history of errors, but always the scientists at the moment feel more or less that "now we know it all" and it usually takes a later generation of younger scientists to finally overturn and improve (some of) the older generation's MISunderstandings.

This newsletter is a continuation of our investigation into electromagnetics started in the last issue [Worldline newsletter #7, Part I and Part II, appeared consecutively in the May 6, 1997 and May 13, 1997 issues of CONTACT]. It is my hope to present a simplified overall picture of the situation and point out where the problem areas exist and possible explanations that need to be examined.

IS LIGHT A WAVE OR A PARTICLE?

Is light a wave or a particle? Is it matter? Does it matter? This has been debated by scientists for many years. In the late 1800s, light was considered to be a wave. When you toss a pebble in a pond, waves spread out in a continuous pattern from the center. When light is emitted, it spreads out in a continuous wave pattern from the source. Waves are not particles. Particles are not waves, by definition of the words. Waves are long and continuous like a snake, particles are little lumps of things that can hop around like a rabbit. When you talk, waves of sound come out of your mouth. Sound is not little particles, little particles do not come out of your mouth, unless you talk when you are eating.

Since the time of Leonardo da Vinci (1452-1519) or before, light was considered to be a wave. The waves could pass through each other, seemed to reinforce or cancel each other when mixed ("interference"), and acted similar to waves of water. Isaac Newton, however, considered light to be "corpuscles", what we might call "particles". Christian Huygens (1629-1695) argued that light was a wave. In 1807, Thomas Young (1773-1829) conducted a famous experiment called the Slit Experiment in which he shined a beam of light on a screen which had two slits in it, say an upper and a lower. The light passing through only the upper slit would cast a beam on another screen behind it, with the brightest area of the beam on the back screen directly opposite the upper slit. This is because the farther light travels, the weaker it becomes. The shortest distance from the slit to the back screen would be the brightest area. The light passing through only the lower slit would cast a beam on the back screen with the brightest area of the beam directly opposite the lower slit. But when the light went through both slits at the same time, the brightest area of the pattern on the back screen was centered between the two slits (NOT the shortest distance) and the pattern was a pattern of alternating light and dark bars. He considered this interference pattern to be proof that light was a wave. When waves cross each other, if they are in phase, they add their strength together, and if they are out of phase, they cancel each other. This showed on the back screen as black bars where they cancelled each other, with white bars being the brightest in the center where they combined.

Here is a drawing of the same kind of experiment using slits on the left and right sides:

You can duplicate the slit experiments using a speaker's laser pointer and blackened glass slides (blacken them with candle soot). Scratch two clear slits close together in the soot.

James Clerk Maxwell (1831-1879) developed his theory of electromagnetism and accepted that light was a wave. This is where things stood until about 1900. The Newtonian and Maxwellian explanations became known as the Classical Theory, as they had been in use for about 200 years.

THE SPECTRUM OF LIGHT

We usually think of light as only the range of frequencies which we can see, and we call this range the color spectrum. The visible spectrum frequencies range from a wavelength of 4×10^{-7} meters for violet to 7×10^{-7} m for red. The wavelength of visible light ranges from 4000 to 7000 angstroms. (1 angstrom (Å) = 10^{-10} m). The frequencies of the colors are 0.76 - 0.39 m (micrometer = 10^{-6} meters). The various frequencies in this range appear as various colors. At the low end is invisible infra-red light (also known as heat), which as the frequency increases becomes visible red light. As the frequency continues to increase, the color changes with the frequency, following the pattern of the rainbow. The order is red, orange, yellow, green, blue, indigo, violet, and then on into the invisible range of ultra-violet and x-rays, gamma rays, etc. You can remember these rainbow colors and their order by remembering our good friend Roy G Biv (Red Orange Yellow Green Blue Indigo Violet). These are the only seven frequencies that our eyes can normally see.

When you heat something, say a horseshoe, as the heat rises it goes from infra-red and becomes the color red. In theory, as more heat is applied, the colors change into orange, yellow, green, etc., until it becomes

"white hot", which is a combination of all the colors.

THE BLACKBOX RADIATION EXPERIMENT

An experiment was performed with a black iron box called the Blackbox Radiation experiment. A vacuum was created on the inside, and the box heated until light was produced inside the box. Since light is a wave, it would be reasonable to expect that as the heat increased, the frequency would increase and the color would increase. However, when the experiment was performed, the evidence did not fit the expectation!

THE RAYLEIGH-JEANS THEORY AND OTHER PROBLEMS

Lord John Rayleigh (1842-1919, discoverer of argon) developed a formula for blackbody radiation, using Maxwell's and Newton's classical equations. When he presented it to the public, Sir James Jeans pointed out that he had made a mistake, and the corrected formula was called the Rayleigh-Jeans Theory formula. When the formula was tested by experiment, it was found that the results of the experiments did not fit the formula. The results fit closely at lower frequencies, then diverged greatly at higher frequencies.

Another experiment called the Photoelectric Effect also caused a problem. In this experiment, a battery was connected to a vacuum tube which had a sodium plate separated from another plate in the vacuum. When the tube was in darkness, no electricity would flow. Electricity would flow when a light was shone on the sodium plate. A brighter light would make more electricity flow, and the frequency should not have any effect on whether electricity flows, but the observed facts showed that high frequency would make electricity flow, but low frequency would not. Once again, their classical explanations did not fit. Scientists thought light had to be either a wave or a particle because they could not imagine anything else it could be, yet their "laws" did not completely reconcile the results of the experiments with either viewpoint.

If you have ever used a vacuum bottle such as a Thermos to keep something hot or cold, you are probably aware that it works because heat does not travel through a vacuum. Yet the heat from the Sun travels those millions of miles through the vacuum of space and heats the Earth, according to the common perception. Even with a common light bulb, somehow the heat from the filament travels across the vacuum in the bulb and makes the bulb hot. The scientists tried to explain this by saying that somehow the heat was carried by the light. And if light is a wave vibration, what is vibrating? Supposedly there is empty space between Earth and the Sun. To solve this problem, the material ether was conceived. Light and heat from the Sun would vibrate the ether and create waves which traveled to the Earth. This ether would have to exist throughout all the universe, and the Earth would pass through it without friction. Since light is vibrations of the ether, and light travels through glass, this ether must also exist inside glass. The theory answered some problems but created others.

Sound travels through air at about 1100 feet per second. Imagine three men on a long, flat railway car, one at each end and one in the middle. Imagine the car is travelling down the track at 60 feet per second (about 40 miles per hour) and the man in the middle fires a gun. The sound will travel to the man at the front of the

car at 1100 minus 60 or 1040 feet per second. The sound will travel through the air, which is passing by at 60 feet per second, toward the man at the rear of the car at 1100 plus 60 or 1160 feet per second. The sound will reach the man at the rear before it reaches the one in front.

Since the Earth moves through the ether "wind", in 1881, Albert Michelson and Edward Morley decided to perform an experiment using this principle to prove the ether. Their results were not what they expected, the results indicated that the ether did not exist.

LUDWIG BOLTZMANN AND THE LAW OF EQUAL DISTRIBUTION OF ENERGY

A classical law discovered by Ludwig Boltzmann was:

E = 1/2 kT

where E is the average energy in joules over a period of time

k is Boltzmann's constant and is equal to 1.38×10^{-23}

T is the temperature in joules/kelvin.

Since 1/2 and k are constants, only T is variable; thus, the energy is determined by the temperature. As T increases, 1/2 kT increases, or when T decreases, 1/2 kT decreases. So when temperature is high, energy is high. Energy of what? Boltzmann figured that everything in the world is made up of molecules. The energy of one molecule was too small to figure, so he used statistics (statistical mechanics) to come up with the energy based on a large number of molecules. This resulted in the Boltzmann constant of 1.38×10^{-23} (joules/kelvin) or 1.38×10^{-16} ergs per degree.

The E refers to molecular energy averaged over a period of time and refers not to a molecule but to a single degree of freedom of a molecule. A molecule can have three degrees of freedom: up and down; left and right; backwards and forwards.

The 1/2 kT applied to each degree of freedom, and since a molecule has 3 degrees of freedom, the formula would be:

$$E = 3 \times 1/2 kT$$
 or $E = 3/2 kT$

But light is a wave, not a molecule, right? What is the degree of freedom of a single wave? A wave can move only up and down, and forward or backward. Boltzmann decided that potential energy and kinetic energy of the wave each has its own direction (I assume he meant up/down and forward/back?), which means that waves have two degrees of freedom. Thus the formula would be:

$$E = 2 \times 1/2 kT$$
 or since $2 \times 1/2$ is 1 then $E = kT$

He found that this worked for one-dimensional waves, but not for three-dimensional waves such as light waves. He worked out the number of simple waves (density) in a narrow band like this:

paste #1

where

C = speed of light v = frequency dv = a certain narrow band

To find the energy by using a spectroscope, we multiply the density of the wave times the energy of a single wave and we write the energy as measured by a spectroscope as U(v)dv where U = internal energy and is the velocity or frequency and dv is the selected narrow band. The formula now becomes:

paste #2

This describes the spectrum of light in the black box and is known as the Rayleigh-Jeans formula.

WIEN'S LAW

Wilhelm Carl Werner Otto Fritz Franz Wien (1864-1928) came up with a new formula for determining black body radiation. He felt that energy <E> varied with frequency v as well as temperature. His formula was:

paste #3

By using it in the Rayleigh-Jeans spectrum equation, we get:

paste #4

where β (beta) is a constant. When matched to actual results, the formula matched when the frequency was high, but was slightly off when v was low.

MAX PLANCK

In 1900, Max Planck (1858-1947), a physicist at the University of Berlin, came up with an explanation for the black body experiments and for the description of light. He noticed that the Rayleigh-Jeans law worked when the frequency was very low, and the Wien's law worked when the frequency was high, so he decided to combine the two formulas. According to one story, a student in one of Planck's classes studied Wien's Law and asked, "Professor, won't it work if you just put a -1 in Wien's equation?" When Planck tried it, it worked perfectly. From this he developed what is now called Planck's Law:

paste #5

He reduced this equation to:

paste #6

The reason this equation worked is similar in principle to subtracting 1 from 2, which makes a big difference. Subtracting 1 from 100,000,000 makes only a very tiny difference. Subtracting 1 when the frequency was low brought the equation in line with the experiments. When the frequency was high, the formula worked anyway and subtracting 1 made no difference.

Planck next combined Boltzmann's constant k with Wien's constant k and got k and go

paste #7

A function is the relationship between two things where the value of one depends on the value of the other. Most functions (a function is like a box—you can put anything you want into the box) can be rewritten in the form of an infinite series, so he further simplified the formula into:

$$E = nh (n=0, 1, 2, 3...)$$

This formula fit the black body experiments, but yielded a surprise. It showed that the energy of light waves can have only certain fixed values.

A wave can be 1 foot high or 1 1/2 or 2 or 2 3/4 feet high. But according to this formula, light could have a value of only 1, 2, 3, ... but not 1.2, 2 1/2, 2.75, etc. The amplitude of light waves could only be discrete integer numbers and could not be fractional numbers. Planck's Law violated the classical Newtonian theories that were accepted as true at the time. Planck's Law "could not be true" because it violated "well known laws" and his paper announcing his findings was at first mostly ignored.

ALBERT EINSTEIN

In 1905, Albert Einstein (1879-1955) came on the scene and seemed to solve the problem. Waves had to have continuous values according to the accepted classical theories at the time, but Planck had shown that light values were discrete, not continuous. Einstein figured that if light is not a wave, then light must be a particle! It must be a particle that has energy E=h! The particle became known as the photon. When this viewpoint was applied to the black body and photoelectric problems, the problems seemed to be successfully solved.

The *Encyclopedia Britannica* starts an article about Einstein by saying he "was one of the greatest figures in physics." A close look at the facts do not uphold that viewpoint, but the publicity about Einstein certainly brought advanced physics to the minds of many who probably would not otherwise have thought about such subjects. Albert flunked what we would call high school. The fact that he was the only Jew in a Catholic school may have contributed to his attitude. He could not enter University without a diploma, so he tried to pass an exam to enter a technical school. He failed French, English, Zoology, and Botany but did well in math, so a friend helped him attend a cantonal school in Aarau (Zurich, Switzerland). He stayed with the headmaster of the school who had a son and daughter about Albert's age. Albert's sister later married the headmaster's son. The school had a good physics teacher, and Albert finally passed his exams to enter the technical school.

Albert never attended lectures at the technical school and had a hard time getting along with some of his professors. Also in Zurich at the time were many socialist revolutionaries who had been kicked out of Russia and Germany, including Trotsky, Lenin, Rosa Luxemburg, and Friedrich Adler. Friedrich was the son of Victor Adler, the leader of the Austrian Social Democrats. Einstein became a close friend and student of Friedrich, who taught communism to Einstein. In 1918, Friedrich murdered the Austrian Prime Minister and Einstein testified in his behalf at the trial.

Einstein attended the Eidgenossiche Technische Hochschule (ETH) from 1895 to 1900, where he studied Newton, Maxwell, Faraday, Hertz, Ampere, etc. When he graduated, the teachers at ETH would not give him a recommendation, so he did odd teaching jobs for a year. In 1901 he obtained a job at the Swiss Patent Office in Bern (with help and string-pulling from his friend Marcel Grossmann) where he worked until 1905. He received a PhD from the University of Zurich in 1905.

In Bern, Albert met Maurice Solovine and Conrad Habicht. They, along with Mileva Mari, Marcel Grossmann and Mike Besso, would get together with Albert and discuss questions of physics.

In 1905, Einstein published papers on the special theory of relativity; the establishment of mass-energy equivalence; the creation of the theory of Brownian motion; and the foundation of the photon theory of light. In 1909 he became a professor at the University of Zurich and in 1913 became a professor at the University of Berlin. In 1916 he published his famous paper on the general theory of relativity. In 1921 he visited the United States "...for the purpose of supporting the Zionist movement" (*Ency. Britannica*). In 1922 he received the Nobel Prize for his work on the photoelectric law (written in the 1905 paper). In 1933 he fled Germany to Princeton, New Jersey, where he joined the Institute for Advanced Study.

einstein cartoon

ALBERT EINSTEIN

Many people connect Einstein with the atomic bomb. He is wrongly often called the father of the atom bomb. Upon closer inspection, you will find that Einstein's major contributions to the atomic bomb program were his use of his influence to obtain President Roosevelt's support for the bomb, and he was the one personally responsible for bringing the major communist atomic spy Klaus Fuchs into the program. Fuchs was in prison in England as an enemy alien and Einstein got him out of prison and brought him to the U.S. The Russians knew nothing about the atomic bomb until Fuchs brought it to their attention in 1942. [Powers, Thomas: Heisenberg's War, Alfred A. Knopf, 1993, p. 524.] Thanks to Fuchs (and to a massive amount of secret material illegally shipped through Lend-Lease) [Jordan, George Racey: From Major Jordan's Diaries, Harcourt, Brace and Co., New York, 1952.] they were able to explode their own bomb in 1949. Einstein was a Communist cell member in the same secret party cell with Fuchs. Fuchs was the top scientist on the Manhattan Project and he gave the atomic secrets to the Soviets. Einstein was not allowed to work on the atom bomb project because he was a known security risk. They did not know about Fuchs until too late. Pavel Sudoplatov, who was in charge of "special tasks" (murder) for the Soviet NKVD was also in charge of the Soviet atomic spy network. He revealed recently that Fermi, Oppenheimer, Szilard and Neils Bohr also passed atomic secrets to the Soviets. The atomic spies that were arrested—Harry Gold, David Greenglass, Abraham Brothman, Miriam Moskowitz, Sidney Weinbaum, Morton Sobell, and Ethel and Julius Rosenberg—were small fish compared to the big ones that got away.

Einstein was a pacifist, except when it came to the Germans; then his pacifism evaporated. He was all for killing those dirty Germans. And although he said he was against national socialism, he very much supported and promoted the Jewish national socialism called "Zionism."

At the 1990 meeting of the American Association for the Advancement of Science in New Orleans, a shouting match erupted when it was revealed that there was good evidence that Einstein took credit for the Theory of Relativity that he did not really deserve.

Einstein had a reputation at the Swiss Polytechnic Institute in Zurich of being a man with poor work habits and was often reprimanded for laziness during all his school years, including at the university. He developed a romance with classmate Mileva Mari, who helped him with his math. His autobiography says "In my work participated a Serbian student Mileva Mari who I married later." She had an illegitimate daughter in 1902, which they gave up for adoption. They got married in 1903, separated in 1912 and divorced in 1919. This is when Einstein married his first cousin Elsa. The original manuscript of the Theory of Relativity submitted for publication had Mari's name on it as co-author. This was in a time and place when women were not even allowed to enroll in high school (in her native Austria-Hungary) and was during the time that she was teaching Einstein. Women could not get scientific papers published, so she had to have Albert's name on her manuscript.

For more proof, see the article "Theory of Relativity—Who is its Real Author?" by Dr. Rastko Maglic and

J.W. McGinnis, President, International Tesla Society, in the Jul/Aug 1994 issue of *Extraordinary Science* magazine, which contains references for further documentation.

Although all the reference books say Mileva was from Austria-Hungary, she was in fact a Serbian. Americans generally do not know the differences between a Slovene and a Slovak, a Serb or a Croat or a Magyar or whatever, but over there they have been fighting and killing each other for millennia over these distinctions. In the media and reference works, Einstein's Jewishness is always emphasized, but the attitude towards Mileva's cultural and racial background seems to be "who cares".

The love letters between Albert Einstein and Mileva Mari have been published [Albert Einstein—Mileva Mari, The Love Letters, edited and with an introduction by Jürgen Renn and Robert Schulmann, Princeton University Press. 1992.]. The editors state in the introduction, "But any attempt to assess Mileva's interest in physics and the ideas she developed in discussion with Albert risks failure for the same reasons that silenced her voice in the letters she wrote: they were discarded, and with them the memory of her possible contributions." Einstein's letters and some of her letters still exist, but someone discarded most of her letters. I wonder why. What a shame.

Mileva was four years older than Albert and was a better mathematician (Albert said she helped him with his math). In Albert's letters to her, he often discussed physics. (Example: "On the investigation of the Thomson effect I have again resorted to a different technique which is similar to your method for determining the dependence of k on *T* and which also presupposes such an investigation.") He often talked advanced physics including formulas in the letters (not your ordinary love letters!), and she obviously understood and contributed to the discussions. In letter #27 he said: "I'll be so happy and proud when we are together and can bring our work on relative motion to a successful conclusion!"

Here is another quote from one of his love letters: "Let the amplitude of a wave train progressing with a certain wavelength in the direction of +x by Ie^{-ax} , where I is a constant. Further, let N be the number of radiation resonators (atoms) present in a unit volume. Then a/N shall be independent of the nature of the substance and linearly dependent on the temperature. a/N would then be a function independent of the nature of the metal and of the form $L_I() \cdot T + L_2()$."

As I stated, these were not always ordinary love letters. At other times, though, they were more typical. Mileva called him Johnnie. He signed some of his letters Albert Johnnie. He called her Dollie. In one letter, he wrote her some "poetry":

"Oh my! That Johnnie Boy! So crazy with desire, While thinking of his Dollie, His pillow catches fire."

I will spare you the rest of the poem!

In letter #54, Albert discusses the fact that Mileva is pregnant again, and refers to the first child, a daughter named Lieserl, who was being given up for adoption and who had scarlet fever. I wonder whatever happened to Einstein's daughter Lieserl? And what happened to the second child?

Marija Dokmanovic, a student at Armand Hammer United World College, is currently researching this subject. She is a Serbo-Croatian and English translator and researched archives to find out what happened to Lieserl. She discovered that the remaining evidence shows that Mileva helped Einstein considerably with his studies. Mileva even did Albert's university homework for him. And Dokmanovic believes she knows who Lieserl grew up to become, but to my knowledge has not yet released the information.

As to the Theory of Relativity, in 1905 the Russian academician A. Joffe visited the offices of the publisher of *Annalen Der Physik* in Leipzig; there he saw the original manuscript on the Theory of Relativity which was signed by both Mari and Einstein (A. Joffe, *Uspekhi Fiz. Nauk.*, 57(2) 187, 1955).

D. Trbuhovic [Desanka Diuric-Trbuhovic, "U senci Alberta Ajnstajna," Bagdala, Krusevac, 1969, Yugoslavia.] wrote a story that told of Mileva's contribution to the Theory of Relativity in which she quoted her mother: "I did not know that my Mica [i.e. Mileva] is so appreciated in the world....While I was there, greatest and smartest people were visiting. They would not start their scientific discussions, however, until Mica came in. She would usually sit on the side, listening. But, when she started talking, everyone would turn towards her—listening carefully and writing down what she was saying."

Researchers have noted that after 1905, Einstein never again published any daring new ideas [*E. Whitteker*, "*History of Aether and Electricity...*", *Nelson, London, 1951*.]. They said he may as well have gone fishing. They have also been shocked that Einstein often claimed that he did not know anything about the Michelson-Morley experiments until 1905 [*C. Seelig:* Helle Zeit-Dumkle Zeit, *Europa Verlag, 1956, p.* 9.], yet how could he not know and still claim credit for conceiving the Theory of Relativity? Einstein stated: "In my own development, Michelson's result has not had a considerable influence. I even do not remember if I knew of it at all when I wrote my first paper on the subject." The Michelson-Morley experiments in 1887 were designed to detect small changes in the speed of light through the ether. The results were negative, thus indicating that the ether did NOT exist.

WHAT IS THE SPEED OF LIGHT?

Scientists still debate the speed of light and what medium is the medium of transmission. In the 1670s, Isaac Newton said that the speed of light was instantaneous. In 1676, Roemer said it was 141,000 miles per second. In 1727, Bradley said it was 186,233 miles/second. In 1849 Bizeau said it was 194,000 miles/sec. In 1875, Cornu said it was 186,400 mi/sec. In 1926, Michelson said it was 186,281 mi/sec. In 1941 Anderson said it was 186,269 mi/sec. The modern figure is generally 186,279 mi/sec, I believe, except that these days we use the metric system. In 1976 the speed was 2.9979246 x 108 meters per second or sometimes 2.99792458 x 108 meters per second. It's rounded to 300,000 meters per second.

They still debate whether anything is faster than light. Einstein and crowd said that nothing could exceed the speed of light, whatever that is. Others now are saying that there are things that do exceed the speed of light, such as quantum waves and tachyons.

The speed of light has been measured 163 times by 16 different methods over the last 300 years, according to some sources. Recently an Australian physicist, Barry Setterfield, and mathematician Trevor Norman, examined all the available data and said that the speed of light is slowing down! Other sources say over 400 measurements by 25 other methods, using atomic quantities, confirm that light is slowing down (I

believe I got this information from Charles W. Missler, Beyond Time and Space).

The book *The Farce of Physics* by Bryan G. Wallace, Nov. 1994, has a chapter called "Light Lunacy" which tells of inconsistencies in radar distances to Venus and other data which showed that the accepted speed of light did not fit the actual data, and says that scientists are being kept in the dark for military purposes. "One finds many hints to the fact that Einstein's general relativity does not give a proper explanation to the transit of light signals in the solar system." Wallace ends by quoting a question he asked at an American Astronomical Society meeting, part of which said: "...the average person does not know of the overwhelming evidence against the Einstein special and general relativity theories." The whole book is posted on the Internet at http://www.germany.eu.net/bookland/sci/farce/farce—toc.html.

A Canadian mathematician, Alan Montgomery, has analyzed the data statistically and concluded that the decay of c, the velocity of light, has followed a cosecant-squared curve with a correlation coefficient of better than 99%. This means that the speed of light would have been 10-30% faster in the time of Christ; twice as fast in the days of Solomon; and four times as fast in the days of Abraham. Prior to 3000 BC, it would have been more than 10 million times faster than now.

And since they use the speed of light to determine how fast the universe is expanding after the Big Bang, it turns out that the universe may in fact be contracting instead of expanding. Oh my my. Do you get the impression that these "experts" do not know their you-know-what from their what-ever?

If you think about it, all through history the ancients have said that God is Light. All that exists can be broken down into light. So how fast does God move? Is God limited to 186,000 miles per second? Doesn't make sense, does it? If you study quantum mechanics, and ponder that God is Light, then the only thing that makes logical sense is that God is the unmoving Source of all, that all motion springs from God. Therefore the original, basic, God Light, is unmoving. If you are familiar with quantum mechanics, you will know that it is full of logical contradictions, yet seems to more closely describe "reality" than anything else. Many of the "contradictions" disappear when you change your way of looking at things, and come to realize that your way of looking at things may very well be backwards.

According to quantum mechanics, all motion is relative to the perception of the observer. This would mean that the tiny spectrum of Light that we call moving visible light does not really move, it only appears to move.

In fact, the extraterrestrials (God is an extraterrestrial) have stated very clearly, light does not move. Light is a phenomenon that is reproduced in waves and our perception of the reproductions is what is moving.

WHAT IS LIGHT?

If God is Light, think what that means. It means Light is Mind. It means Light does not exist in any physical format, except as a reflection of the thinking of the Mind. There cannot be more than one Light, unless the One Light is divided into two or more fragments of the One. The Light is the stillness from which all (apparent) movement comes. The Light is probably closer to what we call gravity than it is to what we call the visible light spectrum. Light is the invisible, still, mind of God.

God is Light, and God is not the only Being (you and I exist, don't we?). God is Creator, and it seems that His highest creation would be to reproduce Himself. Creator creates Creators. Are there high-level beings close to God in development? All history speaks of these beings, called Angels by Christians. What would be a logical way of identifying these beings? God is One and All, and all other beings are fragments or divisions of the God-Light. How would you identify these divisions of Light? Would it be logical to label them as Sam, Fred, José? Perhaps it would be more appropriate to label them as Rays of Light? Could you identify the various Rays of Light as various rainbow colors? Might one being be called a Violet Ray, and one be called a Golden Ray, etc.? I ask this because this is in fact what has happened. All throughout history there have been beings identified as Rays of Light.

"Christians" ridicule this information and call it "New Age". If you want to call something older than the Egyptian pyramids "New", have at it. But it might be wise to ask yourself why you do it.

The ancient Egyptians labeled the Sun God as Ra. The word "Ray" came from "Ra". The magnificent researcher Godfrey Higgins, writing in the early 1830s, said that each Deity "...was an emanation from the Solar Deity, incarnate in the presiding genius of each age or cycle. Each was a Ray, and thus each kingpriest was a Ray-jah or Ra-ya or Ra-ja, and the Rajah was an emanation, or the Ray Jah emanating from the solar power in the form of air and fire" (p.627, Vol. I, *Anacalypsis*). The Ray of God, the Ra-jah, the Egyptian Sun-god Ra, and the terms roi, royal, etc., all come from this. The first words of the Hebrew manuscript translated as the Christian *Book of Genesis* include "B-Ra" or "Ba-Ra" in Hebrew. The *ray* is that which *radiates* in a *radius* around the Sun or Source of the rays. "Ra" became the "Roi" of Gaul and thus "royalty." The fact of the existence of *royalty*, people who claim to rule by authority of God (a false claim), is evidence that traces back to recognition of extraterrestrial beings known as Rays from God. Readers of *CONTACT* will know more about these Beings; others who want to know more might want to call *CONTACT* (1-800-800-5565) and order the book *The Rainbow Masters*, a Phoenix Journal (#7).

WHAT IS ELECTRICITY?

The Mind of the Creator thinks. The Creator creates Creation. We are an electromagnetic universe, so it appears that the Mind creates creation by electricity controlled by gravity and magnetism. "'Matter' may be nothing but gravitationally trapped light" (Fred Alan Wolf, theoretical physicist). Electricity is the manifestation of the thinking of the Creator. All that we call Creation springs from this. Therefore all that we call Creation is a mind-created and mind-perceived Creation. This is exactly what the advanced physicists are discovering, but they have a hard time accepting God so they keep bouncing off a wall of truth, trying to find truth that keeps hitting them in the face. They hold on to an inferior understanding of electricity, for instance, while arguing over the parts of the picture that do not fit their version of the picture.

Benjamin Franklin taught that electricity flows one direction, later scientists changed their minds and now say it flows opposite from what Franklin taught. I remember trying to learn about transistors and trying to learn about intelligent holes that kept moving around. How can there be intelligent holes? How can a complete absence of anything actually DO things? We are told more or less "Just memorize what you are told so that you can repeat it back on the test. By this lack of thinking, you may someday become a great thinker like your teachers."

Tom Bearden has listed some of the errors he finds in current electromagnetic theory summarized, as

follows:

- 1. Conventional current direction is reversed
- 2. No definition of charge or potential
- 3. Equations still assume material ether
- 4. Use of force fields in vacuum known to be false
- 5. Treats charge as unitary; instead, it is a coupled system
- 6. Confuses massless potential gradients as forces
- 7. Does not utilize mass as a component of force
- 8. Erroneously assumes force fields as primary causes
- 9. Topology of EM model has been substantially reduced
- 10. Does not include quantum potential
- 11. Does not include proven action at a distance
- 12. Does not utilize near field coulomb gauge effects
- 13. Does not include EM generatrix for time flow
- 14. Does not unify photon and wave aspects
- 15. Does not include electron spin and precession
- 16. Treats energy as existing in "chunks", instead of as flow
- 17. Confuses energy and energy collection
- 18. Discards half of every EM wave in vacuum
- 19. Erroneously uses transverse vacuum wave; it's longitudinal
- 20. Omits phase conjugate optics effects
- 21. Does not include EM cause of Newtonian Reaction force
- 22. Erroneously assumes separate force acting on separate mass [Bearden, Tom. "Chasing The Wild Dragon: Foundations of a New Science." The Virtual Times, November 12, 1995, on the Internet].

To this list, I would add a very important factor being overlooked: The manifestation is not the Manifestor, but they do have to go together. How can you understand Creation without considering the Creator? How can you have natural "laws" without a Lawgiver and Law-enforcer? How can you have Design without a Designer? The picture is not the Artist. The poem is not the Poet. The symphony is not the Composer. How can you have beauty and harmony in Creation without Intelligence?

Many modern scientists believe the vacuum to be "nothing", yet Faraday and Maxwell believed that electromagnetic effects are observable results of an altered state of the ether (vacuum). The vacuum in fact may be considered a scalar potential, and has an internal binary biwave structure, according to Tom Bearden. Even "empty space" is an ordered "chaos". One would think that if there is a Creation, there must be a Creator and there must be evidence of the common Creator/Designer, evidence of His "technique", His artistic "signature" or "style", a common theme throughout all Creation. In fact, there *is* a common technique. The "chaos" (so-called) of Creation is organized in musical harmonic octaves!

[To be continued.]

PHYSICISTS FIND AXIS THAT GIVES THE UNIVERSE ORIENTATION April 17, 1997

Physicists at the University of Rochester and the University of Kansas have found evidence that flies in the face of the long-held belief that space is the same in all directions (isotropic). In fact, measurements indicate something seldom considered by physicists: that the universe has an orientation. The unexpected finding, determined by measuring the polarization of light as it travels to Earth from the far reaches of the universe, is the subject of a paper in the April 21 issue of *Physical Review Letters*.

The work, which may be one of the most fundamental findings about the universe in recent years, could affect physicists' views about the birth of the universe and suggests that scientists will need to explore how Einstein's theory of relativity and the theory of electromagnetism might explain the finding. That's quite an impact from an effect so tiny that it's betrayed only by light traveling across most of the observable universe, from 15 billion years ago. Physicists have dubbed the effect the "corkscrew effect" for the way it twists light crossing the heavens.

"The big news is that perhaps not all space is equal, for as far back as we can peer in time," says Borge Nodland of the University of Rochester.

Adds co-investigator John Ralston of the University of Kansas: "The shocking thing about our result is that there seems to be an absolute axis, a kind of cosmological north star that orients the universe. We don't really know yet what this axis represents."

This axis of orientation is not a physical entity but rather defines a direction of space that somehow determines how light travels through the universe. In effect, Ralston and Nodland have discovered a direction in space that is out of the ordinary or different from all other directions. The idea that any direction of space is in any way "special" has long been taboo among astrophysicists.

"This work defies the notion that there is no 'up' or 'down' in space," says Nodland, research fellow at Rochester's Theory Center for Optical Science and Engineering.

From Earth, the axis of this orientation runs toward the constellation Sextans, roughly in the direction of Leo and Gemini and high in the southern evening sky this time of year. The other end of the axis points toward the constellations Aquila and Equuleus. (Stargazers, of course, will see nothing special when they look in that direction.) Nodland and Ralston, a professor of physics and astronomy at Kansas, say the axis might have several interpretations: it could be an intrinsic property of the universe, or it might indicate that an undiscovered particle, such as the long-theorized axion, is at work.

The team made the finding by studying the polarization (orientation of electric fields) of radio waves from 160 distant galaxies as measured in previous experiments by astronomers around the world. Nodland and Ralston found that the plane of polarization of the light rotates like a corkscrew as the light travels through space, and that the orientation of the universal axis that they've discovered is key to the amount of rotation. The rotation of polarization depends on the angle at which the light moves relative to the axis and on the distance the light travels before being measured. The effect is crudely analogous to that of a crystal that

twists light depending on the direction light is traveling through the crystal.

Astronomers have long known about a somewhat similar effect called the Faraday effect, which is caused by magnetic fields between galaxies and causes the plane of polarization of light to rotate as the light travels through space. The newly discovered effect is in addition to the Faraday effect.

Though the cause of the corkscrew effect remains unknown, in their paper the team constructs a mathematical theory that explains the observations. The data indicate that light actually travels through space at two slightly different speeds. Such a mismatch in speeds would cause the polarization plane to rotate in a well known manner, in a way that physics students see when they pass light through corn syrup and look at the light with polarizing filters. This corkscrew effect is far more subtle, though: Light traveling across the heavens undergoes one full rotation of its plane of polarization about once in a billion years.

Whatever the cause, the work could have widespread implications. Scientists have long theorized that the Big Bang was completely symmetric. Says Nodland: "Perhaps it was not a perfect Big Bang, but a Big Bang with a twist to space and time." Such a twist would be seen today as a ripple of non-uniformity, perhaps as the axis (an "axis of anisotropy") represents.

Much more speculatively, the work may provide some of the first experimental evidence for physicists who have theorized the existence of other universes. If our universe was asymmetric at creation, and symmetry in the cosmos is maintained as many physicists believe, it raises the possibility of the simultaneous creation of another universe with an opposite twist.

The work also seems to run counter to the notions that all space is uniform and that the speed of light in a vacuum is always precisely the same, key assumptions of the theory of special relativity.

Though the researchers say there's only a few chances in a thousand that the result comes from statistical fluctuations, they stress the need for other scientists to confirm their results.

Questions about the universe and our role in it have fascinated Nodland ever since he can remember, filling his mind as he took long hikes while growing up in his native Norway.

I've always had a passionate interest in the universe and its origins," he says. "We're on a little planet going around some burning mass that we call a sun, in a certain region of space. What is this space, and why are we here? The universe is amazing, and I want to know the most I can about it."

The team's work is funded by the U.S. Department of Energy, the National Science Foundation, the New York State Energy Research and Development Authority, and the Kansas Science and Technology Advanced Research (KSTAR) program.

For Artwork or More Technical Explanation:

Contact: Borge Nodland, bnod(~lle rochester.eduZ (716) 275-5772, or Tom Rickey, trickey(bsadmin.rochester.edu, (716) 275-7954

CHAPTER 9

ATON: YOU ARE NEVER ALONE WHO RECOGNIZE MY PRESENCE

ATON, THE ONE LIGHT 6/19/97

I am Aton, The One Light, come to instruct for these closing chapters of The Great Play now upon your world. Much is set to unfold in rapid sequence and many are those who will be shocked into a state of paralysis (because of their lack of awareness and preparation) by the turbulence of that which they shall witness and experience in this unfolding of events.

Be at peace, you who acknowledge and take within these messages of Higher Guidance, for you are being given that which you will need, in the way of instruction, to meet and surmount these challenges ahead. Many will be those who then ask YOU for guidance in the moments of desperation amidst the chaos.

You are not alone who feel restlessness, unease, and uncertainty in a confused world. Many are the ones who are about expressing their inner turmoil in ways destructive to the enhancement of en-Light-ened man of the next century. Therefore, many there will be who will thereby bring upon themselves the decay and degeneration and destruction of body, mind, and possibly even soul, out of self-created choosings amidst an existing technology base which indeed does allow for the dissolution of soul material itself.

How do you avoid or counteract the state of confusion? Be ever at peace with your inner core. In doing so, you can better hear and receive of Higher Guidance which shall most personally be given from WITHIN.

This is essentially an effort to maintain a condition of Love, in harmony with oneself, though this usage of the word (love) is admittedly foreign to the general conceptual vocabulary of late-twentieth-century man on Earth. This state of attunement can be likened to having one foot planted solidly on hard ground, and the other anchored in etheric space, where physical matter ceases to exist. BALANCE between the things of Earth-matter, and those of the Spirit non-matter, must be sought.

Ones continually get caught up in the temptations that lure ones from their chosen path. This is fine, until the Higher Self begins to enforce the sometimes painful lessons needed to overcome self-imposed spiritual stagnation. This state of spiritual stagnation pervades your planet (that is, the people on your planet) as a whole at this time, and thus the great currents of rebalancing swell up to manifest that which must play out. Otherwise, man becomes so lost in the material that forward soul movement is replaced with either stagnation or, worse yet, retrograde development.

Ones rarely access Me, within, to soothe their emotional and mental states, preferring to seek that which is exterior or outside of themselves for the balanced upliftment that can only be found within. Such is the plight of man and such is the free-will choosing that shall manifest much that shocks many into recognition of their errors. As your Earth saying puts it: There are no atheists crouched among the terrified behind a bunker or in a foxhole. Indeed! Yet such is the "pound of cure" that Earth-man often chooses over the "ounce of prevention" route.

I say to man of Earth: release of thy fears and insecurities. Seek to find Me, within the center of your being. I am *ever* with you, waiting for the moment you shall return to the sanctity of your Source.

Life physical MUST be counter-balanced with movement toward soul advancement. Otherwise, man will perish for lack of sustenance.

Many ones are now intuitively seeking wholeness in various departments of life. Health and fitness, meditation, and self-help seminars are just a few of these pursuits. However, soon the discovery of the Inner Connection shall be made. And once this comes about, a revolution in thinking will likewise also come about.

As ones get nearer and nearer to this unconscious goal that is within ALL, then an outer extension of this inner connection will manifest in the world. You may liken this to a condition of Radiant Peace—manifest and bathing all of Earth-life with a most electrically intense and tangibly physical impact. The dynamics and consequences of such a global condition the Elite of your planet fear greatly, as they cannot function (or control YOU in their Earth-bound, fear-predicated ways) when you are functioning under such a radiant intensity of Peace, manifest FROM WITHIN!

Such is what is SOON to take place. This will begin the turning around of your beloved planet. This is precisely the mechanism involved in the upliftment of a civilization undergoing a cyclic shift toward the higher-frequency ranges.

This, too, is what the Photon Belt denotes. That is a term for the steady but gradual intensifying of Light—My Light. At first this Light shall enter the periphery of your solar system. Then, later on, by 2010, such will begin to bathe and saturate all that is on and within your planet with high-frequency Light.

Under such a high-frequency condition, the materially-oriented (low-frequency) Elite of your world hope to somehow survive. This will not be the case!

Only ones who can match and mesh with the incoming elevated frequencies will survive into the next century. None can sustain who belong to the lowest frequency ranges that describe the evil (that which is not of God) on your planet. Such was My promise to the people of Earth, stated many centuries ago! And so shall it become the dawning reality.

Many are the events that will take place leading up to the millennium and beyond. I come to caution ones of the final days, as prophesied, that you may prepare selves on the inner spiritual

level in order to see you through the approaching tribulations.

Many are the ones who will seek falsely, outside of themselves, for that which only I can provide from within. Man of Earth has yet to re-connect with his Inner Divinity that will enable him to find the balance, harmony, and inner peace which he so passionately seeks. That is where these lessons fit into the play of unfolding events at this time.

Recognize the value of these lessons.

Discover your connection to Divine Source.

Seek within for answers.

Cultivate and maintain a strong connection with your Source as you enter the final days of chaos on your planet before the turnaround to Glory.

Seek and ye MUST find.

Know it!

I am the One who IS your Source.

IAM THE LIGHT WITHIN YOU AND WITHIN ALL. Adonai.

CHAPTER 10

WAS JULY 4 MARS LANDING FAKE OR FACADE? SERIOUS QUESTIONS BEHIND SLICK SHOW by Ray Bilger 7/9/97

In the few weeks just prior to July 4th, 1997, Americans were slowly fed more and more bits of information from N.A.S.A. regarding the scheduled landing on the surface of the planet Mars of a United States spacecraft. N.A.S.A.'s own Internet Website reports: "On July 4, 1997, N.A.S.A.'s Mars *Pathfinder* landed on Mars and the next day the *Sojourner* rover rolled off the lander to conduct the first mobile geological soil studies of Mars." But are we to believe what we are being shown and fed on our television screens, especially with all the "special effects" technical resources available these days from the simulated-image masters in Hollywood and elsewhere?

Suddenly, on July 4th, with all the hype and fanfare one would expect for a premier screening of a new Hollywood movie, America was deluged with a spectacularly FLAWLESS display of the latest success story in America's so-called "space" program. The day before, July 3rd, we had few, if any, clues as to what we would soon be seeing. It was immediately obvious, however, on the 4th, that a great deal of rehearsing, writing of stories, creation of TV logos and special headlines, and overall planning had been coordinated and carried out to present to the public a major media event they would not soon forget. But was this just a slick cover story for something else that N.A.S.A. was REALLY undertaking on Mars?

Listeners to Art Bell's late-night talk-radio program might be familiar with a now-regular guest to his show, Richard Hoagland. Richard's credentials would appear to make him more qualified to be telling us about Mars than the mostly rather young-looking persons we are now listening to from N.A.S.A. A partial list of his impressive scientific accomplishments includes: recipient of the Angstrom Medal for Excellence in Science, 1993; former Science Advisor to Walter Cronkite and *CBS News*; science contributor to magazines such as *OMNI*, *ANALOG* and *SCIENCE DIGEST*; consultant to N.A.S.A.'s Goddard Space Flight Center from 1975 to 1980; organizer of the Independent Mars Investigation (1984) and the Mars Investigation Group (1986) and The Mars Mission (1988); Author of *The Monuments Of Mars: A City On The Edge Of Forever*; former Curator of Astronomy and Space Science at the Springfield Museum of Science in Massachusetts; etc., etc.

So, why doesn't N.A.S.A. have Mr. Hoagland report on Mars? For one reason, they cannot control him! He calls it as he sees it. So we get N.A.S.A. preppies. Richard has, for some time now, been pointing out and exposing major inconsistencies in what N.A.S.A. says it is doing as opposed to what appears to really be going on in outer space. Many listeners to Art Bell's program no doubt eagerly awaited the 10 o'clock p.m. starting hour on the 4th to hear what might be said.

As the show got underway, Art was predictably excited about what he had been watching on TV earlier that day, which displayed N.A.S.A.'s great apparent achievement. Of course, he had as his guest Richard Hoagland, who was about to take some of the wind out of Art's sails.

Richard had been torn all day because one part of him wanted to enjoy the thrill he himself had experienced in the same auditorium at the Jet Propulsion Laboratory (J.P.L.) in Pasadena, California, back on July 20, 1976, when he was there watching the unmanned *Viking* Mars mission. But something was gnawing at him inside, saying that this time it was all just TOO slick and TOO flawless to be real. Besides, Richard has recently been studying all available information from N.A.S.A., which led him to believe the *Pathfinder* was not likely to actually touch down until July 20th, and would land at a far distant area on Mars—namely, in the region known as Cydonia.

Richard does not necessarily believe that the N.A.S.A. officials we saw on TV were directly aware of any kind of cover-up of the truth. They were simply puppets who truly believed that the information they were presenting to the American public and the world was indeed factual and spectacular. However, later on in this report I will mention several NASA scientists and project leaders who met with curious and untimely deaths recently. This is, of course, one effective way to make sure those who won't "play the part" get weeded from the playing field.

As Art Bell began his program, it was almost as if high-level N.A.S.A. officials knew that Richard Hoagland was about to say it was all TOO perfect. An announcement was made that there was a small communications problem between the *Pathfinder* lander and the *Sojourner* rover. This, if nothing else, added an air of believability to N.A.S.A.'s story. Officials expressed confidence they would solve the problem, but acknowledged that the mission's science objectives would be seriously threatened by it. And just like some prefabricated "success" story, they solved the problem the very next day.

Art began by saying the landing "was a beautiful thing to watch". Richard said, "My heart wants to believe that this is what everyone thinks it is. (But) the numbers, the data, the science, the calculations, the efforts of the last 15 years, tell me there is something radically wrong with this picture." It was all just TOO perfect. He also said, "If I heard (the words) astonishing and superlative once (today), I heard it a hundred times from all different people in the mission."

Richard Hoagland pointed out that, at the time of the landing on Mars, the Earth appeared at less than 5 degrees of angle above the Martian horizon, which is very low for radio communications. He contends that, when the *Pathfinder* landed on the rolling terrain, the Earth would then have been behind one of the hills we were shown; yet what we were shown on television was that N.A.S.A. never lost contact with the lander! Richard asked, "So how come we heard its signal all the way through to the landing...? They never lost communication once.... According to the radio engineer in charge of the communications system, he was astonished." Donna Shirley, the Mars program manager at N.A.S.A., reported on CNN, at the very time the parachutes were being deployed, that it would be incredibly unlikely that they would have communication all the way to the ground, but they did (supposedly).

The tetrahedral lander could have landed on one of its four sides. It landed on its base. Richard argued that there was a 25% [actually, 20%] chance that that could happen, if you're lucky. "But we got lucky so many times today (on the 4th) that even the engineers involved in the project ran out of superlatives for how lucky they got." But let's move ahead now to some really controversial, and then deadly, information.

N.A.S.A. had rescheduled a course correction for the Mars mission from June 24th to the 25th. Then, on the morning of the 25th, we were told that the Russian MIR space station was involved in a collision with

a resupply vehicle, almost killing three cosmonauts-astronauts. Attention was understandably (and maybe conveniently?) then focused totally on the fate of MIR, and none of the public was paying any attention to *Pathfinder*.

For 36 hours, no information of any kind was forthcoming from N.A.S.A. about the *Pathfinder* course correction. Art Bell acknowledged that the N.A.S.A. Website dried up during that time. It was supposed to be only a slight correction of a few degrees, requiring a very short burn time. However, the fact is that the spacecraft was carrying 5 times (!?!) the amount of fuel necessary for the mid-course correction. N.A.S.A. would have us believe that one-half hour before entry into Martian airspace, the spacecraft disengaged its cruise module which contained the extra fuel. N.A.S.A. was throwing away 200 pounds of hydrazene which "they did not need and did not use".

Richard Hoagland believes that that fuel was possibly used for a very long-burn course correction, which would change the path of the spacecraft from one of moving toward Mars, to a path parallel with the planet's surface, making *Pathfinder* now orbit Mars, and that it was actually likely still in space on the night of the 4th as he was speaking to Art Bell. Hoagland's research suggests that it will land on July 20th in the region of Cydonia. Why Cydonia? We'll get to that soon.

Richard Hoagland disclosed on Art's program that he had been trying for the past 2 weeks (prior to the 4th) to follow-up on some very remarkable intelligence that came to him from Texas indicating that there is an alternative mission control center for this mission, hidden in the area of Dallas, Texas. It is reported that there is a facility near Dallas which is surrounded by a fence with double-edge razor wire, video cameras, and armed guards. This facility is so well guarded that, when one of Richard's associates tried to approach, they were already turned away by a guard while still several hundred feet from the area.

If information is being faked and sent to Mission Control in Houston to fool N.A.S.A. employees, the American public, and the world, then such a facility, in Dallas or somewhere, would be required to supply the data we are being shown by the ever-compliant media.

Now for some very disturbing information.

Richard reported that on the night of July 3rd, 1997, the son of a high-ranking N.A.S.A. Shuttle Chief named Brewster Shaw, from Houston, was killed. His bullet-riddled body was found stuffed in the trunk of his car at the bottom of a lake. Local police reported it was done by car-jackers. (Think about that one for a moment!)

On June 25th, 1997, the day of the supposed burn for the spacecraft mid-course correction, and the day of the MIR "accident", a Senior Program Director at N.A.S.A. Headquarters, Dr. Gergen Ray, was found dead near his home in Potomac, Maryland, under unusual circumstances. That one was hushed-up so quickly there is no further information on the circumstances.

A few days prior to that, a computer technician working on *Pathfinder* in Palo Alto, California, was found dead. His body was wedged between a tree and a fence in a very well-traveled, upper-class residential-shopping area near Stanford University. Officials in his case claim that he was beaten to death by gang members! How convenient.

And, the Program Manager for Mars Surveyor at N.A.S.A. Headquarters in Washington, Mary K. Olsen, went to J.P.L. in Pasadena a few months ago, and wound up in a hospital with a very strange and anomalous embolism, and died. She was only 35 years old!

Richard contends that the number of N.A.S.A. employees is not that great, and to now see so many of them suddenly dying violent deaths does not make sense, unless you weigh this against the lies N.A.S.A. has been foisting off on the public about their projects in space. Did the above-mentioned employees know too much that they were unwilling to keep quiet about? Were they threatening to expose N.A.S.A. secrets? As with the death of the Clintons' friend, Vincent Foster, we may never know.

Richard Hoagland suggests the possibility that what N.A.S.A. is showing us could be filmed anywhere on planet Earth. [And by the way, don't miss the inset "letter to the editor" printed in a recent issue of a major Canadian newspaper, on the next page, for a provocative possibility related to the above sentence.] He then made a plea to our intelligence: "Please, folks, listen carefully.... Part of this, to me, is an exercise in process, because I want people to really think about how we view and decide on reality.... You are looking at what people are claiming is from another planet.... We are now at the level of technology where that degree of faking is absolutely possible.... I want people to keep an open mind and continue to ask [the] hard questions."

Art Bell then proceeded to take phone calls from listeners with questions for Richard Hoagland. The overwhelming majority of callers leaned toward believing that Richard was accurate in his presentation. It looks like more people are waking up all the time.

But what is so intriguing about the region of Cydonia, and why would N.A.S.A. (i.e., our government) not want us to know about a mission there? To answer this question we may need to go back to the 1972 *Mariner 9* space probe.

The Nov.-Dec. 1980 issue of *Frontiers of Science* magazine, Vol. III, No.1, ran an article about "Pyramids on Mars", by Francis Graham. The article begins, [quoting:]

There are pyramids on Mars. They were discovered in 1972 by the *Mariner 9* space probe, which orbited Mars and completely reconnoitered the Martian surface by television.

The pyramids are located in the eastern part of the plateau of Elysium in the region known as Trivium Charontis. These pyramids are tetrahedral in shape, having the form of a three-sided pyramid, whereas the famous pyramids of Giza in Egypt are four-sided. Near the Martian pyramids are other rectangular-sided polygonal structures, resembling buildings. Altogether, at least ten structures are clearly seen in the area.

The most incredible thing about these pyramids is their colossal size. They are, at the largest, three thousand meters across at the base, and the added polygonal assemblies are six thousand meters in diameter. The largest of these pyramids is about a thousand meters tall, or five-eighths of a mile. The magnificent pyramids of Egypt are simply dwarfed by these behemoth counterparts. The "Great" Pyramid of Cheops is 480 feet high and 760 feet wide. The Martian pyramids are roughly ten times taller and ten times broader. They occupy a volume a thousand times greater. [End quoting]

But what is of even greater interest was discovered by a N.A.S.A. scientist on July 25th, 1976, when he was looking at a photograph transmitted by the *Viking I* Orbiter. He almost fell out of his chair as he gazed at what looked remarkably like a human face (see photo inset on p.10). It was photographed at an altitude of 1,162 miles above the Martian surface, near the mysterious pyramid-shaped structures. (See wide-angle photo inset on p. 11, and notice shadows of pyramids on left; face is on right.) The face is about one mile wide. All of this is in a region on Mars called Cydonia. Quite an interesting region, don't you think?

N.A.S.A. photo (Frame 35A72)

The N.A.S.A. photo (Frame 35A72) was routinely filed, until one year later when Vincent DiPietro, an electrical engineer at Goddard Space Flight Center, picked it up. DiPietro and Gregory Molenaar, a computer scientist at Goddard, developed a computer program for enlarging video images.

DiPietro and Molenaar took their enhanced photos to a meeting of the American Astronomical Society at the University of Maryland in June of 1980. **The reaction was less than enthusiastic.** N.A.S.A. claimed at the time that the unusual Martian surface features were "an optical illusion produced by shadows". (And, of course, the Air Force has always told us there are no UFOs.) General interest in the face and pyramids has grown astronomically since then.

The N.A.S.A. photo (Frame 35A72)

The Friday, July 8, 1988, issue of *The Bakersfield Californian* ran a front-page story (complete with photo) about the face on Mars. The article discussed, among other things, a Soviet probe launched to Mars which allegedly was not going to be studying the Cydonia region.

The article mentioned Mark Carlotto, an optical engineering expert, who believes the face and pyramids appear to have been carved by "intelligent design" and not by the random forces of Nature. The article also mentioned Richard Hoagland, "founder of an organization of scientists called The Mars Project". Hoagland claimed (and still believes) the objects are all part of a city on Mars.

The article also mentioned Brian T. O'Leary, a former astronaut and expert on Mars, who said the rock face "should be a major target for future spacecraft sent to Mars. The feature is sufficiently exciting that we must go back to Mars and photograph it at a higher resolution." Could Mars *Pathfinder* be investigating or visiting or who-knows-what in the region of the face right now, even as you are reading these words?

Have we been lied to? The reader is encouraged to carefully weigh all available data in reaching your own conclusions. Certainly in the past we have not been told, for instance, how the Space Shuttles have been used for weather modification, earthquake production, and other New World Order political agenda action items, as well as for covert military operations, or that the Shuttles have been part of the machinery (including such antenna arrays as H.A.A.R.P.) employed to electromagnetically pulse us in the 10 cyclesper-second range (which is the range of human brain waves) facilitating possible or probable behavior modification (mind control) of the masses. So why would we now suddenly expect that N.A.S.A. is going

to tell us the truth?

As Richard Hoagland said, "This government, this space agency (N.A.S.A.), has been carefully, systematically and meticulously lying, lying—let me underscore that—LYING to their own people, to the American people, and to the rest of the world, about the larger realities in the Solar System.... There is a pattern of deceptions...."

Should we now all-of-a-sudden believe the pageant being put on display by the very agency which is known to be lying to us? When we understand how some people seek positions of power and form themselves into groups in order to control governments, and that this necessitates lying to the general public in order to maintain control, why then would we ever expect some agency of government to be telling us the truth about anything? Do you think they are laughing at us while we watch two rocks called Barnacle Bill and Yogi Bear? Who knows? They have already named some other rocks Hippo, Hedge Hog, Boo Boo, Casper and Scooby Doo! This goes way beyond ridiculous but surely reflects their "regard" for the intelligence of the public at large.

[Editor's note: In the post-4th TV fallout, we see some curiosities: As soon as "too perfect" mission comments crescendoed, the next day we-the-suckers were led to believe the built-like-a-tank yet suddently all-too-vulnerable Sojourner (with SIX wheels, ALL of which are independently reversible) is "stuck" because one wheel is elevated up against a single rock, not even "wedged in" between something! Then, in another riveting episode of this television drama, the "experts" were focusing your attention upon a rock slightly foreground of a supposed "stack of huge boulders piled up by some colossal flood". Then they say—whoops—"We thought this was another huge boulder, but it's only about a foot high...." So much for keen perception of the contours of the Martian landscape. Or better yet, maybe it's all a preview of the upcoming Hollywood Epic called Keystone Cops Landing On Mars.]

It would seem more than likely a strong possibility that N.A.S.A.'s current presentations are intended to deflect attention away from some other agenda they are pursuing. Can you imagine N.A.S.A. going to Mars and not visiting Cydonia?

We need to ask N.A.S.A. exactly what our tax dollars are doing up there in space. Why not write and/or call Dan Goldin, N.A.S.A. Administrator, at 300 "E" Street S.W., Washington, D.C. 20546, phone number 1-202-358-1010, and ask him just exactly what is N.A.S.A. doing on Mars? We have every right to know the answer to that question. However, don't expect a straight answer anytime soon!

LATE BREAKING NEWS AS CONTACT GOES TO PRESS:

First of all, for the past 4 or 5 days now, there have been <u>no</u> pictures or other information at all from the N.A.S.A. Channel regarding the Mars Pathfinder Mission. It has been a complete blank after all that pageantry on the 4th and for tedious days afterward.

· Secondly, it is reported that Richard Hoagland now believes there WAS some kind of a landing on July 4 on Mars, but the reason for the landing occurring then, rather than on the indicated likely date of the 20th,

is an even bigger and more spectacular story than what Richard has already revealed publicly to date.

This by no means indicates that what we are being shown on TV is in any way real. Rather, it strongly appears that what we are being shown is a facade, part of some much larger deception in this ongoing New World Order play.

Thirdly, as *CONTACT* is going to press tonite, Richard Hoagland and a core group of mostly scientific associates just finished (at shortly after midnight, Monday night-Tuesday morning 7/14-15/97) a lengthy presentation of their research to a packed and enthusiastic audience from around the country, all gathered at the huge Civic Plaza Ballroom in Phoenix, Arizona. In addition to reiterating the above points, Richard thinks "something big" associated with Phoenix is still likely to occur between July 20 and 26.

Moreover, Art Bell has been receiving news that a number of notables, from George Bush and Hillary Clinton, to Gen. Norman Schwarzkopf and others, have been spotted in Phoenix recently; as well, Art has received a number of unconfirmed reports of stepped-up troop movements in the general areas around Phoenix.

Both Phoenix and the Mars mission figure prominently in the spatial and temporal geometry calculations of Richard Hoagland's group's "hyper-dimensional physics" projections. We can but stay alert for the next act in this unfolding play!

* * *

Editor's note: Below is a letter to the editor printed in The Montreal Gazette for Thursday July 10, 1997, on their editorial page. Is this person suffering from a case of mistaken identity? Or is this one of those inconvenient (to NASA) cases where "you can't fool all of the people, all of the time"? In any event, we couldn't have invented a better side bar to Ray's story.

A COVER-UP ON MARS?

The frolnt-page photograph in *The Gazette* July 5 captioned "Panormaic view of the Red Planet taken last night from a camera on the *Pathfinder*" is nothing of the sort.

It is a snap I took in 1943 on the south quarter of my grandfather's ranch outside Mosabank, Sask., just north of the Montana line.

I recognized it immediately. My initials are carved on that big rock in the middle.

What's going on? Is this one of those cover-ups? What happened to the bunkhouse?

David A. Mitchell Montreal

CHAPTER 11

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 7/12/97

GLOBAL PLANTATION APPROVES BAIL OUT

Bilderbergers speak with forked tongues, as reports from inside the secret enclave reveal.

Excerpted from *THE SPOTLIGHT*, by Martin Mann, 6/30/97, [quoting:]

There is at least one good reason for the Bilderberg Group's insistence on surrounding its annual reunion with steel blinds of secrecy more tightly shuttered than a Pentagon war room; some of the agenda and quite a few of the deals struck here have more explosive potential than an average nuclear warhead.

That is the observation of a young French political scientist and university lecturer who attended the 45th Bilderberg meeting at this secluded island resort as a briefing aide to Dr. Thierry de Montbriand, director of the French Institute of International Affairs, and one of the conference's program coordinators.

Briefing aides are the anonymous but indispensable research assistants, note-takers, briefcase bearers and schedule keepers of the senior Bilderberg figures who set the meeting's themes and lead its working groups and discussion panels.

In the late afternoon of Sunday June 17, as the principal guests left and the security surrounding the conference site grew more relaxed, this *SPOTLIGHT* reporter met and interviewed several of the youthful Bilderberg aides. They proved, for the most part, willing to discuss their experiences on condition that nothing they said would be attributed directly or quoted by name—a basic rule of Bilderberg reunions.

jacques chirac & helmut kohl

In the consensus of these sources, the hermetically sealed conference setting did encourage some participants to cast off their cautious public persona and to reveal far more aggressive and even radical attitudes on the issues under discussion.

As an example of this sort of personality change these sources pointed to C. Fred Bergsten, director of the Institute for International Economics, a Washington, D.C. think tank.

Known generally as a moderate, scholarly, market-oriented policy analyst, Bergsten was revealed at the Bilderberg meeting as a fanatical advocate of global free trade and its inevitable concomitant, one-world government.

In discussion, Bergsten deplored the fact that most Western leaders—among them President Clinton, German Chancellor Helmut Kohl and French President Jaques Chirac—are still somewhat "queasy" about turning the citizens of their sovereign nations into the rootless subjects of grand transnational corporations.

But politicians can no longer halt or even delay the inexorable advance of globalism and international "market dynamics", and the financiers who understand these new forces now control the course of history, Bergsten assured his fellow Bilderbergers. The audience, which included a sizable sprinkling of bankers and currency speculators—among them two top executives of Goldman, Sachs, the giant Wall Street investment bank—was "enthusiastic", these sources recalled.

Along, with such declarations of one-world allegiance replacing traditional patriotism, the Bilderberg powwow occasionally demonstrates that what some of the world's most respected policymakers declare in public and what they say in private are two entirely different notions.

FREE TRADER

Dr. Jeffrey Garten, dean of Yale University's School of Management and a business economist, is as devoted a free-trader as Bergsten. As under secretary of commerce for international trade under the late Commerce Secretary Ron Brown, he was one of the architects of the nefarious North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA) and a promoter of ever-larger U.S. investments in so-called "emerging markets", such as Mexico's loudly—and deceitfully—staged "repayment" of the bailout funds (some \$15 billion of which it had received from the Clinton administration after NAFTA wrecked the Mexican economy). This payback was a heartening sign of Mexico's financial recovery, mainstream experts assured the public.

But in a briefing paper restricted to the small private audience of the Bilderberg encounter, Garten sounded a very different tune. To be able to pretend it was paying back the Clinton administration, Mexico has gone deeper into hock than ever before, the Yale dean admitted. The country's external debt, which stood at 35 percent of gross domestic product (GDP) in 1992—an already ruinous level of borrowing—almost doubled to a crushing 68 percent by the end of last year, Garten revealed.

Moreover, all these bailouts and borrowings had gone the way of all money in present-day Mexico: They disappeared into the pockets of thieving bankers and grafting politicians. After scooping up well over \$30 billion in bailout cash, "the [Mexican] banking system still teeters on the brink of insolvency," Garten concluded.

ANOTHER DISASTER

The meeting of the Bilderberg working group on Growth and Trade ended with a poignant new break, according to a Turkish aide who took copious notes of Garten's findings and subsequently made them available to this reporter.

Andre Levy-Lang, chairman of giant Paribas financial conglomerate, announced he had been informed moments earlier that Vietnam's banking system had just collapsed.

After weeks of alarming reports that several Vietnamese banks were in trouble, the country's central bank

Vietcombank, had notified a number of European and U.S. banks on June 13 that it would be unable to service its outstanding obligations, bank jargon for "We're broke".

A collective groan of "Another Mexico!" went up as the Bilderbergers summoned aides with portable telephones to begin yet another bailout battle. [End quoting]

It's nice to have someone do a little exposing of a sample of what takes place behind those closed doors.

I read somewhere (I don't recall where) that Colin Powell was given a big boost for president in 2000 at the meeting.

HANG THE JURY

Excerpted from *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 6/16/97, [quoting:]

In 1995, Laura Kriho was seated on a jury in a Colorado drug case. She held out for acquittal. Her fellow jurors told the court Miss Kriho said she questioned the validity of drug laws. The judge declared a mistrial and charged the juror with "perjury", "disobedience to an order of the court", and "obstruction of justice". Miss Kriho was denied a jury trial and not permitted to subpoena important witnesses, like the judge and prosecutor. She was convicted of the obstruction charge. "She was found guilty of the newly minted offense of 'not volunteering information which she knows the courts and attorneys would have wanted to know," said her attorney. [End quoting]

Making laws from the bench is the prerogative of any judge today, since they no longer give heed to the *Constitution*—and it won't change until we **get together** and change the situation. They are picking us off one by one.

RECYCLED TOXICS DISCOVERED IN FERTILIZERS

Excerpted from *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 7/7/97, [quoting:]

Toxic heavy metals, chemicals and radioactive wastes are being recycled as fertilizer and spread over farmers' fields nationwide—and there is no federal law requiring that they be listed as ingredients, *The Seattle Times* reported.

The issue came to light in the central Washington town of Quincy, population 4,000, when mayor Patty Martin led an investigation by local farmers concerned about poor yields and sickly cattle.

"It's really unbelievable what's happening, but it's true," Martin told the newspaper, which published a two-part series about the practice last week.

Until now, the state Department of Agriculture sampled fertilizers only to see if they contained advertised levels of beneficial substances.

But the state is testing a cross-section of fertilizer products to see if they threaten crops, livestock or people, the *Seattle Post-Intelligencer* reported Friday.

"The key question is what toxics are, as it were, along-for-the-ride in fertilizers," said Tom Fitzsimmons, director of the state Department of Ecology.

Use of industrial waste as a fertilizer ingredient is a growing national phenomenon, *The Times* reported.

In Gore, Okla., a uranium-processing plant gets rid of low-level radioactive waste by licensing it as a liquid fertilizer and spraying it over 9,000 acres of grazing land.

At Camas, Wash. lead-laced waste from a pulp mill is hauled to farms and spread over crops destined for livestock feed.

In Moxee City, Wash. dark powder from two Oregon steel mills is poured from rail cars into silos at Bay Zinc Co. under a federal hazardous waste storage permit. Then it is emptied from the silos for use as fertilizer. The newspaper called the powder a toxic byproduct of steel-making but did not identify it.

"When it goes into our silo, it's a hazardous waste," said Bay Zinc's president, Dick Camp. "When it comes out of the silo, it's no longer regulated. The exact same material."

Federal and state governments encourage the recycling, which saves money for industry and conserves space in hazardous-waste landfills [and helps them to feed new patients to the doctors—many of whom are of the Elite—and feed their drug and medical corporations before helping them to depopulate the world].

The substances found in recycled fertilizers include cadmium, lead, arsenic, radioactive materials and dioxins, the *Times* reported. The wastes come from incineration of medical and municipal wastes, and from heavy industries including mining, smelting, cement kilns and wood products.

Mixed and handled correctly, some industrial wastes can help crops grow, but beneficial materials such as nitrogen and magnesium often are accompanied by dangerous heavy metals such as cadmium and lead, the *Times* said.

"Nowhere in the country has a law that says if certain levels of heavy metals are exceeded, it can't be a fertilizer," said Ali Kashani, who directs fertilizer regulation in Washington state.

Unlike many other industrialized nations, the United States does not regulate fertilizers. That makes it virtually impossible to figure out how much fertilizer contains recycled hazardous wastes. [End quoting]

The Elite plans are very devious in their methods of getting your money before killing you under their depopulation programs.

HELMSLEY TO SELL OFF \$5 BILLION REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS Excerpted from *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 6/19/97, [quoting:]

After a turbulent decade at the head of New York City's largest real estate empire, Leona Helmsley said Wednesday that she intended to sell most or perhaps all of the properties, valued at close to \$4 billion.

The Helmsley empire, assembled over a lifetime by her now-deceased husband, Harry Helmsley, regarded as one of the shrewdest deal-makers in the real estate industry, includes 125 properties in several cities, concentrated most heavily in New York, where it includes dozens of Manhattan apartment houses, the Graybar Building and more than 10 other midtown office towers, hotels and an assortment of properties ranging from warehouses in Queens to lofts in Manhattan's garment district.

Helmsley's decision comes amid a bitter falling out with business associations of her husband, who died in January after a 10-year illness, during which he effectively retired and left the management of his holdings to his wife.

The timing of Wednesday's announcement may reflect a keen sense of market timing on the part of Helmsley, because investor interest in many of the properties held in the Helmsley portfolio is considered stronger than at any time since the early 1980s., particularly in New York City.

"She has plenty of money, and this is not a liquidation," said Benjamin Lambert, the chairman of Eastdil Realty Inc. who has been hired by Helmsley as broker and coordinator for the property sales. "But strong markets don't last forever, and I think we will be moving quickly."

Other real estate executives said Helmsley's announcement would provoke a torrent of offers, particularly from real estate investment trusts and Wall Street investment houses that have emerged over the past decade as the nation's most aggressive investors in large properties, superseding individual entrepreneurs of the past, like Helmsley.

Although the precise value of the holdings could not be determined, Lambert's firm estimated that all the Helmsley properties across the nation had a combined value of \$5 billion. Other executives said that would make it one of the largest privately held real estate empires in the nation. [End quoting]

What a waste if she doesn't invest some of these funds into **projects for truly helping humanity.**

WOODY, HE'S NO DOPE

Excerpted from *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 7/4/97, [quoting:]

Woody Harrelson and his mother, Diane, greet fans as they leave the courthouse in Irvine, Kentucky. A judge ruled in favor of the actor who argued that his arrest for planting four seeds of industrial-grade hemp was unconstitutional.

Hemp is related to marijuana but is not psychoactive. [End quoting]

An article was published in the News Desk a few months back about the extraordinary value of this type of hemp plant. This appears to be a small victory, but the Elite act as though they do not want this to be

grown as a commercial crop in the U.S. I would guess they don't want to upset the status-quo-control of products this would replace. The Elite consistently prevent the introduction of better and cheaper products.

Woody Harrelson, Mother Diane & fans

SOME SERVICE

Excerpted from *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 6/16/97, [quoting:]

Nevadans are fed up with poor service from Wells Fargo Bank and they ain't going to take it any more. Once the banking institution gobbled up First Interstate Bancorp last year, the bank closed branches and cut jobs. The result was long lines and fleeing customers. For example, the state of Nevada pulled its \$1.3 billion workers' compensation account. "The biggest issue was service," said Nevada Treasurer Bob Seale. "They are a legend in our state—long lines and poor service." [End quoting]

It's about time people start protesting with their pocketbooks. If enough would stick together we could change the world with this method alone.

SENATOR WANTS TO END EXTRA ATM CHARGES

Excerpted from *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 4/2/97, [quoting:]

Angered by rising ATM fees, the chairman of the Senate Banking Committee said Tuesday He'll renew his push to ban extra charges for consumers who use cash machines not owned by their banks.

A consumer group released a survey showing the number of automated teller machines that levy such charges has nearly doubled to 45 percent in the past six months.

At the same time, the average cost of the surcharges is up, with big banks likely to charge more for the service than small banks, the U.S. Public Interest Research Group said in its report. Tuesday was the first anniversary of the decision by the nation's two largest ATM networks, Plus and Cirrus, to allow machine owners to charge a second fee.

The surcharges, which are paid to the bank operating the ATM, come on top of fees many customers pay to their own banks when they use another bank's machine.

"More and more consumers are now forced to pay twice for the privilege of gaining access to their own money. That's outrageous," said Sen. Alfonse D'Amato, R-N.Y., chairman of the Senate Banking Committee. [End quoting]

When the banks saved money by taking away tellers and replacing them with machines, they felt that they should put all of it into their pockets. Now they think they should be rewarded by putting in machines as

replacements and charging you—in some cases double—for what you had been given as a service without extra charge. They complain about robbers??

This to me looks like the bankers are the robbers, and pretty slick ones at that, since it is legal.

THE \$16-BILLION-PER-YEAR DRUG WAR—AND RISING

From THE WASHINGTON POST NATIONAL WEEKLY, 7/2/97, [quoting:]

"The drug war is the number one growth industry in federal funding, but we've spent most of the money on a policy that basically doesn't work," [all emphasis mine in this article] says Mathea Falco, former assistant secretary of State for international narcotics matters in the Carter administration and now president of Drug Strategies.

drug chart

The old joke around the DEA went like this: What happens when you place three police dogs in a room with a gun and drugs? The DEA-trained dog comes out with the drugs, the dog trained by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF) comes out with the gun, and the FBI-trained dog holds a press conference to announce, "The FBI has seized a gun and a kilo of drugs."

The DEA's critics argued that it was narrowly focused on short-term results, piling up impressive arrest and seizure numbers while making little dent in the big-time-criminal organizations behind the trade. "It was all buy and bust with the DEA," says Daniel F. Rinzel, former chief Republican counsel. "They lacked long-term strategic planning and intelligence. And there was a huge amount of wasted energy and internecine warfare."

Jim Moody moved from combating organized crime to helping oversee the FBI's narcotics work in the mid-1980s. He found the contrast dramatic. "I came from a very disciplined, targeted thing and here's everybody running all over the countryside seizing drugs," he says. "As an investigator it's a lot of fun. You get immediate gratification. But in the overall scheme of things you're not accomplishing very much."

FBI leaders contended that their focus was on destroying underlying structures of drug enterprises rather than merely arresting members and seizing drugs. But DEA agents complained that the bureau was deliberately tracking over the same drug intelligence, informants and cases. Senate investigators accused both agencies of letting their rivalry interfere with gathering long-term, strategic drug intelligence... [End quoting]

The drug war is the number one growth industry because the Elite are pulling a very big scam by telling you they are fighting the drug dealers when in reality they are having you pay them to fight off their competitors and tightening their monoply on the drug trade. Competitors always try to arise when there are billions and billions of dollars to be made.

drug cartoon

The DEA fails to make much dent in the big-time crime organizations because the Elite are the big-time crime organizations and you certainly wouldn't expect them to purposefully do themselves in—would you?

The Elite—not the DEA—are the ones who make the plans and the DEA, FBI and the ATF are nothing but the puppets that carry out the **long-term plans**, which are to protect the Elite from being uncovered as the ringleaders of the worldwide drug scam.

Wouldn't it be a safe bet to say probably most of the seized drugs are put back on the market? Thus they can collect the funds, the fines, the expropriation of properties, and the cash from their sales of the seized drugs. What a jackpot that can turn out to be.

The Elite have been getting away with this scam for centuries and it's time we do something to stop it.

OTTAWA INVESTS IN CANCER PROJECT

Excerpted from *THE TORONTO STAR*, 6/26/97, [quoting:]

The federal government is joining with a multinational drug manufacturer in North York to invest in a \$350 million cancer vaccine project.

The project—described by Prime Minister Jean Chrétien as the largest biotechnology investment ever made in Canada—will create 300 new jobs in the Greater Toronto Area (GTA).

Chrétien's government is pumping \$60 million into the Pasteur Merieux Connaught Canada venture and expects to recoup the money and to share in the multi-billion-dollar profits once the 10-year project is complete and sales begin.

"It's an investment in the future," Chrétien said yesterday after making the announcement at company headquarters in North York.

"It is an investment we are making with a group of people who have been successful and are determined to be successful in the future."

The firm is a subsidiary of Pasteur Merieux Serums et Vaccins of France, a world leader in the development and manufacture of vaccines, used to inoculate more than 400 million people each year throughout the world. In addition to the 300 new jobs in the GTA, the project is expected to create 250 spin-off jobs at research centres, hospitals, universities and small- and medium-sized businesses throughout the country.

The research aims to develop a series of vaccines to treat bladder, lung, prostate, cervical, breast, ovarian, colon and skin cancer, which together account for two-thirds of all cancer cases in Canada.

"This is not only an investment in cancer research but is an investment in Canada, in high-skilled jobs, in the development of products and technologies which will go on to be used in many other fields of endeavor," Bertrand said. [When the Mafia—excuse me, the government—is allowed to invest in drugs—excuse me, vaccines—you can be sure they'll make laws to force you to use them—on a regular basis (boosters)—and then they'll make more money from the treatment you will need for the diseases—excuse me, side effects—of planted bugs in the vaccines. AND AGAIN MORE MONEY FOR BURYING YOU—AS PART OF THE DEPOPULATION PLAN.]

Industry Minister John Manley called the project "good for Toronto" and "very good for Canada". [End quoting]

From the tone of this article it sounds as though the priority is not to help cancer patients as much as it is to cook up another big moneymaking scam!

At the same time—knowing what we know about the New World Order bunch and their vaccines—it appears that millions of innocent people will become sickly and dead from all of the vaccines they will be mandated to take.

In another article in the paper it stated (paraphrasing) that they were "doctoring" the whooping cough vaccine to boost the resistance to the disease and reduce side-effects from the shots.

Remember the Elite's goal of reducing the world's population by billions in the next several years?

I'll leave it to your imagination to decide what they really did to that whooping cough vaccine.

WIRELESS AT HOME

From *POPULAR SCIENCE* magazine, June 97, [quoting:]

AT&T is developing a technology that may allow you to use the same phone at home and on the road. At the core of Project Angel is a transceiver, about the size of a pizza box, that is attached to the side of your house. The transceiver is linked wirelessly (using the 10MHz band) to larger neighborhood antennas that can service as many as 2,000 customers each. This antenna is connected to a digital switching center that routes your call.

The technology is expected to be available in two years; each customer will initially have two phone lines and the capability for Internet access at a very fast 128,000 bits per second. Existing touch-tone phones can still be used with this service. Mobile phones can be used as in-house extensions, giving them extra versatility. Or you can dispense with the wired phone and simply use wireless for both home and travel.

This "fixed wireless" system was actually being developed by McCaw Cellular Communications prior to AT&T's takeover. It wasn't until after the acquisition that AT&T knew of its existence. This technology is

expected to give AT&T a competitive edge in the battle for providing local service. AT&T says it is now working on techniques that will greatly increase the capacity of the 10MHz spectrum and make it as fast as fiber-optic delivery. During the past two years, AT&T has quietly acquired through FCC auctions the licenses in the 10MHz spectrum it needs to provide service to 93 percent of the country. [End quoting]

The service will be a useful upgrade for many, but they'll probably price it beyond most people's pocket-books.

NOW PROZAC FOR TEENAGE DEPRESSION

Excerpted from THE TAMPA TRIBUNE, ??/??/97, [quoting:]

Warning: Prozac, a widely used antidepressant for adults, is about to be approved for use by children.

Eli Lilly & Co., the drug's manufacturer, is expected to win FDA approval this summer to begin marketing the drug as a treatment for depression in preteens and teens.

The drug has been on the market for a decade and is sometimes prescribed for youngsters, but approval will mean the first media blitz to encourage its use among 8- to 15-year-olds who are going through perhaps the most difficult years of growing up.

Though Prozac has worked wonders in some patients and will undoubtedly help children who need something more than life has provided thus far, physicians and parents should approach its availability with caution and skepticism.

The drug, which affects the brain chemical serotonin, can alter moods and significantly affect behavior—not always in a positive way. Each child's case must be decided on an individual basis.

Critics fear overuse of the drug—much like what happened with Ritalin, the so-called miracle drug that gained popularity in the 1980s to treat hyperactivity in boys and girls. Now comes Prozac, another highly touted drug that reportedly can change a depressed and anxious child into a happy-go-lucky, cheerful student over time.

And then again, perhaps not. Depression, a serious but little-understood disease among a significant portion of adults, is even less understood in children. Doctors know that clinical depression in adults goes beyond feelings of sadness and temporary discomfort with social conditions. In kids, the diagnosis is often less certain.

School, shyness, an unhappy family situation and difficult relationships with other youngsters can cause distress. Having the wrong clothes, an imperfect haircut or a poor test grade has been known to send kids' moods into a tailspin. Pouting is a way of life for some youngsters, particularly among those who have learned that the quickest way to get what they want is by acting ornery. It's not unusual for teens to be sullen.

Prozac may indeed be the answer for some. But parents struggling to cope with the difficult teen years

must guard against opting for a quick fix or an easy out provided by a formidable prescription medicine. Anyhow, the best antidote for teenage woes is the passage of time. [End quoting]

Taking the easy way out will only make matters worse in the future. Our drug culture tells us there's a pill for every problem, but many times the only problem it solves is the greed for more money by the medical and drug professionals.

It would be <u>very wise</u> to check very closely into the pros and cons of this particular drug before you allow your children to take it.

ANGEL HERE, ANGEL THERE

From ANGELS ON EARTH, Sep/Oct., 1996, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

One night when my son, Marten, was two he became very excited while flipping through his older sister's book. He jumped up and ran over to me with it open. "Angel!" he said, pointing to a picture of one with big, beautiful wings. I was flabbergasted. We had never talked about angels before. "How do you know what this is?" I asked him. "Who told you?" His eyes lit up and he went to the window and pointed to a tree in our yard. "Angel there," he said. "You saw an angel in the tree?" I asked. He nodded. "When? Today?" He nodded again. "My angel," he said. I pulled Marten close and gave him a big hug. He is four years old now and still talks about the angel he saw in our backyard. I make sure he plays out there often. —Marian Dukes, Atlanta, Georgia [End quoting]

It's nice to know that some people pay attention to what their babies and children have to say. Remember the biblical phrase (paraphrasing) "Out of the mouthsof babes...".

It pays to listen to your children. God often uses them to bring very important messages.

CHAPTER 12

logo 8 spaces

HOAXES AND HOLOGRAMS OUR ELECTROMAGNETIC UNIVERSE PART II

Editor's note: Part I was printed in l ast week's CONTACT on p.11; we continue here with Part II of this 3-part series.

VIRTUAL IS VIRTUE, VIRTUALLY

Virtual reality is a different type of reality. What is going on around you is what we call reality. What you see on your TV screen appears to be real, but is not. It is a type of virtual reality.

A virtual particle from the vacuum is different from what we call a "real" particle, one that we think has mass, can be measured, etc. The virtual particle is just as real, but it is a type of reality that we do not usually think about. Thoughts, for instance, are not "real" in the sense of the physical world; they cannot be weighed, measured, seen, smelled, felt, etc., but you will understand that, nevertheless, thoughts are very real, but they are a type of virtual reality.

Physicists are learning that what we call empty space, the vacuum, or ether, etc., actually is the source of waves which divide the vacuum into sexed pairs of concentrated and decentrated waves. These waves, vibrating at various frequencies and interference patterns and forming holograms (or formed from holograms), are the source of all that we call reality, all that we call existence.

God begins His creation with a Thought. The Thought of God begins the creation by creating (in the vacuum) compressed pairs of concentrated/decentrated waves. The waves create virtual particles, which can be understood to be waves or particles or both because they are originally neither. As they become manifest, we call these particles/waves, "photons".

Photons are energy packets out of the stillness of the vacuum. Once the stillness of empty space "moves" (pulses), the "movement" being caused by the thinking of God, waves of virtual potential are created which "pop" out of the vacuum into what we call "reality". The thinking of God creates an unlimited omniverse of virtual photons, called Light. We have the sensory organs to "see" only a small range of these frequency waves, what we normally call light, but in a greater sense Light includes all the frequencies/waves, such as sound vibrations, radio waves, X-rays, Cosmic rays/waves, etc., and the waves that create what we call mass or matter. The frequency of the original Light photon units has been thought to be perhaps on the order of thirty trillion per second and the frequency of their original source is zero or stillness!

The frequencies and wave patterns of this virtual particle flux (Flux: the river of energy [virtual photons and particles] filling what we call the vacuum or ether) interact and interfere with each other to create by concentration what we call mass or matter. The different frequencies create different matter such as argon, carbon, lead, or gold.

There are patterns to these frequencies. The basic patterns create what we call atoms. The patterns are arranged in harmonics of octaves. There are believed to be ten octaves by some, nine octaves by others.

The pulsing frequency from the virtual or vacuum side of reality creates atoms, such as an atom of helium (atomic mass 4.0). As the frequency increases, the helium becomes lithium (atomic mass 7.03), then beryllium (9.1), then boron (11.0), then carbon (12.0), then nitrogen (14.04), then oxygen (16.0), then fluorine (19). This completes one cycle of the octave; in this case the helium cycle is the fifth octave wave.

The Mendeleev Table of the Elements as presented in the textbooks is wrong. The Table of Nature is actually arranged in a spiral.

The spiral in nature is illustrated in the spiral growth pattern of the nautilus sea shell. This is called the Golden Section ratio in art, and in math is known as a graph of the Fibonacci number series.

The chaos of the random virtual particle flux, also known as the vacuum of space, is ordered by the Mind of God into a basic pattern known as the Fibonacci spiral. Everything else that exists is created from this basic spiral pattern. All of Creation is wave frequency/frequencies. All of Creation is in spirals.

THE DIVINE PROPORTION

The Divine Proportion, also called the Golden Mean or the Golden Section, is the division of a length so that the smaller part is to the greater part as the greater part is the whole. In algebra this is expressed as

$$AP:AB = PB:AP$$
or
$$AP$$

$$AP$$

$$AB$$

which will always equal approximately 0.618 (we say approximately because it is an irrational number, the decimal places never end). This number 0.618 is called the Golden Number. For quick figuring such as graphing and designing artwork, 5/8 is often used (which equals .625).

The Fibonacci series of numbers is:

0, 1, 1, 2, 3, 5, 8, 13, 21, 34, 55, 89, 144, 233, 377, 610, 987, 1597, 2584,

Graphic of the Golden Mean

Nautilus

Shell

Note that each number is the sum of the two numbers to the left of it. If we subdivide a rectangle into a square and rectangle using these ratios, and continue subdividing the newly obtained rectangle into a square and a rectangle, and construct a circular arc so that the center of each circular arc is a vertex of the square, we can obtain the Golden Spiral:

These harmonics and cycles are fundamental in nature. We see cycles all around us. We are familiar with the cycles of time (day and night, months, years, hours). In economics, these are the cycles of Fibonacci and Elliott Waves. The Fibonacci series (Golden Series) is manifest throughout nature. Fibonacci learned about the numbers from studying the reproduction of rabbits. Many plants have branches that divide according to Fibonacci numbers. The leaves on perhaps 90% of plants are arranged according to Fibonacci numbers (the Golden Spiral). The lily and iris have 3 petals per flower; the buttercup, wild rose, larkspur, and columbine have 5; delphiniums have 8 petals; ragwort, corn marigold, and cineraria have 13 petals; aster, black-eyed susan, and chicory have 21; plaintain and pyrethrum have 34; and michelmas daisies have 89 petals, all Fibonacci numbers. The seeds in seed heads are often arranged according to Fibonacci spirals (such as in the Sunflower). Each seed is phi (0.168) of a turn from the last one (or, there are Phi [1.618] seeds per turn).

Pine cones show the same pattern arrangement.

pine cone and other seeds

The arrangement of the leaves around the stem on many plants shows Fibonacci numbers. If you look down on a plant, you will see that the leaves are arranged so that the leaf underneath is offset so that the one above does not block all the sun and rain, and if you count the leaves going around the plant until you get to the next leaf that is directly underneath the first, you find Fibonacci numbers. Some will have 3 clockwise rotations before we meet a leaf directly above the first, passing 5 leaves along the way. Or anticlockwise, we need only 2 turns. Or there might be 5 clockwise rotations passing 8 leaves, or 3 rotations in the anti-clockwise direction. We could write this as 3/5 clockwise rotations per leaf (or 2/5 anticlockwise) for the first plant and 5/8 of a turn per leaf for the second plant (3/8 anti-clockwise).

The number of leaves per turn on elm, linden, lime and grasses is 1/2; for beech, hazel, other grasses, and blackberry it is 1/3; oak, cherry, apple, holly, and plum are 2/5; poplar, rose, pear, and willow are 3/8; and pussy willow and almond are 5/13, all Fibonacci numbers.

frame

In art, this number series is expressed as the Golden Section and is used to design frames for our certificates and pictures. The Greeks used this in designing their buildings, such as the Parthenon, and modern

buildings such as the United Nations Building use this Golden Ratio.

The Universe (there is more than one universe, depending on definitions) is a light-wave holographic universe created by mind. Fred Alan Wolf in *Space-Time and Beyond* says: "The physical universe does *not* exist independent of the thought of the participators. What we call *reality* is constructed by the mind." (Did you read *The Holographic Universe*, as I recommended in the last *Worldline?*)

We live in a holographic universe. What we call real is a holographic image. What we call "unreal", or "nothing", is the REAL reality. Nobel Laureate E. Wigner wrote in 1967: "The recognition that physical objects and spiritual values have a very similar kind of reality has contributed in some measure to my mental peace...at any rate, it is the only known point of view which is consistent with quantum mechanics" (*Symmetries and Reflections*, Indiana University Press, Bloomington, p. 192).

"The doctrine that the world is made up of objects whose existence is independent of human consciousness turns out to be in conflict with quantum mechanics and with facts established by experiment" (Bernard D'Espagnat, "The Quantum Theory and Reality," *Scientific American*, November 1979, p. 158).

Fred Alan Wolf (Ph.D. in theoretical physics, 1963) says that space is a construct of thought, all the universe can be contained in a point smaller than the period at the end of this sentence. The whole of the universe, all knowledge and all power, is contained within each individual and thing. "Matter may be nothing but gravitationally trapped light."

In a vacuum tube (the universe), electricity is transmitted from a filament (your Mind, You) to a plate. When it strikes the plate, photons bounce or reflect off, creating light. That light reflection creates what we call reality, but it is not us, it is not you or me; it is only a reflection of our thoughts. If we change our thoughts, we change "reality". The possibilities here are UNLIMITED, if we can figure out how to actually do it.

The vibrating waves create all we call physical reality. We feel certain waves with our eyes and call them visible light. We feel other vibrations with our ears and call it sound. We feel some waves with out skin or our nose or our sense of taste. We are sensing beings who are sensing a hologram that is like a picture on a moving picture screen, it is not real. If you flip a switch, the picture disappears. In reality, nothing in the universe moves, not matter, not spirit. I do not understand it, either. I am just bringing to your attention what others of more understanding are saying. Since we live in a perceived moving universe of matter, for now I am merely trying to come to a better understanding of it. (I find that if I state what is exactly true, it will make very little or no sense at all, and if I state what has a chance of making some sense, it will not be totally correct.) The Source divides His thinking into pairs of opposites (although the Source is not His or Her: what would *you* call "It"?), but the Source is not the thinking and the Source is not two, but One. I will simply do the best I can for now from my own learning experience and share with you and go from there.

The Source Mind is also called God. The Mind vibrates the ether or vacuum and creates pulsed waves of compression and expansion. All order and life is the result of compression and heat which produce invisible and visible light, which then radiates back into expansion and disorder and into the stillness and cold of death, which is then agitated and compressed back into order and life and the cycle continues

unendingly. Thought and effort and concentration creates life and all that is, while rest and expansion and radiation is the opposite side of the cycle. All is light expressed electromagnetically.

Desire is the cause of all motion. An unmoving Idea creates Desire in Mind which is expressed electrically by projecting the unmoving One Light of Mind two ways to create the two electrically opposite waves of (apparent) motion in the brain of a human, or in the apparent "vacuum" of space. The light waves mix and create mass or matter, such as for instance, iron. A piece of iron is a piece of light. If you heat iron, it begins to release some of its light and begins to glow in various colors. A piece of carbon has/is a different mixture of light, and a scientist, using a spectrometer, can tell from the glow of light what element the light pattern represents.

The Earth and all on it are a motion picture, projected from the Sun! If the Sun were suddenly switched off, the Earth would disappear! In a sense, the Sun is our creator, just as all of the more developed ancient philosophies have stated. The ancient Egyptians called the Sun Aton, or Hatonn with a beginning and ending silent "h" and "n." Even the ancient Egyptians may not have understood fully and the historians probably misunderstood and misrepresented what they described of the Egyptians. The nightless Sun is a lens focus of God's Light. The Sun divides the light and creates planets which divide day and night.

The form of the dividing light wave is most often represented on a graph as a two-dimensional S or Sine wave. This is misleading, as the actual form of the basic universal wave is a 3- or 4-dimensional spiral.

WHAT IS THE ULTIMATE PARTICLE?

For some time, the atom was considered to be the ultimate particle. Then the concept was developed of an atom consisting of electrons flying around a proton-and-neutron core. Then even more "ultimate" particles were "discovered": baryons, leptons, hadrons, photons, mesons, positrons, muons, pions, gravitons, kaons. And there are the charming quarks copied from James Joyce's *Finnegan's Wake*. Is there no end?

In my opinion, the real ultimate particle is the peon. The peon is the one that does all the work.

Seriously, I have felt for many years that there is no such thing as an "ultimate particle". The more I learn, the more I am convinced this is so. Someone comes up with an idea of an "ultimate" particle, and if enough accept it, that makes it real. Some particles were originally conceived as jokes, but scientists started accepting them, and now they are mostly accepted as real. I suppose if enough people accept Santa Claus, that makes him real.

Humans, being somewhat creative beings, "create" the "ultimate particle". Then along comes another scientist who proposes a more ultimate particle. If enough accept it, it becomes accepted as real. "My ultimate particle is more ultimate than your ultimate particle."

The whole concept is WRONG! The concept of the Bohr/Rutherford atom with a solid core and electrons flying around is wrong. Everything in nature is a ring with a hole in it. The atom if you want to call it that consists of rings of force around a center zero-point axis which expands into a hole as the rings expand and decentrate. The tornado (or cyclone) is an example of spiraling rings of force around a still axis center.

HOW MUCH ENERGY IS IN THE VACUUM FLUX?

"Calculations of the energy density in the vacuum range to enormous values on the order of 1.0E100 grams per cubic centimeter, expressed in mass units. To convert this mass density to energy density, simply multiply by the square of the speed of light" (Tom Bearden, *Background For Pursuing Scalar Electromagnetics*, note 28). In my opinion, Bearden underestimates. I think we will find that if we pick a point in space, all the power in the universe is in that single point.

"When physicists calculate the minimum amount of energy a wave can possess, they find that *every cubic centimeter of empty space contains more energy than the total energy of all the matter in the known universe!*" (p. 51, *The Holographic Universe*, Michael Talbott). Talbott also said, "It [space] is *full*, a plenum as opposed to a vacuum, and is the ground for the existence of everything, including ourselves" (same page).

Ponder this: what if that single point we pick, that point that contains all the power of the universe, all the universe as a matter of fact and thus all the knowledge of the universe—what if that point we pick is inside our mind?

Another quote from Talbott: "In other words, despite its apparent materiality and enormous size, the universe does not exist in and of itself, but is the stepchild of something far vaster and more ineffable." Instead of "something", try substituting the word "God". Talbott may have had God in mind, for he comments on 1973 Nobel Prize in physics winner Brian Josephson's belief: "Josephson believes Bohm's implicate order may someday even lead to the inclusion of God or Mind within the framework of science, an idea Josephson supports."

Jack Barnes (PO Box 1135, Georgetown, TX 78627), a brilliant thinker with Quantum Spacetime Research of Georgetown, Texas, wrote a document which states: "This report exactly quantifies the Cosmos and each of its fundamental components. This requires nullification or modification of the theories of both Newton and Einstein. The mathematical content is minimal. The fundamental nature of the Cosmos is exceedingly simple and profusely interconnected. The Cosmos is holographic and formed from one singular Quantum and nothing else. The Zero-Point Energy of the Quantum is the fundamental energy of the Universe. The nonlocal Quantum of energy-time is omnipresent in spacetime which precludes the necessity for motion. Planck's Quantum = g/2 is the progeny of logic." He also says: "Very clearly the Universe is a system of elaborate design and never-ceasing change organized by an infinite intelligence beyond human concept. This intelligence is embedded within the singular nonlocal holographic Quantum and instantaneously accesses all spacetime and each subatomic particle within the Cosmos. Plurality, separation and motion are illusory and chimerical; the singular, motionless, omnipresent Quantum forms the sole reality. Physicality, materiality and multiplicity are pure illusion. All existence is flux, the only constant is change."

Barnes says that Cosmic spacetime and all matter continually fluctuates at a maximal frequency of c^4 (10^{42} Hz) from primary Quantum state to secondary physical state. He says that Quantum energy is the same as "consciousness." He says that the physical counterpart of the Quantum is the Photon. "Matter is simply solidified consciousness."

"Each cubic centimeter of empty space contains subtle quantum energy equal to the physical energy of many trillion (4×10^{54}) universes."

Although Barnes has some fascinating ideas, they are hampered by his acceptance of the Neils/Rutherford concept of the atom. The "atom" if you wish to call it that is actually pairs of rings around holes, not the electron/proton/neutron "solar system" as is taught by most science.

Richard Feynman in *QED* says of the Quantum theory: "...the theory describes *all* the phenomena of the physical world except the gravitational effect..." I will comment that they do not understand what gravity really is. Here is a hint. Gravity is *everywhere*. Therefore gravity does not move! (where would it move *to*?) which means gravity is perfect stillness. The mind of God is perfect stillness. Hmmmm.

The vacuum of space, the zero-point, or whatever you want to call it, is actually MIND. It is the mind of God, and is our mind (which is a fragment of God's mind). The MIND creates the electromagnetic effects by creating wave vibrations, which control the physical and chemical processes such as the processes of cells. Every cell, and every atom, is a ring with a hole in it. Everything in the universe is a ring with a hole in it. If we cut the human body into sections, we find it is composed of rings around holes—the chest, the skull, the bones, arteries, heart, windpipe, nerves, cells. Trees consist of rings compressed around a central core, which expands outwardly and shows a hollow center as it ages. The Bohr-Rutherford concept of the atom consisting of electron particles flying around a heavy center core of protons and neutrons is wrong. Atoms are rings around holes.

The empty-space hole in the center of every atom and in the center of every cell is the MIND OF GOD. This is what is meant by the statements that God IS everything, God CENTERS everything, God is the SOURCE of everything, and God is IN YOU. The empty-space, unmoving vacuum is what the ancients call the Invisible White Light.

JOHANNES KEPLER

Johannes Kepler was a German astronomer born in 1571. He became professor of mathematics at Graz University in 1594. There he was forced to teach the Ptolemaic system that the Earth was the center of the solar system, while privately he was learning from Michael Maestlin the Copernicus heliocentric system (with the Sun the center of the solar system). In 1600 he had to leave Graz because of religious persecution and joined his friend Tycho von Brahe in Prague. A year later Brahe died, and Kepler was appointed to succeed him as court mathematician to the Emperor. He inherited from Brahe a wealth of astronomical information and developed what are now known as Kepler's laws of planetary motion.

In 1619 he published a book called *De Harmonice Mundi*. "It was in this work that Kepler proposed the mathematical concept of 'harmony' in the solar system, believing he had thus further extended his search for unification by marrying together intervals in the musical scale with the angular velocities of the planets" (*Encyclopedia Britannica*).

"Kepler found a relationship between the size of a planet's orbit and the time it takes to complete a circuit of the Sun. He also discovered relationships between the orbital speeds of the planets and the

notes in a musical scale, developing a scheme of divine musical harmony which he published as *Harmonices Mundi* (Harmonies of the World) in 1619" (*The Illustrated Encyclopedia of Astronomy And Space*, Ian Ridpath, p. 104, emphasis mine). Everything in the universe is in octaves and harmonics of octaves.

What are the frequencies of the music scale? This question is not as simple as it seems. A musical scale that has the greatest possible number of harmonizing intervals is called the *just*, or *true*, *diatonic scale*. Here it is for the key of C:

key of c music chart

This scale cannot by used for musical instruments, such as a piano or organ, because the frequencies listed above for the key of C would not be in the correct ratios to each other for music played in any other key. So what is used now is called a tempered scale, in which the octave is divided into twelve semitones, each of which is 1.0595 times that of the next lower semitone. The A above middle C is assigned the frequency of 440.00 Hz. In this scale the frequencies are:

middle C	261.62 Hz
C-Sharp	277.18
D	293.67
D-sharp	311.13
E	329.23
F	349.23
F-sharp	369.99
G	392.00
G-sharp	415.30
A	440.00
A-sharp	466.16
В	493.88
C'	523.25

The fundamental frequency of a vibrating string is inversely proportional to its length, or directly proportional to the reciprocal of its length.

The tuning scale has been changed and some opera houses use various tunings. They tune their scales based on the pitch of A and a few years ago Vienna was at A-450. Some opera houses have A-452, La Scala is at A-442, Florence is at A-448.

It has been determined that there are six species of the human singing voice: bass, baritone, tenor, contralto, alto, and soprano. At proper tunings, the voice fits harmoniously and easily with the physics of sound. But if the tuning is wrong, the singer has to sing out of his natural scale to complete the octave. The magazine *Fidelio* says that there is a conspiracy to destroy the science of musical composition, and since this is true in so many other areas—the powers that be keep changing the yardsticks and moving the

boundary markers—I suspect this is also true in music. They even changed the frequency of the tuning forks. "Much effort has been made by the Venetian-led enemies of human knowledge to obscure, degrade, and destroy the science of musical composition" (p. 37, *Fidelio*, Winter 1995).

Guiseppe Verdi's operas used scientific tuning of A at 432. The A-432 tuning is ideal for voices. Verdi said "this A must be the A for opera." Maestro Carlo Bergonzi of the Metropolitan Opera and others said that "When I debuted, there were 100 tenors of the first rank and 100 of the second rank, and those of the second were better than the first rank tenors of today. What has changed? It's the tuning! In 1951, there were 200 great tenors. Today, there are two and one-half!"

"The effects of elevating the pitch of musical performances, from the vicinity of 430 cycles for A, to as high as 442-446, or, even higher, has been a leading factor in reducing the number of leading singers from hundreds, at the beginning of the period following World War II, to a few handfuls today. Like the Keplerian Solar System, or electron orbits of quantum microphysics, the orbits of the *natural* singing tones are fixed in a few predesignated, narrow band-passes, to such effect that elevating the pitch approximately a quarter of a tone above the central value of that band-pass has a destructive physiological effect upon the singing voice" (p. 28, *Fidelio*).

An article called "What Mathematics Can Learn From Classical Music" by Bruce Director in (*Fidelio, Journal of Poetry, Science, and Statecraft*, Winter 1995, p. 37) shows diagrams of the well-tempered system represented as divisions of a spiral. The magazine 21st Century, Fall 1995, p. 45, compares the similarities of the geometry of the solar system orbits with the registration of the human voice, also in a spiral.

A recent article in the Spring 1997 issue of 21st Century magazine is entitled "The Keplerian Harmony of Planets and Their Moons". The first sentence is "Astrophysics is in turmoil." It points out that stars are being found that are 5 billion years older than the Big Bang, supposedly the beginning of the universe. It lists other problems that are confronting astrophysicists. It says that the positions of planets and moons in our solar system are supposed to be the result of mere accident, yet the solar system manifests a much higher degree of order than can be explained.

The article quotes Kepler's comment on the musical harmony of the solar system: "These therefore are the harmonies which are shared by each pair of planets. In their main relationships (that is, in the relationship between the motions at the convergent and divergent extremes [perihelion and aphelion, respectively]), there is not a pair of planets that would not come so close to a harmony that the ear, where strings tuned in a corresponding manner, could not easily distinguish the imperfection, except for that difference between Jupiter and Mars." He was indicating that there should be a planet between Jupiter and Mars to make his system of harmony complete. Later we learned that in fact there are the remains of a planet in that orbit. The Titius-Bode Rule in astronomy illustrates this harmony.

The article also has diagrams of spirals showing the moons of Neptune, Uranus, Jupiter, Saturn, and the positions of the outer and inner planets, all fitting barred spirals (the bar being the planetary diameter, from which the spiral begins, extended outward to intersect the spiral's turns). The NGC 1300 galaxy follows a barred spiral geometry. The table of the elements should be in a spiral; I wonder if it is a barred spiral?

Kepler investigated the angular velocities of the orbits of the planets. The angular velocity is the rate of change of an angle. Imagine a clock face with the hands straight up at noon. As the minute hand moves, an angle is formed at the center of the clock face by the minute hand and a line straight up to the 12. The minute hand rotates through 360° in one hour, which is the angular velocity, or six degrees in one minute. When Kepler measured the angular velocities of the planets, "astonishing musical harmonies emerged from this" (p. 36). These harmonies are charted in the following table:

chart of planets movements

The article continues: "The orbits of the moons and the planets thus seem to obey certain quantization rules, and manifest harmonic proportions in relation to each other" (p. 36). The article points out that, contrary to Newtonian gravity laws, the orbits of the moons are NOT determined by the masses of their planets.

On page 39 under the heading "Resonances and the Fibonacci Series," it states: "A striking peculiarity in the motions of known solar system bodies—whether planets, moons, asteroids, or rings—is the surprising abundance of resonances." The article explains the resonances and charts them, showing that they fit the Fibonacci numbers.

The book *The Cosmic Octave, Origin of Harmony* by Cousto says that there are 86,400 seconds in a day (24 x 60 x 60) which raised to the 25th octave (2²⁵) is 33554432. It says that 1/86400 times 33554432 equals a G note of 388.36 Hz, which he says is the harmonic frequency of the solar day. The G note is the sol (as in fa sol la ti do). Sol as in solar? What a coincidence. The A note in this scale would be 435.92 Hz (Hertz is cycles per second, and a second is 1/86400th part of a day). "The original Parisian standard pitch tuning fork (Diapason normal) was made by Lissajous and had 435.4 Hz. This pitch was introduced by the French government in 1859 in cooperation with musicians such as Hector Berlioz, Meyerbeer and Rossini" (p. 98). The pitch of A was fixed at 440 Hz at the Second International Standard Pitch Conference in London in 1939, thus bringing it out of the natural Earth harmony. The author shows that the reciprocal of 86400 raised to the 65th octave is the wavelength of the visible light color redorange, 0.702 micrometer, and states: "It is noteworthy in this context that the carrier of the hereditary substance DNA (Deoxyribonucleic acid), of which chromosomes consist, has a maximum of resonance at 0.351 micrometer (according to Popp, University of Marburg). 0.351 micrometer is precisely half the wavelength of the color of the day, 0.702 micrometer. The hereditary substance of man has a maximum of resonance which coincides with the 66th octave of the average solar day..."

WHAT IS THE SOURCE OF OUR MEASUREMENT SYSTEMS?

Currently we use a metric system, but originally we used a system based on the numbers 6 and 12 (which is 2 x 6). Each digit has a name—one, two, three, four, five, six, seven, eight, nine, ten, eleven, twelve, then we continue by combining names—thir-teen (three and ten), four-teen (four and ten), etc. Our original numbering system was not decimal (based on ten, from counting our fingers so we were taught in school), not binary (which is what computers use), not octal nor hexadecimal (which is what computer program-

mers use), but ours was sexagesimal, based on six.

The original calendar was a year of $360 (60 \times 6)$ days, $12 (2 \times 6)$ months of $30 (5 \times 6)$ days each. The days are divided into 12 or 24 hours, 60 minutes in an hour, 60 seconds in a minute. A cubit was 30 fingers. The cord was 120 cubits or 3600 fingers. The league was 180 cords. The foot is 12 inches. There are 3 feet in a yard. We buy eggs by the dozen or by the gross (12×12). The smallest unit of weight was the grain, the shekel was 180 grains (3×60), and the talent was 3600 shekels. The troy ounce is $480 (80 \times 6)$ grains and 12 troy ounces per troy pound (called troy because it traces back to ancient Troy, and they got it from Egypt and Babylon). Pure gold is $24 (4 \times 6)$ karats; fine gold jewelry is $18 (3 \times 6)$ karats.

We inherited our numbering system from ancient Babylon, which used a base 60 system. We count one hundred, two hundred, three hundred, they counted one sixty, two sixties, three sixties, etc. In the Babylonian system, all fractions were represented by one number, because they were all an exact number of sixtieths. In decimal, we have to round off 1/3, 1/4, or 1/6 but the Babylonian system did not have that inconvenience for the common fractions. We still use the Babylonian system in geometry and trigonometry. Zecharia Sitchin has written a series of books whose theme is that our numbering system and much else was given to us by *extraterrestrials*.

[*To be continued.*]

CHAPTER 13

SOLTEC: RECENT VOLCANIC CLUES TO WHAT'S ON THE WAY 7/12/97 SOLTEC

Good morning, my friend. It is I, Toniose Soltec, come in the Radiant One Light of Creator Source. Find peace within and let us continue.

Your planet is convulsing and very few seem to be paying attention to the clues that are unfolding all around you. The masters of distraction have, indeed, done their jobs well.

Approximately six weeks ago, I asked that *CONTACT* re-run my "Tutorial On Volcanos And Related Geophysics" [*in the May 20, 1997 issue*] from writings I delivered through Dharma in 1990 and 1993. That review was for a specific purpose and I believe those of you who are paying attention to the geophysical news of late can appreciate why.

Since the beginning of 1997, there have been approximately 20 significant volcanic eruptions worldwide on your planet. As I have lectured at length in the past, there is a close connection between volcanic eruptions and the tectonic plate motions that produce major earthquake activity. Both the frequency and violence (magnitude) of these volcanic eruptions are good indicators of Mother Earth's rising "blood pressure" condition.

One of the most important recent events was the newest series of explosive eruptions of 18,000-foot-high Mount Popocatepetl in Mexico, starting about April 24, 1997. According to reports by your own geologists studying that volcano: "Explosions at Popocatepetl from April 24-28 destroyed the lava dome inside the throat of the volcano. The lava dome had been growing since January 1997. An explosion on April 24 sent ash 13,000 feet above the summit." And then, on June 30, 1997: "Popocatepetl threw ash 7.5 miles into the air on Monday, June 30, during its largest eruption since 1925. Lava was also thrown 1500 feet into the air. This event led to the first ash fall in Mexico City, 45 miles from the volcano, in over 70 years.... At least 15 small towns are planned to be evacuated including about 300,000 people who live on the flanks of the volcano."

The second significant volcanic event happened this past week near Italy. Watch closely the recent (and still ongoing) eruption of 11,000-foot-high Mount Etna, in eastern Sicily, on July 8, not very far from 4,000-foot-high sister volcano Mount Vesuvius, near Naples, Italy (which buried the city of Pompeii in a thick layer of volcanic ash in the twinkling of an eye in 79 A.D.). Recall, please, the timing clues for major Earth changes connected to these sister volcanos as given forth by ones such as Edgar Cayce.

There are many pieces of the puzzle now coming together and a more complete picture is beginning to unfold. As you watch these volcanos come to life, feel compassion for a very longsuffering and patient Mother Earth as she begins the process of rebalancing in earnest.

You who are there on the Earth now will witness the great changes prophesied through many sources. There is NO avoiding this inevitability.

PREPARATION IS THE KEY TO SURVIVAL!

We, of the Hosts, have said over and over to prepare, yet we see many who sit and wait for another to somehow do it for them. We can do much more to help you—IF you take action and focus your energies on helping yourselves, FIRST!

For example, in my first public writing through this receiver, on 6/13/96 [a writing which was, by the way, scribbled on some old, chemical-stained scraps of laboratory notepaper, as that receiver was interrupted by "the call" right in the middle of some chemical analyses work at the receiver's place of employment], I emphasized:

"Dream time is long over and those still running around in La La Land shall wish they had awakened to find out what all the commotion was for. Indeed, the changes shall come: 'Like a thief in the night', as far as the general masses are concerned.

"But, for those who have heard the 'alarm clock', you shall see much of what we, of the Hosts of Lighted God, have told you, time and time again, shall come to pass. There shall be much excitement for those of you who have prepared. God truly helps those of you who make efforts to help selves.

"Even if you do not notice all the subtle clues along the way, know in your heart that He is there and is helping you along your way. Pay attention to the seeming coincidences, for NOTHING HAPPENS BY CHANCE—especially now, and from here on out."

When you take action in the physical, you are reinforcing the mind's desires and amplifying the creative energy necessary for the manifestation of the thought or desire. As the desire begins manifesting in physical space, ones around you, either directly or indirectly, will be adding their energy to that which you are creating.

We, of the non-physical realms, can add our energy to that which has already been set into motion, in many direct and indirect ways. The key is to solidify your intent WITH ACTION, and ask for assistance and guidance while DOING your part.

We have helped many to produce the "miracles" that defy mere coincidence or luck. Yet, many will still view it as mere "luck" or "coincidence", not realizing the true nature of the dynamics set in motion when they first take sincere and determined action in the physical.

Also, some more aware ones will realize that there is a Higher Guidance assisting them. These ones will rightfully and humbly give thanks for the assistance that manifests in their lives. You ones are fond of an expression that goes something like: "Luck favors those who help themselves." You might take a moment to ponder on the possibilities of that elusive thing called "luck"!

Our main concern in this regard is that we see many of you just sitting around and worrying over the upcoming Earth changes and economic collapse. We see that you are either too frightened, or too easily distracted by the daily matters of living, to take serious actions in preparation.

Many ones have great excuses, such as: "I have a family to take care of and not enough extra money for such things." Or another good one: "My family thinks I am crazy and they resist my reasoning with them on the subject of survival preparation." And then there's the perennial fall-back position: "I only have to take care of myself and I can survive on very little; therefore why should I prepare?"

I think you ones get the idea here. There are many other colorful, yet sad, excuses that are given. Many of you who have not yet prepared, will not prepare, and such is YOUR choice.

If money be your excuse in any way, then I would suggest you look carefully at that upon which you spend your money—that is, what has value to you. What is it that you buy that is truly necessary? What are the not-so-necessary items that are more for your immediate pleasures?

It is wise to have balance in all things. When you can prioritize, with responsibility, you will find that you can have the best of both worlds.

When you can learn to prepare not only for self and your immediate family, but perhaps ALSO for your neighbor, then you will find that you will draw into your experience the creative energies necessary to manifest all of the things that you truly desire. The basic Law of Giving and Regiving operates quite well here.

A large bag of beans or rice is truly inexpensive, as is a large container of peanut butter. If you make the effort to shop around, you can stretch a dollar QUITE far when you focus your energy upon doing so.

Going to fast-food restaurants will deplete your funds faster than you may realize. When you pay a dollar or more for a single cup of carbonated, flavored sugar-water, you would be wise to reflect upon your health, as well as upon what you COULD buy with the money that you spend, on a regular basis, on such nutritionally empty items.

The point here is NOT to tell you how to live your lives or how to spend your money. The point here is to get you to take a look at the day-to-day robotic actions (actions taken with little or no thought) that you ones seem to not notice.

The mind-control experts have done their jobs very well through the media machinery of advertising campaigns. Do you really NEED that cup of sugar water or that cigarette or that beer? How about the fourth one of the day? Do you really NEED a new car every few years? Do you really NEED those expensive vacations?

When the Earth changes or the economic collapse impact your lives, you will then know what you truly NEED versus that which you "think" you need. You WILL figure it out, one way or an-

other—sooner OR later! This is where Mother Earth's "school of hard knocks" comes into the picture!

There is great wisdom in diligently going about the business of preparation, and all of the contrite choruses of "I should have listened" that many will be singing AFTER the fact, will not ease those empty stomachs—whether such be your family's stomachs, or those of your neighbors and their children.

We, of the Hosts, have been sent at this time to give forth the warning messages that were promised to you at this time so that your excuse cannot be that you were not warned and that you did not know.

In that same 6/13/96 writing, I also warned:

"That which has been prophesied is at hand. You are in the Ending Times of the current cycle of humanity on that orb. This is a time when chaos reigns supreme, for the confusion of change is overwhelming to the masses.

"All things continue in a revolving, evolving spiral of never-ending cycles of birth-growth-decay-rebirth. Out of the old harshness of chaos shall spring forth the peace and balance that you ones constantly seek.

"These are grand times for experiencing. The Light shall reign supreme. The awakening masses shall overcome or succumb to their ignorance. It is always their choice."

I will ask you here and now: What causes you to read these messages in the first place? What part of yourself allows you to accept these messages, even when others are laughing at you or are antagonistic towards your beliefs? Learn to consciously connect with who you really are and from where you come, AND KNOW THAT IT IS BECAUSE YOU ARE GROUND CREW!

Ground Crew is part of the team sent to assist in the awakening of the ones on this planet at this time. You lead by example. That means that when you are compelled to tell another that they should prepare, then they, in turn, are most likely to ask you: "Do YOU have food supplies stored up?" Now, if the honest answer is "No", then how effective do you think your efforts are going to be toward convincing others of the seriousness of that which is offered here?

Live your life AS AN EXAMPLE for others to follow and you will be doing a great service to those who cross your path! There is a phrase on your planet which goes something like, "Nothing is more annoying than a good example." Indeed!

If you invite someone over to your dwelling, and you have to ask them to excuse the cases of canned food in your living-room area because that is the only available space in which to store the overstock, this will speak a certainty and conviction of who you are and how serious you are. Remember—ACTIONS ALWAYS SPEAK LOUDER THAN DO WORDS! ALWAYS!

Please know that the resisting family members will be thankful to have food to eat and candles to light the darkened hours of the night, or the unhybridized seeds to plant that will symbolize hope

for the coming months. The greatest teaching can and will be done when there is no distraction from the television or such!

There will come a resurgence of community. Ones will again come to know who are their neighbors and what it means to be neighborly. The man-made distinctions of race, color, creed, or religious conviction will also drop away. You will all be faced with a common reality—DAY-TO-DAY SURVIVAL!

Please take whatever action is necessary to prepare yourselves for the extreme possibilities. You will be thankful that you did and you may save many lives.

Thank you for taking the time to read this message.

Call upon We, of the Lighted Brotherhood, for assistance along the way.

BUT—YOU take the first step and build the momentum! FEEL, in your heart, the connectedness to those around you, and KNOW that your actions will teach, where your words fall onto deaf ears.

I am Toniose Soltec. I come as the Geophysical Commander for your planet at this time. I am sent by Our Father, as are many of YOU! Face your challenges with His Light in your heart, and create the miracle. In Light and Love, blessings to C you ALL! Salu

CHAPTER 14

WHICH NEWS IS REAL NEWS? WATCH CLOSELY THE REST OF JULY & AUGUST

by Ray Bilger 7/20/97

Consider the following items as a kind of composite news update on the world (including geophysical) scene. Any one of these, alone, may not necessarily raise a "red flag", but they are like pieces of a puzzle which, when taken together, create a most serious picture. So consider the following items in stark contrast to the controlled media's pageantry and blather:

- 1. Commander Soltec cautioned, on July 3rd, 1997, in a communication which first appeared on the CONTACT Telephone Hotline on the same day, that "Further pulsing (of the San Andreas Fault) will surely trip the fault before month's end (July)—barring some major volcanic eruption in Mexico or quake in Japan that relieves the stress". Just in the past several days there have been a number of large South American and South Pacific quakes reportedly of magnitudes approximately in the 6 range. As well, there has been a general increase and intensification of quake activity all around the Pacific Plate, as well as quakes occurring in locations not generally prone to such activity.
- 2. The June 24th, 1997 issue of CONTACT warned of an "Islamic Holy War" the week of July 20-27 wherein Anthrax and Bubonic Plague could possibly be released on the American public. Exactly who (more likely the New World Order crooks) might ACTUALLY be instigating any upcoming bug attack, is a matter of question, but you can be sure such will be blamed upon the innocent, for the usual NWO political agenda reasons.
- 3. Ray Renick, who exposed the San Luis Obispo, CA, den of Reagan-related high-level crooks in the New World Order cast of characters, and who is currently in prison, recently pointed out that the 1,260 days of Revelation in the Bible, if we count backward from the end of the century on Dec. 31, 2000, begins on July 20, 1997.
- 4. Richard Hoagland, at a major conference in Phoenix, Arizona, on July 14, 1997, stated that he feels something is about to happen in Phoenix between July 20th and the 26th. He suggested it could be a theme like in the movie "Close Encounters of the Third Kind", where beings not from this planet make their presence known to us. We do have sightings of NWO notables like George Bush, Hillary Clinton, Norman Schwarzkopf and many others in Phoenix recently, along with an undetermined number of military troops.
- 5. In "anticipation" of Hoagland's announcement, Commander Soltec, in a writing on June 21, 1997, said, "Be careful, for there is the allowance by the global Elite, at this time, for the introduction into the world consciousness of the realization that there is extraterrestrial life visiting your planet and on your planet. This is to prepare you-the-people for the next phase of unification under a one-world dictatorship as these ones will try to convince you that these 'aliens' are attacking you."
- 6. Commander Soltec, in a communication on July 12, 1997, commenting on the July 8th eruption of Mt. Etna in Sicily and noting its proximity to Mt. Vesuvius, which buried the City of Pompeii in 79 A.D., said,

"Recall, please, the timing clues for major Earth changes connected to these sister volcanos as given forth by ones such as Edgar Cayce." He also said in the same writing, "There are many pieces of the puzzle now coming together.... You who are there on the Earth now will witness the great changes prophesied through many sources. There is no avoiding this inevitability."

- 7. On July 12, 1997, the lava flow from Kilauea Volcano in Hawaii reached the Pacific Ocean. A striking river of lava, now six miles long, stretches to the sea.
- 8. Hakkoda Volcano is located in Northeastern Japan. There are no historic records of any eruptions there, but on July 12, 1997, three soldiers on a routine training mission died after being overcome by breathing carbon dioxide gas. Strong sulfurous gases are known to be emitted from many holes and depressions in the area of the volcano. Farmers in the area say that they have seen dead animals near the volcano on several occasions.
- 9. In Gordon-Michael Scallion's Earth Changes Report for July 1997, there is an article by Gordon entitled "What Is Going on With Our Weather?" Gordon publishes information only after receiving three visions on any given subject. In this article he talked about being taken on a dream voyage within the Earth, where he was able to witness the dynamics of plasma forces at work.

It was revealed to him that there are currently over 5,000 active volcanos underwater, worldwide, on the bottom of Earth's oceans. The thermal heating from all of this is carried to the surface and then into the atmosphere, becoming part of our weather pattern systems. Gordon also revealed what Commanders Hatonn and Soltec have warned for nearly a decade now—that winds of high velocity will be created by the heating of the oceans, and then driven over land.

- 10. On May 9, 1997, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (N.O.A.A.) issued an advisory indicating that they expect El Nino conditions to intensify. In an article in the May 24 issue of Science News, N.O.A.A. stated that this was because "waters have warmed rather rapidly throughout the central equatorial Pacific, as well as near the South American coast." Those familiar with the agenda of N.O.A.A. are probably aware of their involvement in creating weather, including hurricanes, so they should know what they're talking about—whether or not they tell us the truth.
- 11. Also in the July 1997 issue of Scallion's Earth Changes Report is a letter from a reader in Alberta, Canada. The letter conveys the essence of a dream the reader had in August of 1996. In the dream the person was in a restaurant with many people, when a noise outside caught the attention of everyone, and it turned out to be a spacecraft. The person didn't panic, but was suddenly holding in their hand a mug from the spacecraft with codes written on it. Among the codes was one about "WM WD, August 1997". In the dream the person realized, after about five minutes, that this was a warning about Wormwood in August of 1997 and that the person had to warn the people about it. The dream has been with the reader ever since. In Gordon's response to the letter, he states that he believes this summer will be challenging for the Earth (and, of course, for the people thereon).
- 12. And, the stock market on Wed. July 16, 1997, closed above 8,000 for the first time. Some analysts state that it shouldn't be there and that it is out of control. It only appears out of control to those who do not understand the mechanics involved. It is being controlled, make no mistake about that. The question

we should ask is: are they now ready to collapse it? The timing will most likely be in conjunction with other engineered, large-scale disruptions.

- 13. And then, in the Bakersfield Californian for Wednesday, July 16, 1997, it was reported: "Glenn Wilburn, who was so angry over the death of his grandsons in the Oklahoma City bombing and so mistrustful of the official investigation that he forced the opening of a new grand jury probe, died Tuesday. He was 46." It remains to be seen if ANYONE of honest intent will live to testify in conjunction with that cover-up.
- 14. As another possibly related story, Sir James Goldsmith is dead (deaded?) at age 64. The Bakersfield Californian reported on July 20 that "the cosmopolitan billionaire who formed his own political party to crusade against European unification, has died." Of course, the newspaper does not give us any unusual reason for this death. One wonders if he, a powerful money man especially proficient in the world of global financial manipulation, might have made a better-late-than-never decision to go against the One World Controllers.
- 15. And another curious death: Astronomer Eugene Shoemaker has died in Australia at age 69. A resident of Arizona, he had been involved in the Apollo missions to the Moon, and he co-discovered the comet Shoemaker-Levy 9, which (supposedly) slammed into Jupiter in 1994. The Associated Press reported that he "was killed in a car accident Friday (July 18) in Australia during an annual trip to search for asteroid craters."

"Shoemaker died in a two-car accident on a dirt road about 310 miles north of Alice Springs, in central Australia, police there said."

One of his colleagues, Laurence Soderblum, who is working on the Mars Pathfinder mission, said of Shoemaker, "Any area he went into, his contributions stood in mammoth proportion above the rest of us mortals".

Just what did Shoemaker know? Remember the curious array of recent deaths associated with the Mars mission that I reported on in last week's *CONTACT*? Are the Elite picking up the pace with elimination of any possible opposition to their plans?

16. Meanwhile, the news from N.A.S.A. about Mars (i.e., Saskatchewan, according to the inset news item associated with last week's Front Page story) reported that communications with Pathfinder were down on Saturday (July 19) and then again on Sunday. Sojourner is parked up against a rock named Scooby-doo, and scientists are just waiting "excitedly" to get the data on it.

As the lights on that ring of the media circus dimmed temporarily, the "entertainment" distraction was immediately shifted to lengthy, glitzy blather about an obscure, fringe-lifestyle fashion designer slain in Miami, Florida under curiously depraved circumstances.

17. As a reference point that may help to put all of this and more into perspective: in 1994, the Strategic Studios Institute of the U.S. Army War College produced a paper entitled "The Revolution in Military Affairs and Conflict Short of War", which described fundamental changes in the planned future mission of

the U.S. military. These changes would include the use of sensor technology, robotics, nonlethal (psychotronic) weapons, and intelligence meshes to be used in combating terrorism (defined as such, of course, by the biggest and most powerful terrorists in the world—the Elite).

The document states in part that, "Behavior Modification is a key component of peace enforcement...." That "proposed information warfare capabilities might be ideally suited for helping develop desired emotions, attitudes and behaviors".

The report goes on: "The use of new technology may also run counter to basic American values...." And "Deception, while frequently of great military or political value, is thought of as somehow un-American.... The majority of Americans may find the use of many of the emerging technologies morally difficult..."

The report recognizes that overcoming these constraints may require fundamental changes in the United States itself. Or, as the report suggests, an alternative could be: "We could deliberately engineer a comprehensive revolution, seeking utter transformation rather than simply an expeditious use of new technology." Has that time finally arrived in full?

If we carefully consider just the above information, it becomes quite obvious that something or somethings very big may be about to happen. The Elite have a lot of no-good things on the burners ready to go. However, it seems they've forgotten that the Earth is a living, breathing organism which is about to cleanse and rebalance herself from what mankind collectively has done to her against the Laws of God.

Anyone with access to the Internet may be interested in checking out the seismic, volcanic, and sea surface temperature information that Stan Deyo has on his Website. Stan is an excellent researcher and scientist in Australia and his Web address is http://www.iinet.net.au/~standeyo/. When you get there, go to his "Geophysical Links".

It may be that Space Command will soon make their presence known in a more public display. Or we could witness a fake "alien invasion" put on by the New World Order's mind-control engineers—the case that Commanders Hatonn and Soltec each warned us about some years ago, and then Soltereminded us about, again, several weeks ago.

As Commander Soltec may have hinted or alluded to in the writing of July 12, each of us volunteered to be here to experience at this time. You may not remember volunteering, but you did, or you wouldn't be here. What a pity it would be to waste the valuable lessons we came here to learn. Now, more than ever before, it would be wise to be as prepared as you possibly can for any eventuality. But remember: guns are not of God and will only get you deaded. Those who survive all of this will be the ones who have learned the true lessons of giving, regiving and cooperation.

If nothing happens, you will use what physical supplies you have at some point. If something does happen, you will be in a much better position to work through what you are about to experience. As Commander Soltec recently put it, about as clearly as such can be stated: "PREPARATION IS THE KEY TO SUR-VIVAL".

And certainly a key part of that preparation includes keeping an eye on the REAL news as it unfolds!

CHAPTER 15

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 7/17/97

'MOCK ANTI-TERRORIST ACTION'

Excerpted from the INTERNET, 7/7/97, [quoting:]

Councilwoman Barwood in Phoenix says that Military/FEMA is going to do a SIMULTANEOUS 'mock anti-terrorist action' in our 27 largest cities. The troops have already arrived in Phoenix! This is so dangerous...or is this a cover to round up the 100 cells of Iraqis with their poison?...or an excuse to declare Martial Law when it isn't necessary? [End quoting]

What is really going on between the U.S. and the Iraqis? Are the Elite trying to build up your hatred again so they can have a good excuse to start another war with Saddam, or enforce martial law; or is it true that the Iraqis have cells here in the U.S. ready to get revenge with biologicals?

It's difficult to know just what is the truth—especially when the key to the game is fabricating the most elaborate deceptions.

Be very discerning—they couldn't do what they are getting away with if they were not masters at this game. In any event, be prepared for the worst for "we the people" as plans unfold.

INEXPERIENCED INVESTOR THREAT

From *THE CHICAGO SUN-TIMES*, 7/7/97, [quoting:]

MUNICH—International financier George Soros said that the world stock markets may be headed for a crash caused by a panic among "inexperienced" investors, the weekly magazine *Focus* reported. "Lots of new investors are appearing who have only a little experience with financial markets," Soros said in an interview with the magazine. "If this trend suddenly comes to a halt, the investors could fall into a panic and leave the market at once. Then there would be a stock market crash. [End quoting]

The market just went over 8000 on the Dow Jones Chart yesterday (7/16/97).

This will be a stock market crash to beat them all and it will happen if the Elite have their way—it's just a matter of when. **BE PREPARED!!**

SHOOT-OUT CAUSES WACO-LIKE CS GAS FIREBALL

From THE JUBILEE, May/June 1997, [quoting:]

On Friday May 2, 1997, San Diego police attempted to serve a warrant at a house in the suburb of National City and were greeted by automatic gunfire. Police exchanged gunfire with the suspected criminals inside. The confrontation lasted over an hour and was videotaped. CS gas, the same type used in Waco, was shot into the house. According to the *Union Tribune* newspaper, as the CS gas filled the house it ignited and caused the entire structure and surrounding palm trees to be engulfed in flames. Two people inside the house died of either gunshot or incineration.

The recent Los Angeles bank robbery shoot-out gathered hours of national media attention. Yet the San Diego shoot-out, every bit as "exciting" as Los Angeles, has been completely ignored. Why would national and major media ignore a story that has all the notorious visual elements so attractive to media sensationalists?

During the Waco hearings 3 years ago the federal government maintained that CS gas was not flammable. This formed the basis of the mass suicide charge against the Branch Davidians. The Branch Davidian ranch burst into flames after the FBI and other federal police pumped CS gas into the occupied buildings. Attorney General Janet Reno approved the use of CS gas.

This recent incident with CS gas affirms the conclusions of earlier reports, which stated CS gas to be flammable and its use restricted to out-of-doors. The CS gas explosion knocks the legs from under the Branch Davidian mass suicide theory.

America is facing the very ugly reality that Federal Police, under the direction of Attorney General Reno, used a flammable gas on the Davidian ranch and then concealed the resultant incineration of approximately 60 adults and 20 children.

Congressional hearings, held in the wake of the Davidian incident, whitewashed Federal actions. The national media did yeoman's work in perpetrating the mass suicide theory on the public. [End quoting]

The local police are copying the Federal "police"—"Like daddy, like son."

When are we going to stop these blatant acts of terrorism and murders?

FBI DIRECTOR SPEAKS STRAIGHT?

From *THE JUBILEE*, May/June 1997, [quoting:]

FBI Director, Louis Freeh, seemingly buried the hatchet against militias while testifying before the Senate Subcommittee on Terrorism June 4, 1997. "We've worked very hard to try to evaluate and analyze the activity (of the militias). Most of the militia organizations throughout the country are not, in our view, threatening or dangerous." Mr Freeh went on to explain that the instances with the Republic of Texas, the Freemen and OKC were not representative of what the country sheriffs around the nation were feeding back to the FBI concerning militia behavior and activities.

This story, under a news blackout by the national media, was contributed by PIML (Patriot Information Mailing List). [End quoting]

Don't believe these liars. They'll say anything to put you to sleep as they stick their knives into your back.

Remember God does not work with guns and revenge—He uses positive actions to gain victory. **Hopefully you will listen for His guidance—the greatest leader ever!!**

TURKISH ARMY BRACES FOR ISLAMIC UPRISING

From *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, June 15, 1997, [quoting:]

ANKARA—Turkish military cadets hear a revered name called out at the end of their graduation: Gen. Mustafa Kemal Ataturk, the founder of modern, secular Turkey.

In unison, they shout, "In our heart!"

The separation of Islam and state is ingrained in the hearts of the 750,000 member Turkish military, NATO's second-largest army. More than any other institution in Turkey, the military adheres to the idea of secularism.

A perceived threat to that ideology is a major force behind the army's increasingly fierce and open opposition to Muslim politicians in Turkey's government, such as Prime Minister Necmettin Erbakan, who want to create a more Islamic nation.

Top generals delivered a blunt message to Islamic activists last week that they feared a religious revolution and warned they might use force to stop it.

Ideology isn't the only factor in the military's reaction—there are fears a truly Islamic state would challenge the army's political and economic power.

The officers make up a highly respected elite class. they have a major say in Turkey's course by being part of the National Security Council, which oversees the country's foreign and domestic policies.

The military entered business in a major way in the 1970s. In addition to military-run hotels, holiday villages, supermarkets and housing projects, the army owns the Oyak company, which produces Renault cars locally.

The installation of modern Turkey's first Islamic-led government 11 months ago put the military on alert. The generals grew increasingly uneasy as the government permitted female civil servants to cover their heads in Islamic style, built a mosque at the center of Istanbul and then rearranged work hours to fit fasting hours during the holy month of Ramadan.

Tension rose further as parliament members of the Islamic Welfare party joined rallies calling for an Islamic regime and took vows to crush the secular republic.

In a briefing Wednesday, Gen. Fevzi Turkeri declared that Islamic radical groups were poised for an uprising and the military might use force to crush it.

"It is the Turkish armed forces' duty to safeguard the modern Turkish republic. It is part of the national military strategy," Turkeri said.

Despite the tensions, officials from eight Muslim countries met Saturday in Ankara to put the final touches on plans for a Turkish-led economic cooperation group.

Erbakan said the group—the Developing 8—would promote a wide range of ties, including banking, scientific research, transportation, energy and tourism. The group will include Egypt, Iran, Nigeria, Pakistan, Indonesia, Malaysia, Bangladesh and Turkey. It is to be officially inaugurated today. [End quoting]

Another "divide and conquer" game in the "powder keg" area of the world??

INSECT EXPLORERS

From AVIATION WEEK & SPACE TECHNOLOGY, April 7, 1997, [quoting:]

Scientists at the Jet Propulsion Laboratory, Pasadena, Calif., are working to develop a new generation of extremely small, expendable robots. Called biomorphic explorers, the tetherless, mobile robots could range from microns to inches in size and could be mass produced according to Sarita Thakoor, principal investigator. Designed to perform a specific sensory or sample acquisition function and report back upon achieving success, potential uses include low-cost scouts or exploration of narrow crevices and inhospitable terrain on Earth as well as other planets. The miniature devices also could be used to inspect hazardous environments or support search and rescue operations. As envisioned, light-energized thin-film piezoceramic flexible actuators would serve as directly driven, active mobile appendages or legs, alternately flexing and deflecting when illuminated. Innovative mobility mechanisms, capturing the features of an inchworm, are being studied and implemented, Thakoor said. Feasible for deployment in large numbers, some biomorphic explorers might resemble swarming ants with a thumbnail-sized body and multiple appendages or legs. [End quoting]

Granted, this technology can benefit mankind in many ways, but the Elite have an addiction to using miniature technology to do us in.

You never know how small a "living" spy can be—an artificial ant, fly, roach, etc.

Also, microdot chip transmitter/receivers have been around for many years and they also make good implants.

FILMMAKER PAT MATRISCIANA SUED \$16 MILLION SOUGHT IN DAMAGES

From THE NATIONAL EDUCATOR, 6/97, by Jean Duffey, [quoting:]

pict.matrisciana

Pat Matrisciana is one of my conservative allies. I don't suppose you get much more conservative than Pat. He owns Jeremiah Films, which specializes in the production of Christian videos, and he is president of Citizens For Honest Government, which is launching a campaign to call for the impeachment of Bill Clinton.

Pat, Jeremiah films, and Citizens for an Honest Government have been sued for \$16,000,000 over Pat's production of the video, *Obstruction Of Justice: The Mena Connection*, in which my opinions are expressed about why the crimes of Mena, including the train deaths, have been covered up for more than a decade. Pat gave Linda Ives and me the opportunity to tell our Saline County, Arkansas story when no one else would.

The plaintiffs are Jay Campbell and Kirk Lane, two police officers who were implicated by witnesses in the murders of Kevin Ives and Don Henry. The video makes that very statement, and Pat is being sued for it. Although we welcome the opportunity to get any part of this case into court any way we can, we must be prepared to combat our adversary in and out of court. The plaintiffs will have most of the mainstream media on their side which will likely try the "divide-and-conquer" tactic against us.

We fully support Pat in this matter, and will be participating in raising funds for his defense.

We are looking at this suit as the forerunner of a wrongful death suit Linda Ives has been hoping to file this fall. The discovery process for Pat will make invaluable records available to Linda. This suit may, in fact, be the biggest mistake those responsible for the murders and coverups have ever made.

Pat's statement to me upon hearing the probable cost was: "That's a small price to pay for exposing murderers."

We who seek truth need to support and encourage Pat as he will no doubt go through a difficult and trying time. The most practical way would be to call Pat's legal defense fund at 1-800-251-8089 and make a contribution. Likewise, joining Citizens for an Honest Government would be a really supportive act.

About two years ago, the British journalist, Ambrose Evans Prichard, told me he thought the train-deaths case was going to be the loose thread that unravels Clinton's presidency. He could very well be right, and if he is, a donation for Pat's defense will be an investment in our country's future. [End quoting]

It's certainly good to see that people are putting up resistance to the Elite and their terrorism without using guns and violence—which is the only way that they will be stopped.

CONTACT does not encourage donations to any groups that we do not know. **Always check out these situations before giving your funds.**

NANOTUBE CABLE STRONGER THAN STEEL

From *POPULAR MECHANICS* magazine, 7/97, [quoting:]

Before men flew in space, a science-fiction writer fantasized about riding into orbit aboard diamond-cabled elevators anchored to an asteroid that had been shifted to a perfectly stable orbit between the Earth and the Moon.

2 nanotube picts

Recently, scientists here at Rice University and Switzerland have manufactured a material strong enough to be used as the elevator cable. It isn't made of diamonds, but of honeycomb-shaped carbon structures called nanotubes. Between 10-to-12 times stronger than steel, a strand narrower than a human hair could suspend a fully loaded semitrailer.

Even if a space elevator is never built, researchers say nanotubes will find their way into a variety of aerospace applications. They could also be used in bulletproof vests, sports equipment and automotive parts. Electrically conductive nanotubes could wire computer chips. [End quoting]

Another example of "What man can conceive, man can acheive."

Man will do far more amazing things when he turns his mind to God and His will.

NEUROSCIENCE: BRAIN TRANSPLANT FOR CHICKENS

From *POPULAR SCIENCE* magazine, 7/97, [quoting:]

If it looks like a chicken and walks like a chicken, but bobs its head like a quail, then what is it? In this case, it's a hybrid of both species, created by a scientist in California. The zany bird may provide insights into treating human brain diseases and injuries.

pict of chick

Neurobiologist Evan Balaban of The Neurosciences Institute in LaJolla, California, used microsurgical techniques to transplant cells from the brain of Japanese quail embryos into the brains of Plymouth Rock chick embryos. The chicks that hatched had a transplanted behavior: They bobbed their heads rapidly while crowing. Chicks don't normally make these head movements, but quail do. In a related experiment, Balaban transplanted another portion of the brain, creating chicks that sing like a quail without bobbing their heads.

Balaban believes that his work with birds, which demonstrates that some behaviors can be innate, may also give insights into how the structure of the brain has evolved. It might eventually provide clues about

how to restore capabilities to people with brain damage. So far, however, other researchers have had only limited success with transplanting tissues into the brain to treat such diseases as Parkinson's. [End quoting]

This torturing of animals is idiotic <u>for any reason</u>. If man would listen to his Creator he would get all the knowledge he can handle **without torturing His creations**.

OFFICIAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATE IS FRAUD

Excerpted from *THE NEW FEDERALIST*, 5/19/97, [quoting:]

On May 2, the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the Department of Labor announced that the official U.S. unemployment level for April was 6.71 million workers, and that the unemployment rate had fallen from 5.24% in March, to 4.93% in April.

The unemployment figures are a fraud. The economics staff of the *Executive Intelligence Review* has calculated that the real level of unemployment in this country is approximately 15.94 million workers—at least—and the real unemployment rate is 11.3%. Both figures are more than double what is officially reported.

The City of London oligarchical financiers, and their faction in different levels of government, would have Americans, and the world, believe that the biggest financial disintegration in human history is not underway. They would cover up the fact that the U.S. physical economy, and the consumer market basket, have been contracting, at the rate of 2% a year since 1970.

Therefore, the financiers and their allies (and some unwitting but ideologically confused persons) have emitted a steady stream of faked "good news" reports. Alongside the fraudulent unemployment figures, during April, the Commerce Department declared that the U.S. economy grew by 5.6% in the fourth quarter of 1996, the highest alleged quarterly growth in 10 years. On May 2, the White House's Office of Management and Budget, and leading Republicans, announced a federal budget deal that would supposedly "solve" most of the nation's budget problems through the year 2002.

(In fact, the budget deal is based on massive austerity, including \$600-700 billion worth of budget cuts, of which 115 billion will come from Medicare, the federally sponsored program of medical assistance for the nation's elderly. As the financial system explodes, the tax revenues upon which the balanced budget is premised, will vaporize.) [End quoting]

If the government would add to these figures all the ones that have given up on seeking jobs but would take one if they felt they could find one, I venture to say, the figures for unemployment would rise much higher.

It's time we all <u>wake up</u> to what the true agenda of government is—the control of "we the people" and the milking of all of our resources while dumbing us down and killing off all of the "undesirables".

However, there are a few working within the system to try to change it. **Let's work hard to increase these numbers.**

WELCOME TO CLONAID 6/21/97

WELCOME TO CLONAID RAEL CREATES THE FIRST HUMAN CLONING COMPANY

From the INTERNET, http://www.artbell.com, 6/21/97, [quoting:]

RAEL, the founder of a religious organization called the RAELIAN MOVEMENT which claims that life on Earth was created scientifically in laboratories by extraterrestrials whose name (Elohim) is found in the Hebrew *Bible* and was mistranslated by [*sic*] the word "God", and which also claims that Jesus' resurrection was, in fact, a cloning performed by the Elohim—announced today that he and a group of investors have set up a company named VALIANT VENTURE LTD., which will offer a service called "CLONAID" to provide assistance to would-be parents willing to have a child cloned from one of them. This service offers a fantastic opportunity to parents with fertility problems or homosexual couples to have a child cloned from one of them.

The Bahamas-based Company plans to build a laboratory in a country where human cloning is not illegal and will offer its services to wealthy parents worldwide. In a first phase, CLONAID will subcontract existing laboratories to perform the cloning. The company may also sponsor American laboratories working on human cloning and whose government subsidies have been cut by President Clinton.

CLONAID will charge as low as \$200,000 US for its cloning services.

The recent cloning of the sheep "Dolly" in Scotland has proven that the technology is now available to complete the operation successfully.

CLONAID's Scientific Director, the French scientist DR. BRIGITTE BOISSELIER, Ph.D., sees no ethical problems with the procedure. "Parents have the right to decide to have a baby who will bear the genetic code of one of them. It's now common to see the dead parent father a baby through the process of frozen sperm implantation. Imagine the joy of a widow raising a child looking like her beloved deceased husband," she said.

CLONAID will also offer a service called "INSURACLONE" which, for a \$50,000 fee, will provide the sampling and safe storage of cells from a living child or from a beloved person in order to create a clone if the child dies of an incurable disease or through an accident. In the case of a genetic disease, the cells will be preserved until science can genetically repair them before recreating the child (or an adult).

CLONAID, the first company in the world to offer human cloning [Maybe the first public company, but certainly not the first ones to clone humans. Who created many of our leaders?? Certainly, God didn't create their <u>present</u> bodies.], expects to have over a million customers worldwide interested in its services, as well as many laboratories to seek partnership with in this venture.

RAEL said: "Cloning will enable mankind to reach eternal life. The next step, like the ELOHIM with their 25,000 years of scientific advance, will be to directly clone an adult person without having to go through the growth process and to transfer memory and personality in this person.

Then, we wake up after death in a brand new body, just like after a good night's sleep!" [End quoting]

Why would anybody, in their right mind, want immortality in/on this third-dimensional schoolroom planet, as is, when God has a plan far beyond our imaginations for our immortality.

LONG LIVE THE ALKIES

From *POPULAR SCIENCE* magazine, 7/97, [quoting:]

PHILIPS, THE DUTCH electronics giant, has developed a battery that it claims has almost twice the life of ordinary alkaline batteries in high-drain applications like flashlights, shavers and portable compact disc players. The new AA-size battery, called PowerLife, will power a flashlight for 130 minutes, as opposed to 80 minutes with current alkalines, according to the company.

PowerLife's improved performance is due to the small particles of high-grade graphite inside the battery which allow more synthetic manganese dioxide—the active ingredient in alkalines—to be used. The graphite lets electrical current pass through the battery more efficiently, leading to less energy loss and longer life.

The PowerLife is the first battery that does not use heavy metals like cadmium, lead, or mercury, so it is easily recycled.

That's good news for the environment, because 28 billion alkaline batteries are sold each year worldwide. PowerLife batteries are expected to go on sale in the United States later this year. [End quoting]

This is a small improvement, but it would sure be nice if the Elite would release the far better power sources that they have been hiding from us for centuries.

COLORADO: CRASHED JET'S BOMBS TARGET OF NEW SEARCH

From *THE LOS ANGELES TIMES*, 7/10/97, [quoting:]

Searchers using metal detectors recovered part of a bomb rack but found no trace of the four bombs that had been aboard Air Force Capt. Craig Button's warplane when it disappeared from formation over the Arizona desert April 2 and began its mysterious flight, which ended with its crash on snowy Gold Dust Peak, near Eagle. Military officials said the search will continue for three weeks. Three days of searching last spring found only Button's remains, ammunition and parts of the plane's hydraulic system. [End quoting]

Does this statement sound logical? With the technology that the government has, they can literally find a needle in a haystack—and yet they can't find more than stated here? **How could a crash—as stated—scatter in such an illogical manner??** What are they trying to hide—AGAIN??

From ANGELS ON EARTH, Mar/Apr 1997, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

We had been married for 12 years when my husband and I began to have serious problems in our relationship. We went to a counselor, but nothing changed. I didn't think I could go on living if we divorced.

On a Sunday in February I drove to the shopping center to buy pills and alcohol. Coming out of the drugstore I glanced around self-consciously. The strangest feeling came over me. Then I saw someone I knew; my friend Jim, who worked at our church.

"Are you all right?" he asked. I tightened my grip on the brown paper bag and didn't answer. "Let's go down to the church," he said. "We'll talk about it."

I told him I'd meet him there, but I didn't think I'd go. What use was it? God, I was sure, had given up on me. Walking to my car I passed a trash can. Inexplicably my grip loosened on the paper bag and into the trash it went. I got in my car knowing I would go see Jim.

When I arrived at the church, I knocked hard, but there was no answer. That's odd. Jim said he'd be here. I called the church office from my car phone.

"Jim, this is Nancy. Can we talk now?"

"Of course," he said.

Inside, Jim listened and with a few well-chosen words made me feel I could go on, even if my marriage was over. "You saved my life," I told him.

"I'm glad I heard the phone ring. I was downstairs cleaning," he said.

"But, Jim, I saw you in the parking lot at the shopping center. You asked me to come here, "I said.

Jim looked puzzled. "I've been here all afternoon," he insisted.

I thought back to that moment in the parking lot. I had talked to someone who knew where I had to go.

If it wasn't Jim, who was it?

—Nancy Hubbard, Batavia, Illinois

[End quoting]

Isn't it marvelous how God gets our attention to help us when we have given up on Him?

CHAPTER 16

8sp logo

HOAXES AND HOLOGRAMS OUR ELECTROMAGNETIC UNIVERSE PART III

Editor's note: Part II was printed in last week's CONTACT on p.6; we continue here with Part III of this 3-part series.

RAMANUJAN

Ramanujan, who said he had no proper first name, was a Black man born in India in 1887. The fascinating story of his life is told in the book The Man Who Knew Infinity by Robert Kanigel. It is the story of a man from an extremely poor background, who was given little opportunity for schooling, who became one of the world's greatest mathematicians, and then died in 1920 at age 33. His mathematics became known as "21st Century" math and was so far ahead of others that mathematicians today still try to learn new material from studying his notes.

Ramanujan said his math came from extra-terrestrials, specifically from ones he called the goddess Namagiri and the god Narasimha. He said that he had dreams from Narasimha in which "scrolls containing the most complicated mathematics used to unfold before his eyes." Ramanujan said that he often received information in dreams, and would often awake and write down something that had come to him. Modern computers are evaluated and tested by evaluating pi and use an algorithm developed from Ramanujan's math. This is an example of one way in which most of us are unaware of the many ways in which we are influenced every day by "extraterrestrials".

The theme of humans receiving inspiration from extraterrestrials is a common one throughout history. We talk of "divining" the truth. The Greeks, for example, had their Muses. Newton, Euler, Aristotle, Leibniz, Kepler, and on and on all in one way or another attributed inspiration from Higher Powers or spirit beings.

One modern scientist who learned from Ramanujan is Michio Kaku, author of Hyperspace, A Scientific Odyssey Through Parallel Universes, Time Warps, and the 10th Dimension. He devotes several pages in his book to Ramanujan. Kaku promotes a theory that the Universe is a bunch of vibrating strings.

FOURIER HOLOGRAMS

Another mathematician named Denis Gabor formulated theories in 1947 that led to the development of the hologram (for which he won a Nobel Prize). He was using a type of math called Fourier transforms to convert patterns into simple waves, and then convert the simple waves back into the original patterns. Just as a TV set converts frequencies into a picture, he was able to take blurred interference patterns created by collision of light waves recorded on holographic film and turn them back into an image of the original object.

Karl Pribram came along in the 1960s and 1970s and discovered that the eyes and human visual system are a type of frequency analyzer. He figured out that the brain was using holograms. Other scientists became involved, at first to try to disprove this too-far-out concept, but instead learned more proof of the fact that the universe is a hologram and the brain is a hologram converter. The brain uses Fourier mathematics to convert visual images into Fourier language of wave forms (Karen K. DeValois, Russell L. DeValois, and W. W. Yund, "Responses of Striate Cortex Cells to Grating and Checkerboard Patterns," Journal of Physiology, vol. 291, 1979, pp. 483-505).

Michael Talbot, in the non-fiction best-seller The Holographic Universe, in the chapter entitled "The Cosmos as Hologram", says of the nature of what we call particles of matter: "Perhaps most astonishing of all is that there is compelling evidence that the only time quanta [wave/particles of matter] ever manifest as particles is when we are looking at them" (p. 34).

David Bohm, one of the world's most respected quantum physicists and a protégé of Einstein, came to the same conclusion that the universe is a hologram, independently of Pribram.

Talbot summarized Pribram's and Bohm's discovery: "Our brains mathematically construct objective reality by interpreting frequencies that are ultimately projections from another dimension, a deeper order of existence that is beyond both space and time: The brain is a hologram enfolded in a holographic universe" (p. 54).

We do not merely look at the hologram; WE ARE (part of) THE HOLOGRAM, that is, "we" being our sensing part, not our soul.

A QUICK COURSE IN SPHERICAL MATH

The distance east and west around the Earth (circumference) at the equator is about 24,902.4 miles, usually rounded off to 25,000 statute miles, and the circumference north and south around the poles is about 42.2 miles less, so the Earth is not a perfect sphere. The width (diameter) of the Earth at the equator is about 7926.68 miles, and from pole to pole it is 26.7 miles less. For many purposes, such as navigation, the circumference of the Earth is figured in nautical miles rather than statute miles. To change statute miles into nautical miles, the conversion factor is .86898, so multiply 24,902.4 X .86898 = 21639.69, or 21,600 nautical miles for most purposes.

There are 360 degrees in a circle and 24 hours in a day, so the Sun moves through 15 degrees every hour (360/24 = 15). Since there are 21,600 miles around the Earth and 24 hours in a day, the Sun moves through 900 miles every hour (21,600/24 = 900).

There are 60 minutes in an hour and the Sun travels through 15 degrees every hour (15 x 24 = 360 degrees).

We usually measure flat and straight things by inches, feet and statute miles (and nowadays by the new-fangled New World Order metrics). We measure angular things by seconds, minutes and degrees (degrees, not hours: here we are talking geometry and trigonometry, not time). There are 60 minutes in a degree and 360 degrees in a circle, so there are $60 \times 360 = 21,600$ minutes (called minutes of arc) in a

complete circle. There are 21,600 nautical miles around the Earth's circumference, and 21,600 minutes of arc around the circumference, so each minute of arc equals one nautical mile (this is why nautical miles are used by ships instead of statute miles).

The Earth is a circle of 360 degrees (360°) .

The Earth is a circle of 21,600 minutes of arc (21,600').

The Earth has a circumference of 21,600 nautical miles.

Celestial bodies travel around the Earth (from an apparent viewpoint) at 900 knots (nautical miles) an hour.

Celestial bodies travel around the Earth at 21,600 nautical miles every 24 hours.

Celestial bodies move through 15° of arc every hour.

Celestial bodies move through 360° in 24 hours of time.

Longitude is measured east and west in degrees from a starting point assigned to Greenwich, England. Latitude is measured north and south in degrees starting from the equator. So measurement of distances around the Earth can be made by angles (GHA or Greenwich Hour Angle), miles (nautical) or hours (GMT or Greenwich Mean Time, also called Coordinated Universal Time).

The Greenwich Hour Angle is an angle measurement FROM Greenwich WESTWARD and out to any celestial body, through a 360° arc. This is important for navigation, but not particularly for our purposes. For navigation, the exact time is important. A clock that is 4 seconds slow will give an error of a mile (the Sun moves 900 miles per hour, 15 miles per minute, or 1/4 mile per second). A one-minute error will put a navigator off by 15 miles. To get the correct time, you can call 1-303-499-7111.

Above we said that the diameter of the Earth is 7926.68 statute miles; using the conversion factor quoted above (see any weights and measures list of conversation factors) of .86898 we get $7926.68 \times .86898 = 6888.13$ nautical miles. The figure is 6875.493 in minutes of arc.

Bruce Cathie has done much research into the geometry and harmonics of the Earth and has made some amazing discoveries. He says "...it appears possible that spherical bodies are in fact formed by some sort of vortexual resonance which causes precipitation of matter" (p. 71, The Energy Grid, 1990 version). If this is the case (and it is), then the atmosphere should be included. As the energy vortex begins to precipitate Earth/matter, the atmosphere would precipitate first (looking from outside inward).

The harmonic of the speed of light = 144/harmonic, reciprocal = 69444. [A reciprocal of a number is what you have to multiply it by to get 1, so the reciprocal of 2 is 1/2 or 0.5 and the reciprocal of 5 is 1/5 written 0.2, etc. It is found by dividing the number into 1 or by writing 1 over the number (which means the same).] All spheres are 360° or 21,600 minutes of arc. The ratio of the circumference to the diameter, if you remember your geometry, is C= pd. So if you solve for d (diameter) you would divide 21,600 by p(3.14159265...) which equals 6875.493542 minutes of arc (or nautical miles) diameter.

In harmonics, the decimal doesn't matter. In other words, 10 is a harmonic of 1, 100 is a harmonic of 10 and 1, 1000 is a harmonic of 100 and 10 and 1, etc. You can move the decimal back and forth and it is still the same base harmonic. So adding one harmonic of 68.75493542 (to include the atmosphere in the diameter of the Earth) to 6875.493542 (the diameter of the Earth) would equal 6944.248477, which is the

harmonic reciprocal of the speed of light in free space.

Cathie found that the harmonics can be multiplied by harmonics of 6 or 60, etc. He says that the fundamental harmonic of light in geometric terms is an angular velocity of 144,000 minutes of arc per grid second. There are 97,200 grid seconds to one revolution of the Earth. The reciprocal harmonic of light, or 1/144,000 is 694444....repeating (in figuring harmonics, you delete the leading and trailing zeros and convert to whole numbers). This 69444 harmonic (and 169444) is a basic building block of the universe (and anti-universe). REMEMBER THE NUMBER 694443! This harmonic varies in relation to the geometric distance from the center of the Earth. He discovered a lattice grid electromagnetic harmonic pattern on the Earth that is divided into grid squares of 6 minutes of arc each, or more precisely 5.90165 degrees, whose reciprocal is 0.169444. When Cathie learned this, he was able to accurately predict the time and location of future nuclear tests (you will have to read his books for details)!

Cathie (who was in New Zealand) noticed the Americans had a base at Kauri Point, New Zealand, and another at Woodbourne, near Blenheim, in the South Island. Remember that harmonics can move up or down the scale by multiplying or dividing by 6 or 60. He measured these stations and found that the distance between stations was 284.9006 minutes of arc (nautical miles). Multiplied by 6, nine times = 2.87114. The square root of the 2871140 harmonic is 1694443 harmonic.

The latitudinal displacement between the two stations was 4.70666 degrees, which equals 16944 seconds of arc.

The longitude of Kauri Point is equal to $174^{\circ} 42'$. If we subtract 90° from this value to determine the position of Kauri Point within the appropriate 90° sector, we have $84^{\circ} 42'$ which equals 84.7 which is half of 169.4 harmonic. Cathie said "...it has been found that this particular harmonic (169444) has a direct connection with communication; particularly space communications."

The Pentagon's High-frequency Active Auroral Research Project (HAARP) at Gakona, Alaska, consists of 360 (6 x 60) transmitter antennas, each 72 (6 x 12) feet tall. Is the Pentagon aware of the Earth's electrogeometric grid pattern? Bruce Cathie claims that it is.

Nicola Tesla knew that matter was a complex matrix of wave-forms locked together by harmonic resonance. Tesla stated: "Long ago he [man] recognized that all perceptible matter comes from a primary substance, of a tenuity beyond conception, filling all space, the Akasa of Luminiferous Ether, which is acted upon by the life-giving prana or creative force, calling into existence, in never-ending cycles, all things and phenomena. The primary substance, thrown into infinitesimal whirls of prodigious velocity, becomes gross matter, the force subsiding. The motion ceases and matter disappears, reverting to the primary substance." He was saying that all matter comes into existence from a tremendous amount of "Luminiferous" (Light) energy (potential) that exists in what we are calling the empty vacuum of space and what Einstein, Rayleigh and so many others called the ether.

Tesla set up a laboratory at Colorado Springs, which is 38° 50' North latitude and 104° 52' 22" West longitude.

The distance from there to the North Pole would be 51.174548 degrees.

The distance from the equator is 38.825453 degrees.

Difference is 12.349095 degrees. Divided by 6 is 2.0581825 units. Multiplied by 2 is 4.116365 units. Squared is 16.9444 units.

The difference between 104° 52' 22" west and 90° 00' 00" is 694.44 minutes of arc.

This same area is now where the North American Air Defense Command (NORAD) is located.

Cathie says "The harmonic 16944 is related to MASS, GRAVITY and COMMUNICATION...." (p. 109, The Energy Grid).

Cathie pointed out that the ancients were apparently aware of the Earth harmonics. One example he used was the Piri Re'is map, transcribed in 1513, and copied from an unknown older map. It showed South America and Africa in the correct relative longitudes, which was not possible to determine in the 16th century. Charles Hapgood of Keene State College and the United States Navy Hydrographic office among others decided to study the map and found that it had been divided by using a circle which was divided into 16 equal triangular segments (like the spokes of a wheel) of 22 1/2 degrees each (22 1/2° X $16=360^{\circ}$). Hapgood's book Maps of the Ancient Sea Kings gives the math of what they learned. The center of the circle was to the east of the map in a section that was torn off and missing. By using trigonometric projection, they determined that the center of the circle was at 23.5° North and 30.0° East, which was at the intersection of the Tropic of Cancer and the Meridian of Alexandria, Egypt (the ancient equivalent of Greenwich). Since they knew the length of one side of the triangle and had a 90° angle, they were able to determine that the radius of the circle was 69.5° of arc, very close to the natural Earth harmonic geometric of 6944 and the reciprocal of the pure harmonic of light. The distance from this center to the North Pole was also 69.5° of arc. Another point of the map figured to 69.41° , and a third point figured to 69.42° .

OTHER HARMONIC LOCATIONS

Let's look at some other items. The following information comes from the *Phoenix Journal Express* (now called *CONTACT*), Volume XII, Number 12.

The location of a focal point within the city of Mecca is 21° 23' 38.32458" North and 39° 49' 37" East. This is equal to 1283.638743 minutes of arc north. The distance to the North Pole is 4116.361257 minutes of arc. The square of this number is 1694443 harmonic.

The location of the Fatima apparitions was 39° 37' 54.45" north and 8° 36' 40.5" west. The great circle distance from Mecca is 2693.645 minutes of arc (nautical miles). Tesla tried to build a transmitter at Wardenclyffe, Long Island, New York, which would have supplied free energy to the whole world, but was stopped by the bankers. The location of Wardenclyffe was 40° 56' 50.3" north/72° 53' 55.6" west. The great circle displacement from the transmitter to a point on longitude 180° 00' 00" at the same latitude was 269375.75 seconds of arc. Cathie said: "This was extremely close to the energy harmonic derived

from the unified equation in relation to the speed of light at the Earth's surface, found in my latest research: 269364.5 harmonic." Bruce Cathie calls this the Unified Field Harmonic.

His Unified Harmonic Equation 3 is:

E = /[(2c+/1/2c)(2c)2] where c = 144,000 minutes of arc per grid second reduced by the harmonic of the Golden Ratio (phi) number 1618.034 or the harmonic of "c" 1618.034 (144000 - 161.8034 = 143838.1966). Therefore, the harmonic of 2c = 287676.3932. Solve for E:

This harmonic varies very slightly depending on whether it is in air or in vacuum, or whether gravity or electromagnetics.

Cathie states: "Matter and antimatter are formed by the same wave-motions in space. The waves travel through space in a spiralling motion, and alternately pass thorough positive and negative stages" p. 27, The Harmonic Conquest of Space). He continues: "Matter is formed through the positive state, or pulse, and antimatter through the negative pulse. Each spiral of 360° forms a single pulse. The circular motion of an electron about the nucleus of an atom is therefore an illusion."

The anti-matter side of the cycle is being ignored by most in electromagnetics, although astronomers are beginning to learn more about the anti-matter spirals in the universe (a recent example is the article on the New York Times front page, "Enormous Plume of Antimatter Alters View of the Milky Way", April 29, 1997).

The Seitun Coptic Church in Egypt is at 30° 05' 27.52" north/31°18' 20.3" east. The great circle distance between the focal point and Mecca is: 695.4307 minutes of arc. The displacement in latitude is 31309.1958 seconds of arc. This multiplied by 60 equals 1878551.748 harmonic. A circle of this diameter would have a circumference of 5901644.371 units which is the reciprocal harmonic of 1694443.

On November 28, 1975, a 17-year-old girl in the Portuguese city of Oporto had a visitation from one she thought to be Christ and she called Jesus. She started fasting and continued for years. She has not had any food or drink since that day, to the consternation of many medical experts. Thousands of pilgrims travel to see her. It turns out that this location $(41^{\circ} 09' \text{ north})$ is in a harmonic relationship with Mecca and the Vatican.

Hatonn stated, in the July 28, 1992, issue of The Phoenix Liberator (now called Contact), p. 29, that extraterrestrial spacecraft come into visibility at a harmonic resonance of 169443 (I don't know if this is a typo; it is not exactly the same as 1694443). This is exactly what Bruce Cathie discovered, as he learned of the harmonic grid by first plotting UFO sightings.

Hatonn communicates by pulse frequency to Dharma, the main writer for Contact newspaper, at a frequency of 16.94443 MHz (I am not sure of the decimal place). I understand that any radio capable of tuning the weather satellite band can tune it in.

On 26 July, 1992, the 4824 Intelligence Signal Monitoring unit, Fort Meade, Maryland, sent the following message to Col. Bill Straton, Hawaii:

Z2342Z26JUL

FR: 4824 INTELLIGENCE SIGNAL MONITORING, FORT MEADE, MARYLAND

TO: COL. BILL STRATON, HAWAII 9924451232852

//N0000000//

OPAREA ASSIGNMENT //N04220//

RE: SIGNALS TEHACHAPI, CALIF. OPS.

EDDYJO EKKER AND DORIS EKKER

1. THE CLAIM THAT DORIS EKKER ALIAS "DHARMA" RECEIVES TRANSMISSIONS FROM A SPACECRAFT COMMANDER ON FREQUENCY 169443 MHz (REFERENCE GEORGE GREEN STATEMENT) IS WITHOUT FOUNDATION AND MUST CEASE FORTHWITH.

- 2. THIS FREQUENCY HAS BEEN MONITORED FOR THE PAST 6 MONTHS BY 8723 ON A 24HR CONTINGENCY AND ONLY STATIC WAS RECORDED. THERE IS NO SIGNAL "PULSED" ON FREQUENCY 169443 MHz AS CLAIMED BY DORIS EKKER AND GEORGE GREEN.
- 3. FINAL TEST MONITORING TODAY (2100Z26JUL) ON ALLEGATIONS THAT SUCH TRANS-MISSIONS WERE BEING RECEIVED BY DORIS EKKER 20424 BRIAN WAY TEHACHAPI CALIF. NOTHING RECEIVED.
- 4. TO COL. STRATON FOLLOWS;

NO TRANSMISSION ON FREQUENCY 169443 MHz TODAY 2100Z26JUL. THIS CONFIRMS OUR 6 MONTH SURVEY THAT PULSING AND OR ANY OTHER TYPE OF .ACTIVITY HAS NOT OCCURRED ON FRE- QUENCY 169443 MHz.

REGARDS, N04220. MESSAGE ENDS MESSAGE ENDS 87837745983764

646767348735487873187756449877136976491964987538745483875

End of quote.

It took them six months to come to that conclusion? Part of Hatonn's amused reply to them was "I wonder if you tried, just in passing, 169443 KHz? Just wondered! I surely do want you to find whatever it is you are researching. Craft come into visibility at a harmonic resonance of 169443 so perhaps there is wherein

lies your confusion. Please notify me if there is more I can do for you in regards to this official matter."

My friend Robert B. may also find this amusing, since he was a radio man involved in some of these situations, perhaps even in communications with this particular craft on this particular frequency.

I must end here for now.

I hope this discussion has been of benefit to you.

Calvin Burgin

CHAPTER 17

THE NEWS DESK A SPECIAL REPORT

WARNING! NUTRASWEET IS A NEUROTOXIN! (1994) by Dr. Al Overholt 7/17/97

From a FAX, 6/20/97, [quoting:]

The THALIDOMIDE of the 90s is ASPARTAME otherwise known as EQUAL, NUTRASWEET or SPOONFUL. In May, 1992 *Flying Safety Magazine* explained the dangers:

In pregnancy the effects of Aspartame can be passed directly on to the fetus, even in very small doses. Some people have suffered Aspartame-related disorders with doses as small as that carried in a single stick of chewing gum. This could mean a pilot who drinks diet sodas is more susceptible to flicker vertigo, or to flicker-induced epileptic activity. It also means that all pilots are potential victims of sudden memory loss, dizziness during instrument flight and gradual loss of vision.

Some pilots have experienced grand seizures in the cockpits of commercial airline flights and have lost medical certification to fly, [and] with it their careers. The FDA has received more than 10,000 consumer complaints on NutraPoison. That's 80% of all complaints about food additives, yet they remain comatose and have done nothing to alert the American public who assume that since it's so highly advertised, it must be safe as mother's milk. The FDA consistently approves killer drugs as the February '94 OMNI MAGA-ZINE reported:

If you are using Aspartame and have headaches, depression, slurred speech, loss of memory, fibromyalgiatype symptoms, loss of sensation in lower legs or shooting pains, loss of eqilibrium, vertigo, anxiety attacks, chronic fatigue, vision loss, floaters, retinal detachment, seizures, heart palpitations, etc., you have ASPARTAME DISEASE! Many physicians are diagnosing multiple sclerosis when in reality it is methanol toxicity which mimics MS. Get off this dangerous drug right away. MS is not a death sentence, but methanol toxicity is!

51% of FDA-approved drugs have serious risks and could cause adverse reactions that lead to severe or permanent disability or death. The Centers for Disease Control, Johns Hopkins University, and the New Jersey School of Medicine estimate that 80-120,000 Americans are killed by prescription drugs every year. That this atrocious holocaust persists has everything to do with money and nothing to do with public health. Monsanto reaps \$2 billion/year from the Aspartame toxic bonanza. This can buy a lot of bureaucrats! Does FDA mean Fatal Drugs Allowed? The FDA works for industry, not citizens. FDA head Arthur Hayes overruled his own board of inquiry to approve it, then went to work for their public relations firm. Federal attorney Sam Skinner was assigned to prosecute Searle for fraudulent tests in their application, but switched sides and went to work for Searle's lawyers and the case died when the statute of limitations ran out.

Honest FDA toxicologist, the late Dr. Adrian Gross, wrote to Senator Howard Metzenbaum: "The views of the FDA's Center for Food Safety read like a script written for Abbott & Costello in the sense of their having perceptions inside-out and upside-down...FDA may have gone through the motions...such a "process" or DANCE represented a farce and a mockery."

Aspartame is a molecule composed of three components: aspartic acid, phenylalanine and methanol. Once ingested, the methanol—wood alcohol—that has killed or blinded thousands of skid-row drunks, converts into formaldehyde and formic [acid?] (Ant Sting Poison). Formaldehyde, a deadly neurotoxin, is common embalming fluid, a Class A Carcinogen. Phenylalanine is also neurotoxic when unaccompanied by the other amino acids in proteins. Aspartic acid causes brain lesions in neuroendocrine disorders in experimental animals. There are 92 documented symptoms including:

Headaches, numbness, fatigue, blurred vision, heart palpitations, memory loss, dizziness, muscle spasms, weight gain, irritability, anxiety attacks, vertigo, seizures, rashes, blindness, tachycardia, tinnitus, joint pain, nausea, depression, hearing loss, slurred speech, loss of taste and insomnia.

NutraSweet is in 5,000 foods (Over 9000 by 1997) and on every restaurant table for the same reasons tobacco is everywhere: Greed, Addiction and Profit! The NutraSweet Company and sister Searle (whose chemists discovered Aspartame while testing an ulcer drug) are owned by Monsanto. If you're taking other medicine, consider possible reactions you may have. In 1969 Searle approached Dr. Harry Waisman to study the effects of Aspartame on primates. Seven infant monkeys were fed the chemical in milk. One died after 300 days, 5 others had Grand Mal seizures. Searle deleted these findings when they submitted this study to the FDA! The best way to understand NutraSweet is to think of it as a minute dose of nerve gas that eradicates brain and nerve functions.

SOME DISEASES TRIGGERED BY ASPARTAME:

Brain tumors and other cancers, Multiple sclerosis, Epilepsy, Fibromyalgia, Graves Disease, Chronic fatigue syndrome, Epstein Barr, Parkinson's, Alzheimer's, Diabetes, Mental retardation, Lymphoma, Birth defects and Systemic Lupus Death!

Researchers at Massachusetts Institute of Technology surveyed 80 people who suffered brain seizures after eating or drinking products with Aspartame. Said the Community Nutrition Institute: "These 80 cases meet the FDA's own definition of an imminent hazard to the public health, which requires the FDA to expeditiously remove a product from the market."

America is seeing a tremendous increase in seizures. Phenylalanine in Aspartame lowers the seizure threshold in the brain and blocks serotonin production. Today our nation is swept by a rage of violence. Researchers attribute this in part to low brain serotonin levels inducing depression, rage and paranoia. So President Clinton, Diet Coke in hand, programs billions of \$s to buy penitentiaries for the paranoid.

Fetal tissue cannot tolerate methanol, and Dr. James Bowen calls NutraSweet instant birth control. The fetal placenta can concentrate phenylalanine and cause mental retardation. Aspartame tests on animals produced brain and mammary tumors. No wonder breast cancer is exponentiating! During Operation

Desert Storm, truckloads of diet drinks cooked in the Arabian sun and <u>at 86 degrees Aspartame liberates methanol in the can!</u> [*emphasis mine*] Thousands of service men and women returned home with chronic fatigue syndrome and weird toxic symptoms!

On July 28, 1983 the National Soft Drink Association drafted a 30-page protest questioning the safety of Aspartame in soft drinks. Then they found weight-conscious Americans would sip soda all day if it was sugarless, so they forgot their objections; nor did they tell us that Aspartame makes you crave carbohydrates and so you gain weight. The formaldehyde stores in fat cells, particularly on the hips and thighs. Drink diet soda, get fat now, and later develop seizures, diabetes, blindness, Epstein Barr, MS depression and death. [emphasis mine]

Similarly, the American Diabetic Association, which receives megafunds from NutraSweet, ignored a 1987 abstract submitted by Dr. H. J. Roberts (world expert on Aspartame and diabetic specialist) summarizing 58 diabetic Aspartame reactors. He says "I now advise ALL patients with diabetes and hypoglycemia to avoid Aspartame products." Russell Blaylock, M.D., Neurosurgeon, in his book, *Excitotoxins—The Taste That Kills*, says Aspartame may trigger clinical diabetes! He says that excitotoxins, which can be found in such ingredients as NutraSweet, literally stimulate neurons to death, causing brain damage of varying degrees. *Health Press:* 1-800-643-2665. Also, "What really concerns me about Aspartame is its association with brain tumors as well as pancreatic, uterine and ovarian tumors...and that so many develop an Alzheimer's-like syndrome with prolonged exposure."

NutraSweet/Equal/Spoonful are the deadliest toxins in our society because of their ubiquitous presence in thousands of foods, even children's vitamins, medicines, Kool Aid and Jell-O and on every restaurant table. [emphasis mine] We're dosed with millions of pounds every year! This warning should be on every Aspartame/NutraSweet/Equal/Spoonful product: CHEMICAL POISON: KEEP OUT OF REACH OF HUMANS! GENOCIDAL!

[Editor's note: CONTACT must apologize for this terrible formatting to follow; it's the best we could do from the original.]

AUTHORITIES: H. J. ROBERTS, M.D., F.A.C.P., F.C.C.P. BOOKS—PUBLICATIONS: *Aspartame: Is it Safe?* The Charles Press, PO Box 15715S, Philadelphia PA 19103 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 *Sweet'ner Dearest; Is Aspartame Safe? A Medical, Public Health Legal Overview* (407)832-2408 on tape; *Defense Against Alzheimer's Disease*, (Dr. Roberts explains how Aspartame can escalate Alzheimer's). *Sunshine Sentinel Press*: 1 -800-814-9800

Nominated for a Pulitzer Prize, included in *Who's Who in America*, *Who's Who in the World*, *Who's Who in Science and Technology*, and *THE BEST DOCTORS IN THE U.S.* Selected by a national medical publication as "The Best Doctor in the U.S".

BARBARA ALEXANDER MULLARKEY (708) 848-0116

c/o NutriVoice PO Box 946 Oak Park, Illinois 60303

<u>BITTERSWEET ASPARTAME:</u> A DIET DELUSION

A leading Anti-Aspartame authority, former ecology-nutrition columnist for the *Wednesday Journal* of Oak Park, Illinois. Publisher of *NutriVoice Newsletter*; Nutrition editor, *Conscious Choice* magazine. Contributor to *Informed Consent* magazine.

SPREAD THE WARNING!

Permission is granted to copy this for your friends, school, workplace, lawmakers, merchants and physicians. Give a copy to ANYONE who might benefit from the knowledge!

Prepared by:
Mrs. Betty Martini
Mission Possible
5950-H State Bridge Road, Suite 215
Duluth, Georgia 30155 [End quoting]

How many readers had any idea of how poisonous these sweeteners are?

This is just another example of what the Elite think about us—we are nothing but slaves to supply what they want, in any way they want it and at the time they want it. How does it feel to know this?

Every day of our lives we see the fulfillment of the *Protocols of Zion*, if we only open our eyes!!

When are we going to WAKE UP and stop it??

CHAPTER 18

BAG LIMITS ON ATTORNEYS

all paste 2 pages